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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of CH Energy Group, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CH Energy Group Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the related statements of income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of CH Energy Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Predecessor Auditors' Opinion on 2016 Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 were
audited by other auditors whose report, dated February 9, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements.

February 14, 2019
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related statements of income, comprehensive income,
equity, and cash flows, for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 were audited by
other auditors whose report, dated February 9, 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.
We also have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated
February 14, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with
the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

February 14, 2019
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation:
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Central Hudson Gas & Electric
Corporation (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.
We have also audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, of the Company and our report dated February 14, 2019, expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.
Basis for Opinion
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting –
Central Hudson. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards of the PCAOB and in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
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dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

February 14, 2019
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CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
(In Thousands)

Operating Revenues
Electric
Natural gas
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Operation:
Purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation
Purchased natural gas
Other expenses of operation - regulated activities
Other expenses of operation - non-regulated
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes, other than income tax
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Other Income and Deductions
Income from unconsolidated affiliates
Interest on regulatory assets and other interest income
Regulatory adjustments for interest costs
Other - net
Total Other Income(Expense)
Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt
Interest on regulatory liabilities and other interest
Total Interest Charges
Income Before Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense
Net Income
Dividends declared on Common Stock
Change in Retained Earnings

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
$

$

558,533 $
166,098
724,631

528,277 $
143,192
671,469

510,762
128,886
639,648

191,462
63,639
254,447
879
54,494
60,618
625,539
99,092

155,107
44,804
240,587
339
50,516
65,792
557,145
114,324

157,429
32,898
224,275
639
46,509
63,367
525,117
114,531

1,044
3,496
1,019
158
5,717

1,576
3,851
695
(2,395)
3,727

876
2,823
341
(4,629)
(589)

25,689
5,924
31,613
86,438
32,686
53,752
22,000
31,752 $

24,211
7,185
31,396
82,546
31,641
50,905
22,000
28,905

27,650
4,532
32,182
72,627
15,084
57,543
22,000
35,543 $

CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
(In Thousands)

Net Income
$
Other Comprehensive Loss:
Net unrealized loss on investments held by equity method investees - net of tax
expense for 2018, 2017 and 2016 of $0, $96, and $33, respectively
Employee future benefits - net of tax expense of $153 for 2018 and $0 for both
2017 and 2016
Total other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive Income

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
57,543 $
53,752 $
50,905

(430)
(430)
57,113 $

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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(144)
(144)
53,608 $

(50)
(50)
50,855

CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Deferred income taxes - net
Bad debt expense
Distributed (undistributed) equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Pension expense
Other post-employment benefits ("OPEB") expense
Regulatory liability - rate moderation
Revenue decoupling mechanism recorded
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:
Accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and other receivables
Fuel, materials and supplies
Special deposits and prepayments
Income and other taxes
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Customer advances
Other advances
Pension plan contribution
OPEB contribution
Revenue decoupling mechanism collected/(refunded) - net
Regulatory asset - major storm
Regulatory asset - site investigation and remediation ("SIR")
Regulatory asset - temporary state assessment
Regulatory liability - energy efficiency programs
Deferred natural gas and electric costs
Other - net
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing Activities:
Additions to utility plant
Other - net
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing Activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net change in short-term borrowings
Capital contribution
Dividends paid on Common Stock
Other - net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at Beginning of Period
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Period
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized
Federal and state income taxes paid
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Accrued capital expenditures

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
$

57,543

$

50,905

47,398
7,096
8,020
4,799
517
13,399
(5,026)
(5,146)
15,058

44,695
5,821
31,722
3,196
(727)
15,483
(2,527)
(10,153)
(532)

41,985
4,524
34,575
4,181
(327)
15,549
(2,536)
(16,108)
14,952

(25,788)
(2,238)
(481)
7,613
(273)
377
(3,779)
8,777
(12,194)
(1,302)
(3,115)
(28,698)
(1,458)
496
8,182
13,643
24,622
128,042

(18,971)
267
(918)
3,780
3,543
645
(2,591)
11,049
(14,050)
(1,533)
(16,000)
(4,163)
1,684
2,376
31,102
(4,203)
21,313
154,060

(10,522)
(5,226)
(1,777)
32,811
5,284
306
(1,464)
(1,072)
(1,560)
(7,962)
(966)
(11,598)
784
29,967
(4,747)
17,009
186,967

(188,973)
(217)
(189,190)

(169,643)
2,139
(167,504)

(175,894)
(2,744)
(178,638)

$

(31,503)
105,000
37,000
(22,000)
(688)
87,809
26,661
17,140
43,801

$

(34,406)
60,000
7,000
(22,000)
(384)
10,210
(3,234)
20,374
17,140 $

(9,314)
54,000
(25,000)
130
(22,000)
(420)
(2,604)
5,725
14,649
20,374

$
$

26,385
-

$
$

25,264 $
- $

23,959
765

$

19,342

$

14,575 $

10,604

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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53,752 $

CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Utility Plant (Note 3)
Electric
Natural gas
Common
Gross Utility Plant
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net
Construction work in progress
Net Utility Plant
Non-utility property & plant
Net Non-Utility Property & Plant
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.7
million and $3.0 million, respectively. (Note 2)
Accounts receivable - affiliates (Note 17)
Accrued unbilled utility revenues
Other receivables
Fuel, materials and supplies (Note 1)
Regulatory assets (Note 4)
Income tax receivable
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 15)
Special deposits and prepayments
Total Current Assets
Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Regulatory assets - deferred pension costs (Note 4)
Regulatory assets - other (Note 4)
Prefunded OPEB costs (Note 11)
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates (Note 6)
Other investments (Note 16)
Other
Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Total Assets

December 31,
2018
$

$

1,443,152 $
566,197
267,757
2,277,106
552,505
1,724,601
75,560
1,800,161
524
524

1,359,187
502,226
245,762
2,107,175
523,450
1,583,725
81,968
1,665,693
524
524

42,730

16,073

71,157
862
23,994
26,346
25,980
36,285
882
23,949
252,185

63,949
2,879
22,515
12,027
23,742
36,161
1,904
1,540
23,468
204,258

29,320
111,664
858
7,730
39,326
4,092
192,990
2,245,860 $

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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December 31,
2017

24,862
143,105
2,784
8,163
36,077
4,421
219,412
2,089,887

CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)
(In Thousands, except share amounts)

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization (Note 9)
CH Energy Group Common Shareholders' Equity
Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $0.01 par value;
15,961,400 shares issued and outstanding)
Paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total Equity
Long-term debt (Note 10)
Principal amount
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Long-term debt less unamortized debt issuance costs
Total Capitalization
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 10)
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued vacation and payroll
Customer advances
Customer deposits
Regulatory liabilities (Note 4)
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 15)
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 13)
Accrued income and other taxes
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities - deferred OPEB costs (Note 4)
Regulatory liabilities - other (Note 4)
Operating reserves
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 15)
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 13)
Accrued pension costs (Note 11)
Tax reserve (Note 5)
Other liabilities
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note 5)
Commitments and Contingencies
Total Capitalization and Liabilities

December 31,
2018

$

$

160 $
380,036
315,379
(430)
695,145

160
343,036
279,836
623,032

659,215
(4,296)
654,919
1,350,064

582,822
(4,000)
578,822
1,201,854

28,607
53,269
6,831
9,955
10,143
7,563
99,320
2,135
23,309
5,661
36,429
283,222

31,503
48,620
6,454
9,008
13,922
8,414
5,489
1,764
27,592
24,078
176,844

23,183
293,346
5,171
23,664
32,765
7,675
23,278
409,082
203,492

35,945
402,948
4,697
2,011
26,920
20,172
4,301
24,250
521,244
189,945

2,245,860 $

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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December 31,
2017

2,089,887

CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY
(In Thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock

Balance at December 31, 2015
Net income
Capital contribution
Change in fair value: Investments
Dividends declared on common stock
Balance at December 31, 2016
Net income
Capital contribution
Change in fair value: Investments
Dividends declared on common stock
Balance at December 31, 2017
Net income
Capital contributions
Dividends declared on common stock
Employee future benefits
Balance at December 31, 2018

Shares Issued
15,961,400

CH Energy Group Common Shareholders

Amount
$

160

Paid-In Capital
$
335,906

$

Retained
Earnings
219,179
50,905

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income / (Loss)
$
194

130
(50)
15,961,400

$

160

$

336,036

$

(22,000)
248,084
53,752

$

(22,000)
279,836
57,543

$

144

7,000
(144)
15,961,400

$

160

$

343,036

$

-

$

(430)
(430)

37,000
(22,000)
15,961,400

$

160

$

380,036

$

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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315,379

Total Equity
555,439
50,905
130
(50)
(22,000)
$
584,424
53,752
7,000
(144)
(22,000)
$
623,032
57,543
37,000
(22,000)
(430)
$
695,145
$

CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF INCOME
(In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016

Operating Revenues
Electric
Natural gas
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Operation:
Purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation
Purchased natural gas
Other expenses of operation
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes, other than income tax
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Other Income and Deductions
Interest on regulatory assets and other interest income
Regulatory adjustments for interest costs
Other - net
Total Other Income(Expense)
Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt
Interest on regulatory liabilities and other interest
Total Interest Charges
Income Before Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense
Net Income

$

558,533
166,098
724,631

$

191,462
63,639
254,447
54,494
60,586
624,628
100,003

$

528,277
143,192
671,469

$

155,107
44,804
240,606
50,516
65,705
556,738
114,731

510,762
128,886
639,648
157,429
32,898
224,293
46,509
63,006
524,135
115,513

3,477
1,019
65
4,561

3,829
695
(2,110)
2,414

2,795
341
(3,989)
(853)

26,634
4,532
31,166
73,398
15,217
58,181

24,575
5,924
30,499
86,646
31,610
55,036

23,007
7,177
30,184
84,476
31,832
52,644

$

$

CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In Thousands)

Net Income
Other Comprehensive Loss:
Employee future benefits - net of tax expense of $153 for 2018, and $0 for
both 2017 and 2016
Total other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive Income

$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
58,181 $
55,036 $
52,644
(430)
(430)
57,751

$

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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55,036 $

52,644

CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Deferred income taxes - net
Bad debt expense
Pension expense
OPEB expense
Regulatory liability - rate moderation
Revenue decoupling mechanism recorded
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:
Accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and other receivables
Fuel, materials and supplies
Special deposits and prepayments
Income and other taxes
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Customer advances
Other advances
Pension plan contribution
OPEB contribution
Revenue decoupling mechanism collected/(refunded) - net
Regulatory asset - major storm
Regulatory asset - SIR
Regulatory asset - temporary state assessment
Regulatory liability - energy efficiency programs
Deferred natural gas and electric costs
Other - net
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing Activities:
Additions to utility plant
Other - net
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing Activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net change in short-term borrowings
Capital contribution
Dividends paid to parent - CH Energy Group
Other - net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Period
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash - End of Period
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized
Federal and state income taxes paid
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Accrued capital expenditures

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
$

58,181 $

52,644

47,398
7,096
5,618
4,799
13,399
(5,026)
(5,146)
15,058

44,695
5,821
31,355
3,196
15,483
(2,527)
(10,153)
(532)

41,985
4,524
34,726
4,181
15,549
(2,536)
(16,108)
14,952

(25,788)
(2,238)
(481)
11,015
(310)
380
(3,779)
8,777
(12,194)
(1,302)
(3,115)
(28,698)
(1,458)
496
8,182
13,643
24,538
129,045

(18,835)
267
(923)
3,415
3,560
649
(2,591)
11,049
(14,050)
(1,533)
(16,000)
(4,163)
1,684
2,376
31,102
(4,203)
20,708
154,886

(9,921)
(5,226)
(1,788)
29,576
5,589
311
(1,464)
(1,072)
(1,560)
(7,962)
(966)
(11,598)
784
29,967
(4,747)
15,619
185,459

(188,973)
(145)
(189,118)

(169,643)
2,121
(167,522)

(175,894)
3,266
(172,628)

$

(30,000)
105,000
11,500
(688)
85,812
25,739
14,607
40,346 $

(33,000)
60,000
(13,262)
(384)
13,354
718
13,889
14,607 $

(8,000)
54,000
(27,000)
(24,524)
(420)
(5,944)
6,887
7,002
13,889

$
$

25,365 $
- $

24,146 $
- $

22,750
913

$

19,342 $

14,575 $

10,604

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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55,036 $

CENTRAL HUDSON BALANCE SHEET
(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Utility Plant (Note 3)
Electric
Natural gas
Common
Gross Utility Plant
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Net
Construction work in progress
Net Utility Plant
Non-Utility Property and Plant
Net Non-Utility Property and Plant
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.7
million and $3.0 million, respectively. (Note 2)
Accrued unbilled utility revenues
Other receivables
Fuel, materials and supplies (Note 1)
Regulatory assets (Note 4)
Income tax receivable
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 15)
Special deposits and prepayments
Total Current Assets
Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Regulatory assets - deferred pension costs (Note 4)
Regulatory assets - other (Note 4)
Prefunded OPEB costs (Note 11)
Other investments (Note 16)
Other
Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Total Assets

December 31,
2018
$

$

1,443,152 $
566,197
267,757
2,277,106
552,505
1,724,601
75,560
1,800,161
524
524
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1,359,187
502,226
245,762
2,107,175
523,450
1,583,725
81,968
1,665,693
524
524

39,275

13,540

71,157
23,994
26,450
25,980
36,285
882
23,911
247,934

63,949
22,515
14,148
23,742
36,161
2,229
1,540
23,430
201,254

29,320
111,664
858
38,567
4,070
184,479
2,233,098 $

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.

December 31,
2017

24,862
143,105
2,784
35,305
4,455
210,511
2,077,982

CENTRAL HUDSON BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)
(In Thousands, except share amounts)

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization (Note 9)
Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $5 par value;
16,862,087 shares issued and outstanding)
Paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Capital stock expense
Total Equity
Long-term debt (Note 10)
Principal amount
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Long-term debt less unamortized debt issuance costs
Total Capitalization
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 10)
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued vacation and payroll
Customer advances
Customer deposits
Regulatory liabilities (Note 4)
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 15)
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 13)
Accrued income and other taxes
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities - deferred OPEB costs (Note 4)
Regulatory liabilities - other (Note 4)
Operating reserves
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 15)
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 13)
Accrued pension costs (Note 11)
Tax reserve (Note 5)
Other liabilities
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note 5)
Commitments and Contingencies
Total Capitalization and Liabilities

December 31,
2018

$

$

84,311 $
251,452
(430)
365,595
(4,633)
696,295

84,311
239,952
307,414
(4,633)
627,044

646,950
(4,231)
642,719
1,339,014

568,950
(3,926)
565,024
1,192,068

27,000
53,730
6,791
9,955
10,143
7,563
99,320
2,135
23,309
8,786
35,015
283,747

30,000
49,117
6,411
9,008
13,922
8,414
5,489
1,764
27,592
22,888
174,605

23,183
293,346
5,171
23,664
32,533
7,675
21,316
406,888
203,449

35,945
402,948
4,697
2,011
26,920
19,940
4,301
22,198
518,960
192,349

2,233,098 $

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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December 31,
2017

2,077,982

CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF EQUITY
(In Thousands, except share amounts)

Central Hudson Common Shareholders
Common Stock

Balance at December 31, 2015
Net income
Dividends declared on Common Stock to
parent - CH Energy Group
Balance at December 31, 2016
Net income
Dividends declared on Common Stock to
parent - CH Energy Group
Balance at December 31, 2017
Net income
Capital contributions
Employee future benefits
Balance at December 31, 2018

Shares Issued
16,862,087 $

Amount
Paid-In Capital
84,311 $
239,952 $

Capital Stock
Expense
(4,633) $

16,862,087 $

84,311 $

239,952 $

(4,633) $

16,862,087 $

84,311 $

239,952 $

(4,633) $

11,500
16,862,087 $

84,311 $

251,452 $

(4,633) $

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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Accumulated
Other
Retained
Comprehensive
Earnings
Income / (Loss)
Total Equity
237,520 $
- $
557,150
52,644
52,644
(24,524)
265,640 $
55,036
(13,262)
307,414 $
58,181
365,595 $

- $

- $

(430)
(430) $

(24,524)
585,270
55,036
(13,262)
627,044
58,181
11,500
(430)
696,295

NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Corporate Structure
CH Energy Group is the holding company parent corporation of four principal, wholly owned
subsidiaries, Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (“Central Hudson” or the “Company”),
Central Hudson Electric Transmission LLC (“CHET”), Central Hudson Enterprises Corporation
(“CHEC”) and Central Hudson Gas Transmission LLC (“CHGT”). CH Energy Group’s common
stock is indirectly owned by Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), which is a leader in the North American
regulated electric and gas utility industry. Central Hudson is a regulated electric and natural
gas transmission and distribution utility. CHET was formed to engage in Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) electric transmission projects and has a 6.1% ownership
interest in New York Transco LLC (“Transco”). In November 2018, Transco amended its
limited liability company agreement (“Transco Amendment”) to allow Transco to pursue
additional projects that might come out of future NYISO Public Policy Transmission Planning
Processes (“PPTP Process”). Under the Transco Amendment, CHET would have a 10%
ownership stake in transmission solutions related to future projects that result from future
PPTP Processes. CHET would also be allocated 10% of future development costs for any
new transmission projects as part of future PPTP Processes. In the first quarter of 2016,
CHGT was formed to hold CH Energy Group’s ownership stake in possible gas transmission
pipeline opportunities in New York State. As of December 31, 2018 there has been no activity
in CHGT. CHEC has ownership interests in certain non-regulated subsidiaries that are less
than 100% owned.
Basis of Presentation
This Annual Financial Report is a combined report of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson.
The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements apply to both CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson. CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts
of CH Energy Group and its wholly owned subsidiaries, which include Central Hudson, CHET,
CHGT and CHEC. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
CHEC’s investments in limited partnerships (“Partnerships”) and limited liability companies and
CHET’s investment in Transco are accounted for under the equity method. CHEC’s
proportionate share of the change in fair value of available-for-sale securities held by the
Partnerships is recorded in CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), which for regulated utilities,
includes specific accounting guidance for regulated operations.
Regulatory Accounting Policies
Regulated companies, such as Central Hudson, defer costs and credits on the balance sheet
as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that those costs and credits will be
recoverable through the rate-making process in a period different from when they otherwise
would have been reflected in income. For Central Hudson, these deferred regulatory assets
and liabilities, and the related deferred taxes, are recovered from or reimbursed to customers
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either by offset as directed by the New York State Public Service Commission (“PSC” or
“Commission”), through an approved surcharge mechanism or through incorporation in the
determination of revenue requirement used to set new rates. Changes in regulatory assets
and liabilities are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Income in the period in which the
amounts are recovered through a surcharge or are reflected in rates. Current accounting
practices reflect the regulatory accounting authorized in Central Hudson’s most recent rate
order. See Note 4 – “Regulatory Matters” for additional information regarding regulatory
accounting.
Rates, Revenues, and Cost Adjustment Mechanisms
Central Hudson’s electric and natural gas retail rates are regulated by the PSC. Transmission
rates, facilities charges, and rates for electricity sold for resale in interstate commerce are
regulated by the FERC.
Central Hudson’s tariffs for retail electric and natural gas service include purchased electricity
and purchased natural gas cost adjustment mechanisms by which electric and natural gas
rates are adjusted to recover the actual purchased electricity and purchased natural gas costs
including hedging costs incurred in providing these services. In addition, the tariffs include
adjustment mechanisms to recover from or refund to customers certain costs that have been
deferred and incentives earned related to Earnings Adjustment Mechanisms (“EAMs”) and
Non-Wire Alternatives (“NWA”), and other specified accumulated deferred balances as defined
in the 2018 Rate Order.
Central Hudson’s delivery rate structure includes Revenue Decoupling Mechanisms (“RDMs”),
which generally provide the ability to record revenues equal to those authorized by the PSC
and used for the development of rates for most of Central Hudson’s customers.
Use of Estimates
Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP includes the use of estimates
and assumptions by management that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and the
disclosures of the contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. As with all
estimates, actual results may differ from those estimated.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Central Hudson delivers electric and gas energy services to residential and non-residential
customers based on approved tariff rates. Central Hudson records revenue as electric and
natural gas is delivered based on either the customers’ meter read or estimated usage for the
month, an output measure of progress based on kWh or Ccf delivered. Customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by Central Hudson. Revenue
consists of a fixed customer charge and a charge per kWh or Ccf, that is fixed at the time of
delivery. Additionally, non-residential electric service customers pay a per KW demand charge
which is also fixed at the time of delivery. Customers within Central Hudson’s service territory
can elect to purchase the commodity from Central Hudson or a retail marketer. Amounts billed
to customers are due within 20 days from the date the bill was rendered, and any payment not
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received by the due date is considered delinquent and incurs a late payment fee. All
performance obligations are satisfied for tariff sales.
Central Hudson records an estimate of unbilled revenue for service rendered to customers
subsequent to their billing date and through the end of the month. Unbilled revenues are
dependent upon a number of factors that require management’s judgment including estimates
of retail sales and customer usage patterns.
Central Hudson receives payments from certain customers based on a predetermined budget
billing schedule. Budget billing does not represent a contract asset or liability but rather just a
receivable/liability because there are no further performance obligations required to be
satisfied before the Company has the right to collect/refund the customer’s consideration.
Consideration is due when control of the energy is transferred to the customer and is satisfied
with the passage of time. Budget billing liability balances are recorded within the customer
advances line item in the balance sheet.
Alternative Revenues
In accordance with Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 980, and as authorized by the
PSC, Central Hudson records alternative revenues in response to past activities or completed
events, if certain criteria are met. Central Hudson has identified alternative revenue programs
in both its electric and natural gas revenues. Alternative revenues are generally intended to
compensate a regulated utility for fluctuations in revenue due to weather abnormalities,
external factors and demand side initiatives promoted by the regulator, as well as incentive
awards if the utility achieves certain objectives, such as reducing costs, reaching specified
milestones, or improving customer service. Central Hudson recognizes alternative revenues
when the criteria associated with the mechanism and ASC 980 have been met and not when
billed to customers.
Other Revenues
Other revenues, which are not contract revenues, consist of pole attachment rents, finance
charges, miscellaneous fees and other revenue adjustments. Included in other revenue
adjustments is the reversal of previously recognized deferrals as they are billed
(collected/refunded to customers) pursuant to PSC Orders.
Customer Assistance Programs
Central Hudson provides discounts through certain customer assistance programs intended to
help low to moderate income families manage their energy burden as prescribed in the 2018
Order with a full deferral mechanism. Discounts available under these programs are
determined at the time the performance obligation is satisfied and are recorded as an expense
to match revenue collected in rates for the benefit of eligible customers.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson consider temporary cash investments with a maturity
(when purchased) of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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Restricted Cash
Restricted cash primarily consists of cash collected from developers and held in escrow related
to a potential System Deliverability Upgrade project pursuant to terms and conditions of the
New York Independent System Operator’s (“NYISO”) Open Access Transmission Tariff. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 restricted cash was approximately $1.1 million and was included
in the CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s Balance Sheets in “Other – long-term assets”.
The following tables provide a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
reported as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 within the Statements of Financial Position for CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson that sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in
the corresponding Statements of Cash Flows.
CH Energy Group
(In Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash included in other long-term assets
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash shown in the
statement of cash flows

December 31,
2018
$
42,730
1,071

December 31,
2017
$
16,073
1,067

$

$

43,801

17,140

Central Hudson
(In Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash included in other long-term assets
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash shown in the
statement of cash flows

December 31,
2018
$
39,275
1,071

December 31,
2017
$
13,540
1,067

$

$

40,346

14,607

Accounts Receivable
Receivables are carried at net realizable value. The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects
management’s best estimate of uncollectible accounts receivable balances. Estimates for
uncollectible accounts are based on customer accounts receivable aging data, as well as,
consideration of various quantitative and qualitative factors, including special collection issues.
Interest can be charged on accounts receivable balances that have been outstanding for more
than 20 days.
Fuel, Materials & Supplies
The following is a summary of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s inventory of Fuel,
Materials & Supplies valued using the average cost method (In Thousands):
December 31,
December 31,
2018
2017
$
5,369 $
5,075
462
441
20,149
18,226
$
25,980 $
23,742

Natural gas
Fuel used in electric generation
Materials and supplies
Total
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Utility Plant - Central Hudson
The regulated assets of Central Hudson include electric, natural gas and common assets,
which are listed under the heading “Utility Plant” on CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet and Central Hudson’s Balance Sheet. The accumulated depreciation associated with
these regulated assets is also reported on the Balance Sheets.
The cost of additions to utility plant and replacements of retired units of property are capitalized
at original cost. Capitalized costs include labor, materials and supplies, indirect charges for
such items as transportation, certain administrative costs, certain taxes, pension and other
employee benefits, and allowances for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”); less
contributions in aid of construction.
AFUDC is defined as the net cost of borrowed funds used for construction purposes and a
reasonable rate on other funds when so used. The concurrent credit for the amount so
capitalized is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Income as follows: the portion
applicable to borrowed funds is reported as a reduction of interest charges while the portion
applicable to other funds (the equity component) is reported as other income. The AFUDC rate
was 6.0% in 2018, 6.1% in 2017 and 5.7% in 2016.
The replacement of minor items of property is included in operating expenses.
The original cost of property, together with removal cost less salvage, is charged to
accumulated depreciation at the time the property is retired and removed from service as
required by the PSC.
For additional information see Note 3 – “Utility Plant – Central Hudson.”
Depreciation and Amortization
Central Hudson’s depreciation and amortization provisions are computed on the straight-line
method using PSC approved rates. The anticipated costs of removing assets upon retirement
are generally provided for over the life of those assets as a component of depreciation
expense and, for regulatory reporting purposes, is reflected in accumulated depreciation until
the costs are incurred, which is consistent with industry practice. Current accounting guidance
related to asset retirement precludes the recognition of expected future retirement obligations
as a component of depreciation expense or accumulated depreciation. Central Hudson,
however, is required to use depreciation methods and rates approved by the PSC under
regulatory accounting. These depreciation rates include a charge for the cost of future
removal and retirement of fixed assets. Central Hudson reclassifies cost of removal recovered
in excess of amounts incurred to date from accumulated depreciation to regulatory liabilities for
presentation in its Balance Sheet in accordance with GAAP.
Central Hudson performs depreciation studies periodically and, upon approval by the PSC,
adjusts the depreciation rates of its various classes of depreciable property. Central Hudson’s
composite rates for depreciation, inclusive of intangible amortization, were 2.75% in 2018 and
2017 and 2.71% in 2016 of the original average cost of depreciable property. The ratio of the
amount of accumulated depreciation to the original cost of depreciable property at December
31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 was 24.5%, 25.1% and 25.6%, respectively.
- 17 -

Asset Retirement Obligations
Central Hudson records Asset Retirement Obligations (“AROs”) for the incremental removal
costs, resulting from legal and environmental obligations associated with the retirement of
certain utility plant assets, as a liability at fair value with a corresponding increase to utility
capital assets, in the period in which the costs are known and estimable. The fair value of
AROs is based on an estimate of the present value of expected future cash outlays,
discounted at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate. AROs are adjusted at the end of each
reporting period to accrete the liability for the passage of time and record any changes in the
estimated future cash flows of the incremental obligation. Accretion and depreciation expense
associated with AROs are recorded as regulatory assets. Actual costs incurred reduce the
liability. The regulatory assets for accretion and depreciation are recovered through the
accumulated depreciation reserve upon retirement of the asset.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Central Hudson reviews long-lived assets for impairment, at least annually. Asset-impairment
testing at the regulated utilities is carried out at the enterprise level to determine if assets are
impaired. The recovery of regulated assets’ carrying value, including a fair rate of return, is
provided through customer electricity and natural gas delivery rates approved by the PSC.
The net cash flows for regulated entities are not asset-specific, but are pooled for the entire
regulated utility.
Operating Leases
CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries recognize operating lease payments as an expense in
the Statement of Income on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Research and Development
Central Hudson is engaged in the conduct and support of research and development (“R&D”)
activities that are focused on the improvement of existing energy technologies and the
development of new technologies for the delivery and customer use of energy. R&D
expenditures are provided for in Central Hudson’s rates charged to customers for electric and
natural gas delivery service, with any differences between actual R&D expense and the rate
allowances deferred for future recovery from or return to customers. See Note 7 – “Research
and Development” for additional details.
Debt Issuance Costs
Expenses incurred in connection with CH Energy Group’s or Central Hudson’s debt issuance
and any discount or premium on debt are deferred and amortized over the lives of the related
issues. When long-term debt is reacquired or redeemed, regulatory accounting permits
deferral of related unamortized debt expense and reacquisition costs. These costs are
amortized over the remaining life of the original life of the debt issue retired. The amortization
of debt costs for reacquired debt is incorporated in the revenue requirement for delivery rates
as authorized by the PSC. See Note 10 – “Capitalization – Long-Term Debt” for additional
details.
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Income Tax
CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries file consolidated federal income tax returns with
FortisUS Inc. (“FortisUS”) and, depending on the state, either standalone or consolidated state
income tax returns. Income taxes are deferred for all temporary differences between the
financial statement and the tax basis of assets and liabilities, under the asset and liability
method in accordance with current accounting guidance for income taxes. Certain deferred
income taxes are recorded with offsetting regulatory assets or liabilities by Central Hudson to
recognize that income taxes will be recovered or refunded through future rates. For federal
and state income tax purposes, CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries use an accelerated
method of depreciation and generally use the shortest life permitted for each class of assets.
Central Hudson follows the normalization method of accounting, which spreads the tax
benefits associated with utility assets over the same time period that the costs of those assets
are recovered from customers. Normalization is required as a prerequisite for utilities claiming
accelerated depreciation and certain tax credits. Deferred investment tax credits are
amortized over the estimated life of the properties giving rise to the credits. For state income
tax purposes, Central Hudson uses book depreciation for property placed in service in 1999 or
earlier in accordance with transition property rules under Article 9-A of the New York State Tax
Law. See Note 5 – “Income Tax” for additional information regarding income taxes and tax
reform.
Post-Employment and Other Benefits
Central Hudson sponsors a noncontributory Retirement Income Plan (“Retirement Plan”) for all
management, professional and supervisory employees hired before January 1, 2008 and for all
Union employees hired before May 1, 2008. Benefits are based on years of service and
compensation. Central Hudson also provides Other Post-Employment Benefits plans, which
include certain health care and life insurance benefits for retirees hired within the same time
periods as stated above. Additionally, Central Hudson maintains a Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan (“SERP”) for certain members of management.
Central Hudson recognizes any underfunded status of the Retirement Plan and SERP
(collectively “Pension”) and OPEB defined benefit plans as a liability on its balance sheet. The
underfunded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of qualified plans’
assets and the projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) for the plans. The SERP is a non-qualified
plan under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act guidelines and therefore, although
funded annually to achieve 110% of the plan’s accumulated benefit obligation, the trust assets
of this plan are not included in the calculation of the funded status for accounting purposes.
The Pension status includes the SERP PBO although it does not take into consideration the
SERP trust assets. Central Hudson recognizes a regulatory asset for the portion of the
underfunded amount that is probable of recovery from customers in future rates. The amounts
reported as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, relates to a former
Central Hudson employee that transferred to an affiliate company but continues to accrue
benefits in Central Hudson’s Retirement Plan and SERP. The related amounts will be charged
to and reimbursed by the affiliate company in future periods.
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Pension and OPEB benefit expenses are determined by actuarial valuations based on
assumptions that Central Hudson evaluates at least annually. The PSC has authorized
deferral accounting treatment for any variations between actual Pension and OPEB expenses
and the amount included in the current delivery rate structure.
Any unamortized balances related to net actuarial gains and losses, past service costs and
transitional obligations, which are recoverable from Central Hudson customers and would
otherwise be recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income are subject to deferral
accounting treatment.
Central Hudson also sponsors a contributory 401(k) retirement plan (“401(k) plan”) for its
employees. The 401(k) plan provides for employee tax-deferred salary deductions for
participating employees, as well as, employer contributions.
For more information see Note 11 – “Post-Employment Benefits”.
Additionally, Central Hudson sponsors a contributory Deferred Compensation Plan (“Deferred
Compensation Plan”) for certain members of management and members of the Central
Hudson Board of Directors. Although the Deferred Compensation Plan is a non-qualified plan,
Central Hudson has established a trust for funding the associated liability to participants. For
more information, see Note 16 – “Other Fair Value Measurements”.
Equity-Based Compensation
Officers of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson were granted Share Unit Plan shares
(“SUPs”) under various plans as part of the officer’s long-term incentives. Compensation
expense and the related liability associated with the SUPs is recorded based on the fair value
at each reporting date until settlement, reflecting expected future payout and time elapsed
within the terms of the award, typically at the end of the three year vesting period. The fair
value of the SUPs’ liability is based on Fortis’ common share 5 day volume weighted average
trading price at the end of each reporting period. CH Energy Group and Central Hudson have
elected to recognize forfeitures when they occur due to the limited number of participants in
the equity-based compensation plans. For more information, see Note 12 – “Equity-Based
Compensation”.
Common Stock Dividends
CH Energy Group’s ability to pay dividends is affected by the ability of its subsidiaries to pay
dividends. The Federal Power Act limits the payment of annual dividends by Central Hudson
to its retained earnings. More restrictive is the PSC’s limit on the dividends Central Hudson
may pay to CH Energy Group. See Note 9 – “Capitalization-Common and Preferred Stock” for
additional information. CH Energy Group’s other subsidiaries do not have express restrictions
on their ability to pay dividends.
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Derivatives
From time to time, Central Hudson enters into derivative contracts in conjunction with the
Company’s enterprise risk management program to hedge certain risk exposures related to its
business operations. Central Hudson uses derivative contracts to reduce the impact of volatility
in the supply prices of natural gas and electricity and to hedge exposure to volatility in interest
rates for its variable rate long-term debt. Central Hudson records all derivatives at fair value
with certain exceptions including those derivatives that qualify for the normal purchase
exception. The fair value of derivative instruments are estimates of the amounts that Central
Hudson would receive or have to pay to terminate the outstanding contracts at the balance
sheet dates.
Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative instruments are conveyed to or
recovered from customers through PSC-authorized deferral accounting mechanisms, with no
material impact on cash flows, results of operations or liquidity. Realized gains and losses on
Central Hudson’s energy derivative instruments and all associated costs are reported as part
of purchased natural gas, purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation in CH
Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s Statements of Income as the corresponding amounts
are either recovered from or returned to customers through fuel cost adjustment mechanisms
in revenues. See Note 15 – “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for
further details.
Normal Purchases and Normal Sales
Central Hudson enters into forward energy purchase contracts, including options, with
counterparties that have generating capacity to support current load forecasts or
counterparties that can meet Central Hudson’s load serving obligations. Central Hudson has
elected the normal purchase exception for these contracts, which are not required to be
measured at fair value and are accounted for on an accrual basis. Central Hudson currently
does not enter into generation sales contracts. See Note 13 – “Commitments and
Contingencies” for further details.
Reclassification
Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statements and in Note 14 – “Segments and
Related Information” have been reclassified to conform to the 2018 presentation on CH Energy
Group and Central Hudson’s financial statements. These reclassifications had no effect on the
reported results of operations.
In 2018, the Company made a change in policy election to classify its short-term borrowings in
the Statement of Cash Flows as net. Previously, short-term advances and repayments on
short-term borrowings were shown gross. This change in reporting had no effect on previously
reported cash flows from investing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows.
In accordance with the adoption of Accounting Standard Update (“ASU”) No. 2017-07
Presentation of Pension Costs, the non-service cost component was reclassified from
Operating Expenses to Other – net for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31,
2016 for CH Energy Group and Central Hudson in both the Statements of Income and in the
related segment note.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Policies
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Effective January 1, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted ASU 2014-09
(“ASC 606”), using the modified retrospective approach, which requires recognition of revenue
when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to receive. The Company continues to recognize
revenue for tariff-based commodity and delivery sales to retail and wholesale customers, which
represent its primary source of revenue, as the related commodity is delivered. Prior period
revenues have not been adjusted and continue to be reported under ASC Topic 605. There
was no adjustment identified or recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings upon
adoption. The guidance requires disclosure of the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers and that the presentation of
alternative revenue programs be separate from revenue from contracts with customers.
Central Hudson has applied the practical expedient to consideration received from customers
on a billing schedule and has not adjusted the promised amount for the effect of a significant
finance component because the period between a transfer of goods or services will be one
year or less. Due to the use of the practical expedient, the Company does not consider the
consideration received from customers to have a significant financing element. See Note 2 “Revenue and Receivables” for additional disclosure related to CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson’s operating revenues and accounts receivables.
As part of the implementation of ASC 606, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson made an
accounting policy election to report revenues net of utility taxes. The following summary
shows the effect of the accounting change to CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s income
statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 had the accounting policy
election been applied retrospectively:

CH Energy Group

Year Ended December 31, 2017
As
Reported

Operating revenues
$
Taxes, other than income tax $
Net income
$

Central Hudson

Operating revenues
$
Taxes, other than income tax $
Net income
$

671,469 $
65,792 $
53,752 $

Adoption of
ASU 2014-09

Year Ended December 31, 2016

As
Adjusted

(7,648) $
(7,648) $
- $

663,821
58,144
53,752

As
Reported
$
$
$

Year Ended December 31, 2017
As
Adoption of
As
Reported
ASU 2014-09
Adjusted
671,469 $
65,705 $
55,036 $

(7,648) $
(7,648) $
- $
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663,821
58,057
55,036

639,648 $
63,367 $
50,905 $

Adoption of
ASU 2014-09
(7,532) $
(7,532) $
- $

As
Adjusted
632,116
55,835
50,905

Year Ended December 31, 2016
As
Adoption of
As
Reported
ASU 2014-09
Adjusted
$
$
$

639,648 $
63,006 $
52,644 $

(7,532) $
(7,532) $
- $

632,116
55,474
52,644

Financial Instruments
Effective January 1, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted ASU No. 2016-01,
2018-03 and 2018-04. These ASUs amend the guidance on the classification, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. Although this standard retains many
current requirements, it significantly revises an entity’s accounting related to (1) the
classification and measurement of investments in equity securities and (2) the presentation of
certain fair value changes for financial liabilities measured at fair value. This standard also
amends certain disclosure requirements associated with the fair value of financial instruments.
The adoption of these ASUs was applied prospectively. There was no material impact on the
financial condition, results of operation or cash flows of CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries
upon adoption.
Statement of Cash Flows
Effective January 1, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted ASU No. 2016-15
and 2016-18. ASU No. 2016-15 amends Topic 230 that lacked consistent principles for
evaluating the classification of cash payments and receipts in the statement of cash flows,
which led to diversity in practice and, in certain circumstances, financial statement
restatements. The amendments in this standard address eight specific cash flow issues and
apply to all entities that are required to present a statement of cash flows under Topic 230. ASU
No. 2016-18 requires that an entity include in its cash and cash-equivalent balances in the
statement of cash flows those amounts that are deemed to be restricted cash and restricted
cash equivalents. These updates were applied retrospectively. The Company reclassified $1.1
million of “Restricted cash” previously included in “Other – long-term assets” to “Cash, Cash
equivalents and restricted cash” at December 31, 2017 in the CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Statements of Cash Flows.
Presentation of Pension Costs
Effective January 1, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted ASU No. 2017-07
which amended Topic 715 requiring that an employer report the service cost component in the
same line item or items as other compensation costs arising from services rendered by the
pertinent employees during the period and all other components of net periodic benefit cost be
presented in the income statement separately from the service cost component and outside a
subtotal of income from operations. The amendment also allows only the service cost
component to be eligible for capitalization when applicable. Effective January 1, 2018, CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson present the non-service cost component as part of nonoperating income and expenses, within the “Other – net” line of the CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson’s income statements for reporting under GAAP. However the non-service cost
component will continue to be reported as a component of operating expense for regulatory
purposes and will be fully collectible from customers as authorized by the PSC. As such, there
will be no impact on net income during the remaining term of the current rate plan. In addition,
effective January 1, 2018, Central Hudson modified its capitalization policy to only capitalize a
portion of the service cost components. Impacts to operating expenses, capital expenditures
or rate base were incorporated in rates effective July 1, 2018. The amendment was adopted
retrospectively for the income statement presentation of service costs, and prospectively for
the capitalization of benefit costs. The non-service cost component reclassified from operating
expenses to “Other – net” for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 for CH Energy
Group and Central Hudson were $2.6 and $4.8 million, respectively.
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Compensation - Stock Compensation
Effective January 1, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted ASU No. 2017-09.
ASU No. 2017-09 amends Topic 718 providing guidance about which changes to the terms or
conditions of a share-based payment award require an entity to apply modification accounting.
The amendment was applied prospectively to an award modified on or after the adoption date.
There was no impact on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of CH Energy
Group and its subsidiaries upon adoption.
Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal Use Software
Effective October 1, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted prospectively ASU
No. 2018-15, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal Use Software which allows
companies to “capitalize” costs incurred to implement a hosting arrangement, which is
classified as a service contract, to prepaid assets based on the guidance for capitalizing
implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software (ASC 350-40). A
hosting arrangement exists when a company pays a fee to access and use software that it
does not have physical possession of. These arrangements will be classified as service
contracts under the accounting guidance if the company does not have a software license and
does not have the legal and physical ability to take possession and run the software. The
annual service arrangement fees will be recorded to operating expense based on the term of
the arrangement. The implementation costs, recorded as prepaid assets, will be amortized to
operating expense over the useful life of the software service, which takes into consideration
items other than the term of the arrangement. In accordance with this update, and as
authorized in Case 17-E-0459 and 17-G-0460, the Company will apply deferral accounting for
costs related to software purchases that must be accounted for as a service agreement
recorded to prepaid assets and operating expense rather than plant in service and
amortization expense, including an adjustment to net plant targets. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson entered into one hosting
arrangement that is considered a service contract, which is still in its application development
phase and implementation costs capitalized are not material.

Note 2 - Revenues and Receivables
Central Hudson disaggregates revenue by segment (electric and natural gas operations) and
by revenue type, revenue from contract with customers, alternative revenue programs and
other revenue.
Revenue from Contract with Customers
Central Hudson records revenue as electricity and natural gas is delivered based on either the
customers’ meter read or estimated usage for the month. For full service customers, this
includes delivery and supply of electricity and natural gas. For retail choice customers, this
includes delivery only as these customers purchase supply from a retail marketer. Sales and
usage-based taxes are excluded from revenues. Central Hudson has applied the practical
expedient to consideration received from customers on a billing schedule and has not adjusted
the promised amount for the effect of a significant finance component because the period
between a transfer of goods or services will be one year or less.
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Alternative Revenues
Central Hudson’s alternative revenue programs include: electric and natural gas RDMs, Gas
Merchant Function Charge lost revenue, Empire-Zone lost revenue and revenue requirement
effect for incremental leak prone pipe miles replaced above the PSC targets and Reforming
Energy Vision (“REV”) Orders. In addition, Central Hudson recognizes target based alternative
revenue programs for reduced service terminations, gas expansion performance, gas
infrastructure enhancements, and energy efficiency incentives when targets are met.
Other Revenues
Other revenues consist of pole attachment rents, finance charges, miscellaneous fees and
other revenue adjustments. Included in other revenue adjustments are changes to regulatory
deferral balances to reverse the impact of refunds/(collections) of previously recognized
deferrals and negative revenue adjustments (“NRAs”) pursuant to PSC Orders.
The following summary presents CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s operating
revenues disaggregated by segment and revenue source for the years ended December 31,
2018, 2017 and 2016 (In Thousands):

Electric
Revenues from Contract with Customers (ASC 606)
Alternative Revenues (Non ASC 606)
Other Revenue Adjustments (Non ASC 606)
Total Operating Revenues Electric
Natural Gas
Revenues from Contract with Customers (ASC 606)
Alternative Revenues (Non ASC 606)
Other Revenue Adjustments (Non ASC 606)
Total Operating Revenues Natural Gas

$

$
$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017 (1)
2016 (1)
$
495,945
$
499,994
574,908
1,049
(10,871)
(15,506)
31,283
21,639
(869)
558,533 $ 528,277 $ 510,762
169,159
5,299
(8,360)
166,098

$

$

142,054
3,758
(2,620)
143,192

$

$

125,799
(834)
3,921
128,886

(1)

Effective January 2018, the Company made an accounting policy election to present revenues, net of utility taxes prospectively, with no
impact to net income. Utility taxes included in revenue for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were approximately $7.6 million and
$7.5 million, respectively.

The increase in electric revenues from contract with customers is primarily due to the increase
in recovery of commodity costs, higher sales and an increase in customer delivery rates as
prescribed in the 2018 and 2015 Rate Orders. The decrease in electric alternative revenues is
primarily due to RDM adjustments to reduce revenues as higher sales resulted in revenues
exceeding the prescribed PSC targets in 2018 and 2016. This decrease was partially offset in
2018 by incentives earned related to NWA and EAMs. Other revenues decreased due to the
deferral in 2018 to preserve the benefits of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for customers, deferrals
resulting from not achieving the electric service interruption and net plant and depreciation
targets, and the accounting policy change to present revenues net of utility taxes, partially
offset by the refund of electric bill credits. The increase in other revenues for 2017 is a result of
the refund to customers of the 2016 RDM over collection balance, electric bill credits and
electric sales for resale.
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The increase in gas revenues from contract with customers is primarily due to the recovery of
commodity costs, higher sales, and the increase in customer delivery rates as prescribed in
the 2018 and 2015 Rate Orders. The increase in alternative revenues is primarily due to
incentives earned related to reduced service terminations, emergency response time, gas leak
reduction and excavation damages. Other revenues decreased due to the deferral in 2018 to
preserve the benefits of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for customers, the regulatory deferrals
resulting from not achieving net plant and depreciation targets, and the accounting policy
change to present revenues net of utility taxes, partially offset by gas bill credits refunded to
customers.
Accounts Receivables
The following is a summary of activity related to accounts receivable balances for CH Energy
Group and Central Hudson as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (In Thousands):

Balance at Beginning Period - Net of Allowance
Billed to Customers/Adjustments
Customer Payments
Bad Debt Write-Offs - Net
Change in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Balance at End of Period - Net of Allowance
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December 31,
2018
$
63,949
812,755
(800,748)
(5,099)
300

December 31,
2017
$
58,146
701,054
(692,055)
(4,296)
1,100

$

$

71,157

63,949

NOTE 3 – Utility Plant - Central Hudson
The following summarizes the type and amount of assets included in the electric, natural gas,
and common categories of Central Hudson’s utility plant balances (In Thousands):
Estimated
Depreciable
Life in
Years

Electric:
Production
Transmission
Distribution
Other
Total
Natural Gas:
Transmission
Distribution
Other
Total
Common:
Land and Structures
Office and Other Equipment, Radios and Tools
Transportation Equipment
Other
Total
Gross Utility Plant
(1)

25-85
30-90
7-80
40
19-85
28-95
N/A
50
8-35
10-12
3-10

Utility Plant
December 31, December 31,
2018
2017
(1)

$

$
(1)

$
$
$

$
$

39,691
388,609
1,009,086
5,766
1,443,152

$

58,720
507,035
442
566,197

$

79,232
61,279
67,069
60,177
267,757
2,277,106

$

$

$

$
$

39,553
347,094
966,797
5,742
1,359,187
57,310
444,474
442
502,226
76,172
54,162
63,335
52,093
245,762
2,107,175

Effective July 1, 2018, the PSC approved 2018 Rate Order included an extension of the useful lives of certain utility plant assets, therefore
depreciable lives reported prior to July 1, 2018 will not correspond to the depreciable life stated.

For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 the borrowed component of funds
used during construction and recorded as a reduction of interest expense was $1.1 million,
$0.8 million and $0.7 million, respectively, and the equity component reported as other income
was $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, $1.6 million in 2017 and $1.5 million
in 2016.
Included in the Net Utility Plant balance of $1.8 billion and $1.7 billion at December 31, 2018
and 2017 is $91.8 million and $80.9 million of intangible utility plant assets, comprised primarily
of computer software costs, land, transmission and water rights, and the related accumulated
amortization of $44.1 million and $37.0 million, respectively. Amortization expense is
estimated to average approximately $5.0 million annually for each of the next five years.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, Central Hudson has reclassified from utility plant assets
$44.1 million and $45.7 million, respectively, of cost of removal recovered through the ratemaking process in excess of amounts incurred to date as a regulatory liability.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, ARO’s for Central Hudson were approximately $0.8
million and $1.1 million, respectively. These amounts have been classified in the above chart
under “Electric - Other” and “Common - Other” based on the nature of the ARO and are
reflected as “Other - long-term liabilities” in the CH Energy Group and Central Hudson Balance
Sheets.
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NOTE 4 – Regulatory Matters
Summary of Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Based on previous, existing or expected regulatory orders or decisions, the following table sets
forth amounts that are expected to be recovered from, or refunded to customers in future
periods (In Thousands):
Regulatory Assets:
Deferred purchased electric costs (Note 1)
Deferred purchased natural gas costs (Note 1)
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - Electric (Note 15)
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - Natural Gas (Note 15)
Regulatory Adjustment Mechanism ("RAM") - Electric
RDM and carrying charges - Electric
RDM and carrying charges - Natural gas
Reforming the Energy Vision and carrying charges
Deferred debt expense on re-acquired debt (Note 1)
Deferred and accrued costs - SIR (Note 13)
Deferred storm costs and carrying charges
Deferred vacation pay accrual
Other
Total current regulatory assets
Deferred pension costs (Note 11)
Carrying charges - pension reserve
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - Electric (Note 15)
Deferred and accrued costs - SIR and carrying charges (Note 13)
Regulatory Adjustment Mechanism - Electric
Deferred debt expense on re-acquired debt (Note1)
Income taxes recoverable through future rates
Tax reform - unprotected impacts (Note 5)
Reforming the Energy Vision and carrying charges
Deferred storm costs and carrying charges
Other
Carrying charges balancing
Total long-term regulatory assets
Total Regulatory Assets
Regulatory Liabilities:
Rate moderator - Electric and carrying charges
Rate moderator - Natural Gas and carrying charges
RDM and carrying charges - Electric
Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives - Electric (Note 15)
Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives - Natural Gas (Note 15)
Energy efficiency programs
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability (Note 5)
Total current regulatory liabilities
Rate moderator - Electric
Rate moderator - Natural Gas
Customer benefit fund
Deferred cost of removal (Note 3)
Income taxes refundable through future rates
Deferred OPEB costs (Note 11)
Carrying charges - OPEB reserve
Deferred property taxes and carrying charges
Deferred unbilled electric and natural gas revenues
Energy efficiency programs and carrying charges
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability (Note 5)
Other
Carrying charges balancing
Total long-term regulatory liabilities
Total Regulatory Liabilities
Net Regulatory Liabilities
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December 31,
2018

$

$
$

$
$
$

$
$

$
$
$

1,637
3,057
2,135
4,436
2,445
2,113
521
8,471
1,558
7,981
1,931
36,285
29,320
45,092
4,364
2,377
18,168
13,688
7,379
16,039
4,917
(360)
140,984
177,269
7,563
3,661
13,690
711
171
66,976
6,548
99,320
26,853
5,680
2,602
44,119
5,865
23,183
5,082
7,358
187,965
8,182
(360)
316,529
415,849
(238,580)

December 31,
2017

$

(4)

(2)(4)
(2)(4)
(2)
(5)

$
$

(2)(4)

(2)(4)
(2)(4)
(2)
(3)

$
$
(2)(4)
(2)(4)

(2)
(2)

$

$
$

(5)

(4)
(2)(4)
(3)

$
$
$

7,808
10,529
1,256
509
380
347
521
3,315
346
7,463
3,687
36,161
24,862
4,148
2,011
56,458
2,897
24,387
23,267
9,138
8,531
17,168
(4,900)
167,967
204,128
1,008
2,942
1,539
5,489
36,372
5,944
2,902
45,665
17,690
35,945
6,404
5,181
5,082
64,130
198,576
19,902
(4,900)
438,893
444,382
(240,254)

(1)

(1)

(1) This amount represents December 31, 2017 estimated netting on the balance sheet of carrying charges to be collected through offset
against regulatory liabilities in the 2018 Rate Order.
(2) Central Hudson offset all or a portion of certain regulatory assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2018 in accordance with the PSC
prescribed 2018 Rate Order issued on June 14, 2018.
(3) This amount represents the December 31, 2018 estimated netting on the balance sheet of carrying charges to be offset against regulatory
liabilities and collected through a regulatory mechanism beginning July 1, 2019.
(4) These amounts exclude carrying charges as of December 31, 2018 as these were offset and are reported in the RAM line as prescribed
in the 2018 Rate Order.
(5) In accordance with the 2018 Rate Order, carrying charges related to the Pension and OPEB reserves are included in rates and no longer
accrued separately.

The significant regulatory assets and liabilities include:
Deferred Property Taxes: The 2015 and 2018 Rate Orders authorized Central Hudson to defer
90% of the difference between actual property taxes including school, city, town and village
and the amount included in rates.
Rate Moderator – Electric and Natural Gas: Under the terms of the 2015 and 2018 Rate
Orders, certain regulatory assets and liabilities were identified for offset and a regulatory
liability was established with the net balance, which will be used for future customer rate
moderation (“Rate Moderator”). In addition, the Orders required Central Hudson to defer
Danskammer Generating Station delivery revenues for future natural gas Rate Moderation.
The current portion of the Rate Moderator represents the amount estimated to be used for rate
moderation in the next twelve months related to customer electric and natural gas bill credits
as prescribed in the 2015 and 2018 Rate Order.
Revenue Decoupling Mechanism: Central Hudson’s delivery rate structure includes RDMs,
which provide the ability to record revenues equal to those forecasted in the development of
current rates for most of Central Hudson’s customers. The difference between actual
revenues and forecasted revenues are deferred for future recovery from or refund to
customers with the deferred balance subject to carrying charges at the Other Customer
Deposit Rate approved annually by the PSC.
Regulatory Adjustment Mechanism: Mechanism prescribed in the 2018 Rate Order to recover
from/refund to customers previously deferred balances for storm related cost, incentives
earned, deferred property taxes and accrued carrying charges.
Deferred Vacation Pay Accrual: In accordance with Rate Order 84-2 a regulatory asset has
been established to offset the accrued vacation liability since the accrued compensation is
included in future allowable costs on an as paid basis and there is reasonable assurance of
recovery.
Income Taxes Recoverable: This regulatory asset has been established to offset certain
deferred tax liabilities because Central Hudson believes it is probable that they will be
recoverable from customers.
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Reforming the Energy Vision: This regulatory asset was established to defer the revenue
requirements effect associated with REV demonstration projects, the Dynamic Load
Management program, and NWAs as permitted under the Commission Order Implementing
with Modification the Proposal for Cost Recovery and Incentive Mechanism for Non-Wire
Alternative Project and the 2018 and 2015 Rate Orders.
Deferred Storm Costs: To the extent that Central Hudson incurs incremental costs for major
storm restoration in excess of the amount collected in rates, the Company is authorized to
defer these incremental costs for future recovery from customers. The 2018 Rate Order
prescribes recovery of storm related costs via its RAM, to the extent sufficient.
Income Taxes Refundable: This regulatory liability was established to offset certain deferred
tax assets because Central Hudson believes it is probable that the related balances will be
refundable to customers.
Customer Benefit Fund: As prescribed in the 2010 Order and continued in the 2015 and 2018
Rate Orders, customer benefit fund balances will be used to fund economic development
programs.
Deferred Unbilled Electric and Natural Gas Revenue: On April 28, 2016, the Company filed a
Petition for Accounting Change to address unintended impact that transition to monthly billing
and unbilled revenues had on earnings. On July 20, 2016, the PSC issued the “Order
Approving Accounting Change with Modification”, allowing Central Hudson to realize unbilled
revenue as revenue on the income statement but required that $5.1 million of unbilled
revenues remain as a regulatory liability for the future benefit of customers.
Energy Efficiency Programs: This regulatory liability represents amounts collected from
customers primarily under the Clean Energy Fund Order, in excess of amounts remitted to the
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) to fund energy
efficiency programs.
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In terms of the expected timing for recovery, regulatory asset balances reflect the following
amounts (In Thousands):
Balances with offsetting accrued liability balances recoverable when future
costs are actually incurred:
Deferred pension related to underfunded status
Income taxes recoverable through future rates
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives
Accrued SIR costs
Deferred ARO
Deferred vacation pay accrual
Balances earning a return via inclusion in rates and/or the application of
carrying charges:
Deferred property taxes
(1)
Deferred pension costs
PSC general and temporary state assessment
Deferred storm costs
REV
Deferred SIR costs, net of recoveries
Deferred debt expense on re-acquired debt
Tax reform - unprotected deferred tax asset
(1)
Other
Subject to current recovery:
Deferred purchased electric costs
Deferred purchased natural gas costs
RAM
RDM
(2)
REV
Other

2018
$

(1)

Accumulated carrying charges:
Carrying charges pension reserve
Carrying charges balancing
Other

20,801
24,387
3,776
54,511
7,463
110,938

545 $
4,866
17,596
6,590
2,897
13,688
2,174
48,356 $

4,060
855
7,922
6,242
5,132
3,418
23,267
13,481
64,377

$

1,637 $
3,057
9,244
2,445
9,317
3,043
28,743 $

7,808
10,529
777
3,193
2,046
24,353

$
$

- $
- $

1,936
1,936

$

- $
(360)
307
(53) $
177,269 $

4,148
(4,900)
3,276
2,524
204,128

$
$

$

$
$

Total Regulatory Assets

2017

24,454 $
18,168
2,135
46,972
512
7,982
100,223 $

$

Other:
(1)
Other

December 31,

(1) December 31, 2017 balances were recovered via offset in the 2018 Rate Order.
(2) These amounts are subject to recovery over prescribed PSC timeframes unique to each program (most over 5 or 10 years). Balances
subject to recovery over a period greater than 1 year are authorized to earn carrying charges at the pre-tax weighted average cost of
capital.

2015 Rate Order/2018 Rate Order
On June 17, 2015, the PSC issued Order Approving Rate Plan in cases 14-E-0318 and 14-G0319 (the “2015 Rate Order”), adopting the terms set forth in the April 22, 2015 Joint Proposal
with minor modifications. From July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018, Central Hudson operated
under the terms of the 2015 Rate Order, with Rate Year (“RY”)1, RY2 and RY3 defined as the
twelve months ending June 30, 2016, June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018, respectively. On June
14, 2018, the PSC issued an Order Approving Rate Plan in cases 17-E-0459 and 17-G-0460
(the “2018 Rate Order”). The 2018 Rate Order adopts the terms set forth in the April 18, 2018
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Joint Proposal with minor modifications. The 2018 Rate Order is effective July 1, 2018, with
RY1, RY2 and RY3 defined as the twelve months ending June 30, 2019, June 30, 2020 and
June 30, 2021, respectively. A summary of the key terms of the 2015 and 2018 Rate Orders
are as follows:
Description
Electric delivery rate increases
Natural gas delivery rate increases
Return on Equity
Earnings sharing
Capital structure – common equity
Bill Credits - Electric
Bill Credits - Natural Gas
RDMs – electric and natural gas

2015 Rate Order ( dollars in millions)
RY1
RY2
RY3
$15.3
$16.0
$14.1
$1.8
$4.6
$4.4
9.00%
9.00%
9.00%
(1)
(1)
(1)
Yes
Yes
Yes
48%
48%
48%
$13.0
$12.0
$2.0
(2)
(2)
$2.5
$1.7
$0
Yes
Yes
Yes

2018 Rate Order (dollars in millions)
RY1
RY2
RY3
$19.7
$18.6
$25.1
$6.7
$6.7
$8.2
8.80%
8.80%
8.80%
(3)
(3)
(3)
Yes
Yes
Yes
48%
49%
50%
$6.0
$9.0
$11.0
$3.5
$4.0
$4.0
Yes
Yes
Yes

(1) Return on equity ("ROE") > 9.5% and up to 10.0%, 50% to customers, > 10.0% and up to 10.5%, 80% to customers, > 10.5%, 90% to
customers.
(2) In addition to natural gas bill credits, 50% of gas delivery revenues from the Danskammer Generating Station in RY1 will be refunded to
customers via bill credit in RY2. In addition, 50% of revenues from RY2 will be refunded as a natural gas bill credit in RY3.
(3) ROE > 9.3% and up to 9.8%, 50% to customers, > 9.8% and up to 10.3%, 80% to customers, > 10.3%, 90% to customers.

Key provisions of the 2018 Rate Order include:
Revenue increases net of bill credits result in average residential monthly bill impacts of 1.3%,
3.0% and 4.4% for electric customers and 2.1%, 4.4% and 5.5% for natural gas customers in
Rate Years 1, 2, and 3, respectively, of the rate plan. The rates reflect a reduction to the
customer charge for residential and electric small commercial classes. Electric RDM has been
expanded to include additional service classes. During the three year term, approximately
97% of electric base delivery revenues and 92% of natural gas base delivery revenues are
covered by RDMs. A RAM was approved to return or collect certain deferred balances and
carrying charges on a more timely basis (subject to calendar year caps).
The revenue requirements reflect authorization for capital expenditures of more than $650
million over the term covered by the 2018 Rate Order, including a significant increase in
information technology investments, funding to begin implementing a multi-year plan to
construct a Training Center and Primary Control Center, continued investment for Leak Prone
Pipe Replacement, and funding for Distribution Automation and Network Strategy. The
revenue requirement also reflects an increase in funding for Transmission and Distribution
Right of Way Maintenance (“ROW”), increased low income discounts, funding to eliminate
credit/debit card and walk-in center payment fees charged to customers and an increase in
energy efficiency program funding which was moved into base delivery rates.
The 2018 Rate Order introduced five electric and one natural gas EAMs with targets set for
minimum, midpoint and maximum performance. Potential maximum earnings adjustments total
$2.2 million in 2018, $4.7 million in 2019, $5.1 million in 2020 and $5.4 million in 2021. As of
December 31, 2018 the Company has earned $0.6 million related to electric EAM targets.
The 2018 Rate Order changed various performance mechanisms for electric, natural gas and
customer service. For electric reliability, the System Average Interruption Frequency Index
(“SAIFI”) target is raised to 1.38 in 2018 and gradually reduced back to 1.30 by the end of the
rate plan. Gas safety metric targets were restated for calendar year 2018 and other changes
were made including revised targets for all gas metrics, a reduction to potential NRAs and
- 32 -

additional positive revenue adjustments for surpassing certain gas safety metrics. The 2018
Rate Order also includes more stringent Customer Satisfaction and PSC Complaint targets,
new Call Answer Rate and Residential Termination/Uncollectible metrics with the net result of
a reduction in the total potential NRAs.
On July 7, 2018, Central Hudson filed a petition for clarification and rehearing regarding the
2018 Rate Order. The petition sought clarification or correction to certain Energy Efficiency
(“EE”) EAM targets in which the Company believes the Commission erred when recalculating
these targets from a net to a gross basis. The Company believes this error overstates the EE
EAM targets by approximately 4%. In addition, the petition seeks to correct a statement in the
2018 Rate Order which inadvertently indicates a cap of $500,000 is allowed for distribution
ROW maintenance rather than transmission ROW maintenance. On October 3, 2018, the
Commission issued an Errata Notice correcting the reference to the ROW Transmission Cap.
On November 19, 2018 the Commission issued Order Concerning Petition for Clarification and
Rehearing and denied Central Hudson’s request to modify the Rate Order’s EE EAM targets
on the basis that the rate order properly reflected the decisions made in a March 2018 Utility
Energy Efficiency Programs order in Case 15-M-0252 to convert portfolio-level EE targets from
net to gross.
Other PSC Proceedings
Deferral Accounting and Recovery of Additional Distribution and Transmission Vegetation
Management Funds and Relief from the 2016 Frequency Performance Metric
On May 5, 2017, Central Hudson filed a petition with the PSC seeking approval for accounting
authority to defer incremental funding associated with Central Hudson’s hazard tree trimming
program. The Company also sought relief from its 2016 SAIFI service quality negative
revenue adjustment, resulting from Central Hudson’s inability to meet the 2016 SAIFI target
agreed to as part of the 2015 Rate Order. The petition demonstrated the Company’s
deteriorating reliability performance and subsequent failure of the SAIFI target were the direct
result of factors that were outside of its control and requested: 1) the establishment of an
incremental $5.0 million of funding towards the distribution danger tree program to be initiated
during the Company’s current rate agreement; 2) deferral authority for $1.9 million of
incremental transmission trimming funding because Central Hudson’s transmission program
was suspended in September 2017 due to inadequate funding in its current rate agreement;
and 3) relief from the 2016 SAIFI penalty. The petition described the impacts of hazard trees
resulting from the infestation of the Emerald Ash Borer, Federal and New York State imposed
restrictions on the time of year when Central Hudson can trim due to the Indiana and Long
eared bats and the current insufficient funding to maintain the recommended four year routine
trimming cycle. All of these factors, which are outside the Company’s control, contributed to
the Company failing its 2016 SAIFI electric reliability service quality performance metric. On
September 19, 2017, the PSC issued an Order Denying, in Part, Deferral Accounting and
Recovery of Additional Distribution and Transmission Vegetation Management Funds and
Relief from the 2016 Frequency Performance Metric. The Order allowed deferral authority of
up to $2.0 million of incremental funding for a targeted distribution hazard tree program,
provided that the Company’s electric regulatory earned ROE for the Rate Year Ended June 30,
2018 did not exceed the allowed ROE of 9.0%. Any regulatory earnings in excess of the
allowed ROE will be used to reduce the amount deferred. All other aspects of the deferral
petition were denied. The Company spent the $2.0 million but has elected not to defer.
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Deferral Accounting and Recovery of Distributed System Platform Related Cost
On March 7, 2017, Central Hudson filed a petition with the PSC seeking approval to defer and
recover incurred and ongoing incremental costs associated with the development and
implementation of the PSC’s policies formulated in Case 14-M-0101, Proceeding on the Motion
of the Commission in Regard to REV and its associated cases. Through February 28, 2017,
as established in the 2015 Rate Order, Central Hudson had accumulated incremental REV
related costs totaling $1.8 million and approximately $0.1 million of carrying charges. Those
costs include incremental internal and external labor costs used to develop the Distributed
System Implementation Plan (“DSIP”), Supplemental DSIP, and costs associated with the
analysis and support required to meet incremental REV requirements. On July 13, 2017, the
PSC issued Order Approving Deferral Accounting and Recovery of Distributed System
Platform Related Cost, Case 17-E-0113, authorizing Central Hudson to recover approximately
$1.8 million plus carrying charges via a Miscellaneous Charge Factor that became effective
August 1, 2017.
Governmental Mandates Exceeding 10 Basis Points or More of Return on Common Equity
The 2015 Rate Order authorized deferral of incremental costs that individually have material
consequences (10 basis points or more of return on common equity for either the gas
department or the electric department) related to new legislative, governmental, Commission
or other regulatory actions. There were two instances during the term of the 2015 Rate Order
where the company deferred incremental costs under this provision:


On October 14, 2015, Central Hudson filed a deferral petition seeking approval and
recovery of $2.2 million of incremental expense associated with compliance and
reporting requirements resulting from multiple Commission Orders stemming from a
natural gas incident in Horseheads, New York. On February 5, 2016, Central Hudson
received a letter from the PSC’s Office of Accounting, Audits and Finance indicating that
the PSC had reviewed and audited the deferred balances and was in agreement with
the amount deferred at December 31, 2015.



On September 1, 2015, Central Hudson filed a deferral petition with the PSC seeking
approval and recovery of $1.0 million of incremental expense associated with
compliance requirements resulting from the North American Reliability Corporation’s
change to the definition of the Bulk Electric System, as approved by FERC. On
February 5, 2016, Central Hudson received a letter from the PSC’s Office of
Accounting, Audits and Finance indicating that the PSC had reviewed and audited the
deferred balances and was in agreement with the amount deferred at December 31,
2015.

These balances were recovered through balance sheet offset against certain regulatory liability
balances per the 2018 Rate Order.
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Impact of Changes in Federal Tax Law
On December 29, 2017 the Commission issued an Order initiating a proceeding, Case 17-M0815, to commence the process of addressing the potential effects of the enactment of the
December 22, 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act on the tax expenses and liabilities of New York
State utilities, and the regulatory treatment of any windfalls in order to preserve the benefits for
ratepayers. Among items of most significance that were addressed in the proceeding were the
impacts of the reduction in the corporate federal income tax rate from 35% to 21% (not
reflected in the Company’s rates for the period January 1 through June 30, 2018) and the
elimination of bonus depreciation for regulated utilities. On August 9, 2018, the Commission
issued an Order Determining Rate Treatment of Tax Changes to address the impact of the
December 22, 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and regulatory treatment to preserve the benefits
for rate payers. Central Hudson deferred the impact of the change in the federal tax rate from
35% to 21% on delivery rates and deferred tax balances in accordance with the Order. In
addition, the Order confirmed that Central Hudson’s 2018 Rate Order fully addressed the
accounting and ratemaking effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act changes in determining
electric and gas revenue requirements.
Central Hudson 2018 Financing Order
On September 13, 2018, the Commission approved the Company's request under Section 69
of the Public Service Law to enter into multi-year committed credit agreements in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $200 million and maturities not to exceed five years, to issue and sell
long-term debt in an aggregate amount not to exceed $425 million through December 2021,
and to enter into derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risk for its variable rate debt
obligations. Central Hudson submitted its unconditional acceptance of the Order to the
Commission on September 20, 2018.

NOTE 5 – Income Tax
Uncertain Tax Positions
In September of 2010, Central Hudson filed a request with the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) to change its tax accounting method related to costs to repair and maintain utility
assets. The change was effective for the tax year ended December 31, 2009. This change
allows Central Hudson to take a current tax deduction for a significant amount of repair costs
that were previously capitalized for tax purposes.
IRS guidance, with respect to repair deductions taken on Gas Transmission and Distribution
repairs is still pending. Therefore, tax reserves related to the gas repair deduction continue to
be shown as “Tax Reserve” under the Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities section of the CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson Balance Sheet.
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Other than the uncertain tax position related to Central Hudson’s accounting method change
for gas transmission and distribution repairs, there are no other uncertain tax positions. At
December 31, 2018, there are no tax benefit balances to offset against the reserve. The net
change in the tax benefit offset for the year ended December 31, 2018 reflects $2.7 million of
federal uncertain tax position previously reclassified to a deferred tax asset per ASU No. 201311, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. Changes in the tax reserve reflect the
ongoing uncertainty related to gas transmission and distribution repair deductions taken in the
current period.
The following is a summary of activity related to the uncertain tax position (In Thousands):

Tax reserve balance at the beginning of the period
Change in natural gas transmission and distribution repair deduction
Change in tax benefit offset
Tax reserve balance at the end of the period

Year Ended
December 31,
2018
2017
$
4,301 $
1,703
718
1,824
2,656
774
$
7,675 $
4,301

Income Tax Examinations
Jurisdiction
Federal
New York State

Tax Years Open for Audit
2015 – 2017
2015 – 2017

Tax Reform
On December 22, 2017, President Trump signed the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act into legislation,
which enacted significant changes to the Internal Revenue Code including a reduction in the
U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21% effective for tax years beginning after
2017. The Company was required to revalue its deferred tax assets and liabilities at the new
federal corporate income tax rates as of the date of the enactment. On December 29, 2017
the Commission issued an order initiating a proceeding, Case 17-M-0851, to study the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act legislation in order to preserve the benefits for ratepayers. As a result,
Central Hudson recorded a regulatory liability of $198.6 million due to the revaluation of plant
related deferred tax liabilities which are protected under tax normalization rules. The
Company’s deferred taxes are subject to a normalization method of accounting for the excess
tax reserves resulting from the change in the federal statutory tax rate which involves the use
of the average rate assumption method for the determination of the timing of the return of the
excess deferred taxes to customers. This regulatory liability is included within deferred taxes
associated with accelerated deductions of capitalized utility plant assets for rate-making
purposes when determining rate base. The regulatory liability is adjusted monthly to reflect the
amortization of the balance under the normalization rules. The Company also recorded a
regulatory asset of $23.3 million due to the revaluation of non-plant related deferred taxes,
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which is not subject to the normalization rules. This balance was being adjusted monthly to
account for the difference between the current federal tax rate of 21% and the 35% federal rate
that was in effect when customer rates were set for the period of January 1, 2018 through June
30, 2018. Beginning July 1, 2018, rates were reset fully addressing the accounting and
ratemaking effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
CH Energy Group, inclusive of its non-regulated subsidiaries, recorded additional income tax
expense in the fourth quarter of 2017 of $1.1 million, primarily due to the revaluation of the
non-Central Hudson deferred tax assets and federal income tax net operating losses to reflect
the lower federal income tax rate of 21% from 35%.
The following is a summary of Central Hudson's activity in its regulatory liability balance for
Tax Reform related to the protected deferred tax liability (In Thousands):
December 31,
2018
$
198,576
(4,063)
$
194,513

Protected Regulatory Liability at the beginning of the period
Change in Protected Tax Liability
Protected Regulatory Liability at the end of the period

December 31,
2017
$
198,576
$
198,576

The following is a summary of Central Hudson's activity in its regulatory asset balance for
Tax Reform related to the unprotected impacts (In Thousands):
December 31,
2018
$
23,267
(9,579)
$
13,688

Unprotected Regulatory Asset at the beginning of the period
Change in Unprotected Tax Asset
Unprotected Regulatory Asset at the end of the period

December 31,
2017
$
23,267
$
23,267

Components of Income Tax Expense - CH Energy Group
The following is a summary of the components of federal and state income tax expense for
CH Energy Group as reported in its Consolidated Statement of Income (In Thousands):

Current federal income tax
Current state income tax
Deferred federal income tax
Deferred state income tax
Total income tax expense

$

$
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Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
6,123 $
239 $
(3,038)
1,007
725
105
4,560
28,182
29,299
3,394
3,540
5,275
15,084 $
32,686 $
31,641

Reconciliation - CH Energy Group
The following is a reconciliation between the amount of federal income tax computed on
income before taxes at the statutory rate and the amount reported in CH Energy Group’s
Consolidated Statement of Income (In Thousands):

Net income
Current federal income tax
Current state income tax
Deferred federal income tax
Deferred state income tax
Income before income taxes

$

Computed federal tax at 21% (35% in 2017 and 2016)
State income tax net of federal tax benefit
(1)
Amortization of protected deferred tax liability
State income tax prior period adjustment
Remeasurement of deferred federal income taxes
Depreciation flow-through
Cost of removal
Other
Total income tax expense

$

$

Effective tax rate - federal
Effective tax rate - state
Effective tax rate - combined
(1)

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
57,543
$
53,752
$ 50,905
6,123
239
(3,038)
1,007
725
105
4,560
28,182
29,299
3,394
3,540
5,275
72,627
$
86,438
$ 82,546
15,252
3,494
(3,716)
(17)
2,649
(1,690)
(888)
15,084
14.7%
6.1%
20.8%

$

$

30,253
3,319
(547)
1,091
2,975
(2,838)
(1,567)
32,686
32.9%
4.9%
37.8%

$

$

28,891
4,149
(574)
2,732
(2,655)
(902)
31,641
31.8%
6.5%
38.3%

Under normalization rules, plant-related deferred taxes reverse at the same rate as the original deferral.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the lower combined effective tax rate was driven by
the reduction in the federal income tax rate from 35% to 21%, the result of the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act, which was enacted into law on December 22, 2017 and effective January 1, 2018,
and the impact of tax normalization rules. See Tax Reform section above for more
information. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the lower combined effective
rate was driven by decreases in book reserves, which are not considered income for tax
purposes and the associated deferred taxes that are recorded with an offsetting regulatory
asset or liability. In 2017, the impact of the book reserves was partially offset by the impact of
the adjustment to long-term federal non-regulated deferred tax assets to reflect the reduction in
the federal corporate income tax rates from 35% to 21%.
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The following is a summary of the components of deferred taxes as reported in CH Energy
Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheets (In Thousands):
December 31,
2018
2017

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset:
Unbilled revenues
Plant-related
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability
Income taxes refundable through future rates
OPEB costs

$

(1)

Net Operting Loss ("NOL") carryforwards
Energy efficiency programs
Rate moderator
Contributions in aid of construction
Directors and officers deferred compensation
RDM
Customer benefit fund
Research and development credit
Other
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset

$

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability:
Depreciation
Repair allowance
Pension costs
Change in tax accounting for repairs
Income taxes recoverable through future rates
Tax reform - unprotected deferred tax asset
Cost of removal
Medicare act subsidy
Deferred SIR costs
Distributed system implementation plan
REV
Purchased electric costs
Purchased natural gas costs
Storm costs
Other
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability

$

$
$

1,821
6,301
51,598
4,031
5,473
18,899
11,436
8,881
10,270
2,938
680
479
1,661
124,468

214,831
4,598
1,665
74,820
10,604
3,577
4,443
1,722
124
2,204
428
799
4,599
3,546
327,960
203,492

$

$

$

$
$

2,113
4,017
52,650
14,541
12,093
1,787
16,661
12,092
8,637
9,867
758
823
3,754
139,793

209,866
5,001
6,951
65,220
14,564
5,869
4,663
2,047
1,341
687
2,466
2,041
2,751
2,070
4,201
329,738
189,945

(1) Under ASU No. 2013-11, the presentation of uncertain tax positions when a NOL or tax credit carryforward exists should be netted with
the NOL or tax credit carryforward. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, $0.0 and $2.7 million, respectively of uncertain tax positions have
been netted with the NOL or tax credit carryforwards.
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Components of Income Tax Expense - Central Hudson
The following is a summary of the components of state and federal income tax expense for
Central Hudson as reported in its Statement of Income (In Thousands):

Current federal income tax
Current state income tax
Deferred federal income tax
Deferred state income tax
Total income tax expense

$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
8,546 $
(463) $
(2,374)
1,117
720
(519)
2,334
27,896
29,379
3,220
3,457
5,346
15,217 $
31,610 $
31,832

Reconciliation – Central Hudson
The following is a reconciliation between the amount of federal income tax computed on
income before taxes at the statutory rate and the amount reported in Central Hudson’s
Statement of Income (In Thousands):

Net income
Current federal income tax
Current state income tax
Deferred federal income tax
Deferred state income tax
Income before income taxes

$

Computed federal tax at 21% (35% in 2017 and 2016)
State income tax net of federal tax benefit
(1)
Amortization of protected deferred tax liability
State income tax prior period adjustment
Depreciation flow-through
Cost of removal
Other
Total income tax expense

$

$

Effective tax rate - federal
Effective tax rate - state
Effective tax rate - combined
(1)

$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
58,181
$
55,036
$ 52,644
8,546
(463)
(2,374)
1,117
720
(519)
2,334
27,896
29,379
3,220
3,457
5,346
73,398
$
86,646
$ 84,476
15,413
3,414
(3,716)
12
2,649
(1,690)
(865)
15,217
14.8%
5.9%
20.7%

$

$

30,326
3,262
(547)
2,975
(2,838)
(1,568)
31,610
31.7%
4.8%
36.5%

$

$

29,566
3,847
(631)
2,732
(2,655)
(1,027)
31,832
32.0%
5.7%
37.7%

Under normalization rules, plant-related deferred taxes reverse at the same rate as the original deferral.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the lower combined effective tax rate was driven by
the reduction in the federal income tax rate from 35% to 21%, the result of the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act, which was enacted into law on December 22, 2017 and effective January 1, 2018,
and the impact of tax normalization rules. See Tax Reform section above for more
information. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the lower combined effective
rate was driven by decreases in book reserves, which are not considered income for tax
purposes and the associated deferred taxes that are recorded with an offsetting regulatory
asset or liability.
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The following is a summary of the components of deferred taxes as reported in Central
Hudson’s Balance Sheet (In Thousands):
December 31,
2018
2017

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset:
Unbilled revenues
Plant-related
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability
Income taxes refundable through future rates
OPEB costs
NOL carryforwards(1)
Energy efficiency programs
Rate moderator
Contributions in aid of construction
Directors and officers deferred compensation
RDM
Customer benefit fund
Research and development credit
Other
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset

$

1

$

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability:
Depreciation
Repair allowance
Pension costs
Change in tax accounting for repairs
Income taxes recoverable through future rates
Tax reform - unprotected deferred tax asset
Cost of removal
Medicare act subsidy
Deferred SIR costs
Distributed system implementation plan
REV
Purchased electric costs
Purchased natural gas costs
Storm costs
Other
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability

$

$
$

1,821
6,301
51,598
4,031
5,473
18,899
11,436
8,881
10,270
2,938
680
479
1,661
124,468

$

214,167
4,598
1,665
74,820
10,604
3,577
4,443
1,722
124
2,204
428
799
4,599
4,167
327,917
203,449

$

$

$
$

2,113
4,017
52,650
14,541
12,093
16,661
12,092
8,637
9,867
758
823
3,754
138,006

209,866
5,001
6,951
65,220
14,564
5,869
4,663
2,047
1,341
687
2,466
2,041
2,751
2,070
4,818
330,355
192,349

(1)Under ASU No. 2013-11, the presentation of uncertain tax positions when a NOL or tax credit carryforward exists should be
netted with the NOL or tax credit carryforward. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, $0.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively of
uncertain tax positions have been netted with the NOL or tax credit carryforward, absorbing the entire NOL or credit
carryforward.
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NOTE 6 – Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates
CH Energy Group formed CHET to engage in electric transmission projects. The first
undertaking of CHET was the execution of the Transco agreement. CHET’s ownership
interest in Transco is 6.1%. FERC approved rates for Transco in March 2016 and three
projects costing approximately $209.0 million were placed in service on June 1, 2016 after
receiving the remaining regulatory approvals in May 2016. CHET made capital contributions to
Transco of $6.8 million to fund these projects. During 2018 CHET made no capital
contributions to Transco. In April 2016, National Grid and Transco jointly filed proposals
related to the AC Transmission Order with the NYISO. In December 2018, the NYISO board
of directors concluded that the most efficient or cost effective transmission project for one
segment of the transmission system, related to the AC Transmission Proceeding, is a project
that was jointly proposed by National Grid and Transco ($500 million estimated cost). A final
determination is expected in the first half of 2019. In November 2018, the Transco
Amendment allowed Transco to pursue additional projects that might come out of future
NYISO PPTP Processes. Under the Transco Amendment, CHET would have a 10%
ownership stake in transmission solutions related to future projects that result from future
PPTP Processes. CHET would also be allocated 10% of future development costs for any
new transmission projects as part of future PPTP Processes. At December 31, 2018 and
2017, CHET's investment in Transco was approximately $6.9 million and $7.1 million,
respectively.
CHEC has equity investments in Partnerships, one of which holds investments in energy
sector start-up companies. The value of CHEC's equity investments at December 31, 2018,
and 2017 was $0.8 million and $1.0 million, respectively. These investments are not
considered to be a part of the core business; however, management intends to retain these
investments at this time.

NOTE 7 – Research and Development
Central Hudson’s R&D expenditures were $3.3 million in 2018, $3.6 million in 2017 and $2.7
million in 2016. These expenditures were for internal research programs and for contributions
to research administered by NYSERDA, the Electric Power Research Institute and other
industry organizations.
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NOTE 8 – Short-Term Borrowing Arrangements
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s committed and uncommitted short-term borrowing
arrangements are as follows:
Description
(1)
Revolving Credit Facilities:
Limit
Expiration
Use of proceeds

Letters of Credit:

Uncommitted Credit Facilities

CH Energy Group
(2)

Central Hudson
(3)

$50 million / $200 million
July 10, 2020 / October 15, 2020
For general
For capital
corporate
expenditures and
purposes
for general
corporate
purposes
Available up to
(2)
$25 million

Available up to
(3)
$15 million

Available up to $40 million

(4)

(3)

$200 million
October 15, 2020
For capital expenditures and for
general corporate purposes

Available up to $15 million

(3)

Available up to $40 million

(4)

(1) Providing committed credit. The credit facilities include a covenant that the total consolidated funded debt to total capital of CH Energy
Group and total funded debt to total capital of Central Hudson, respectively, shall not exceed 0.65 to 1.00. The credit facilities are all
subject to certain restrictions and conditions, including there will be no event of default, and subject to certain exceptions, CH Energy
Group and Central Hudson will not sell, lien, or otherwise encumber its assets and enter into certain transactions including those with
affiliates. CH Energy Group and Central Hudson are also required to pay a commitment fee calculated at a rate based on the applicable
Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s rating on the average daily unused portion of the credit facilities. CH Energy Group and Central Hudson
are in compliance with all debt covenants.
(2) Participating banks in the credit facility for CH Energy Group are JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. and KeyBank National Association. Included as part of the $50 million revolving credit facility is a $10 million Swingline Facility,
whereby loans are available up to $10 million with a maturity of 14 days or less. If these lenders are unable to fulfill their commitments
under these facilities, funding may not be available as needed.
(3) Participating banks in the credit facility for Central Hudson are JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A., KeyBank National Association, Bank of Nova Scotia, N.A. and Citizens Bank, N.A. If these lenders are unable to fulfill their
commitments under these facilities, funding may not be available as needed.
(4) Central Hudson has $40 million of uncommitted credit available through arrangements with Bank of America, N.A., Citizens Bank, N.A
and the Bank of Nova Scotia, N.A. Proceeds from these credit arrangements will be used to diversify cash sources and provide
competitive options to minimize Central Hudson's cost of short-term debt.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 there were no amounts outstanding under the various credit
facilities for CH Energy Group or Central Hudson.

NOTE 9 – Capitalization – Common and Preferred Stock
Capitalization
During 2018, CH Energy Group received capital contributions of $37.0 million from its parent
FortisUS, and Central Hudson received capital contributions of $11.5 million from its parent CH
Energy Group. During 2017, CH Energy Group received a capital contribution of $7.0 million
from FortisUS. These contributions were recorded as paid in capital, see CH Energy Group’s
and Central Hudson’s Consolidated Statements of Equity.
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Common Stock Dividends
CH Energy Group’s ability to pay dividends is affected by the ability of its subsidiaries to pay
dividends. The Federal Power Act limits the payment of annual dividends by Central Hudson
to its retained earnings. More restrictive is the PSC’s limit on the dividends Central Hudson
may pay to CH Energy Group, which is 100% of the average annual income available for
common stock, calculated on a two-year rolling average basis. Based on this calculation,
Central Hudson was restricted to a maximum annual payment of $56.6 million and $53.8
million in dividends to CH Energy Group for the periods ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Central Hudson’s ability to pay dividends would be reduced to 75% of its average
annual income in the event of a downgrade of its senior debt rating below “BBB+” by more
than one rating agency, if the stated reason for the downgrade is related to any of CH Energy
Group’s or Central Hudson’s affiliates. Further restrictions are imposed for rating downgrades
below this level. In addition, Central Hudson would not be allowed to pay dividends if its
average common equity ratio for the 13 months prior to a proposed dividend was more than
200 basis points below the ratio used in setting rates (currently 48%). CH Energy Group’s
other subsidiaries do not have express restrictions on their ability to pay dividends.
In each of 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors of CH Energy Group declared and paid
dividends of $22.0 million to FortisUS, the sole shareholder of CH Energy Group.
Central Hudson did not pay any dividends to its parent CH Energy Group in 2018. During
2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors of Central Hudson declared and paid dividends to its
parent CH Energy Group of $13.3 million and $24.5 million, respectively.
CHEC paid dividends to its parent CH Energy Group of $0.3 million during 2018 and $0.7
million during 2017. There were no dividends paid to CH Energy Group by CHEC during 2016.
CHET paid dividends to its parent CH Energy Group of $2.2 million during 2018. There were
no dividends paid to CH Energy Group by CHET during 2017 and 2016.
Preferred Stock
Other than the one share of Junior Preferred Stock, Central Hudson has no outstanding
preferred stock as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

NOTE 10 – Capitalization – Long-Term Debt
The majority of the long-term debt instruments are redeemable at the discretion of CH Energy
Group and Central Hudson, at any time, at the greater of par or a specified price as defined in
the respective long-term debt agreements, together with accrued and unpaid interest.
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A summary of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s long-term debt is as follows (In
Thousands):

Series
Maturity Date
Central Hudson:
Promissory Notes:
(4)
2004 Series E (5.05%)
Nov. 04, 2019
(4)
2006 Series E (5.76%)
Nov. 17, 2031
(1),(2)
1999 Series B
Jul. 01, 2034
(4)
2005 Series E (5.84%)
Dec. 05, 2035
(5)
2007 Series F (5.804%)
Mar. 23, 2037
(5)
2009 Series F (5.80%)
Nov. 01, 2039
(6)
2010 Series A (4.30%)
Sep. 21, 2020
(6)
2010 Series B (5.64%)
Sep. 21, 2040
(6)
2010 Series G (4.15%)
Apr. 01, 2021
(6)
2010 Series G (5.716%)
Apr. 01, 2041
(6)
2011 Series G (3.378%)
Apr. 01, 2022
(6)
2011 Series G (4.707%)
Apr. 01, 2042
(6)
2012 Series G (4.776%)
Apr. 01, 2042
(6)
2012 Series G (4.065%)
Oct. 01, 2042
(7)
2013 Series C (2.45%)
Nov. 1, 2018
(7)
2013 Series D (4.09%)
Dec. 2, 2028
(7),(9)
2014 Series E
Mar. 26, 2024
(7)
2015 Series F (2.98%)
Mar. 31, 2025
(8)
2016 Series G (2.16%)
Sep. 21, 2020
(8)
2016 Series H (2.56%)
Oct. 28, 2026
(8)
2016 Series I (3.63%)
Oct. 28, 2046
(8)
2017 Series J (4.05%)
Aug. 31, 2047
(8)
2017 Series K (4.20%)
Aug. 31, 2057
(8)
2018 Series L (4.27%)
Jun. 15, 2048
(8)
2018 Series M (3.99%)
Oct. 28, 2026
(8)
2018 Series N (4.21%)
Oct. 28, 2033
Total Central Hudson
Less: Current Portion of Long-term Debt
Central Hudson Net Long-term Debt
CH Energy Group:
Promissory Notes:
(3)
2009 Series B (6.80%)
Dec. 15, 2025
Less: Current Portion of Long-term Debt
CH Energy Group Net Long-term Debt
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

December 31, 2018
Unamortized
Debt Issuance
Principal
Costs
$

27,000
27,000
33,700
24,000
33,000
24,000
16,000
24,000
44,150
30,000
23,400
10,000
48,000
24,000
16,700
30,000
20,000
24,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
30,000
25,000
40,000
40,000
$ 673,950
(27,000)
$ 646,950

$

$

13,872
(1,607)
$ 659,215

December 31, 2017
Unamortized
Debt Issuance
Principal
Costs
$

27,000
27,000
33,700
24,000
33,000
24,000
16,000
24,000
44,150
30,000
23,400
10,000
48,000
24,000
30,000
16,700
30,000
20,000
24,000
10,000
20,000
30,000
30,000
$ 598,950
(30,000)
$ 568,950

$

$

18
223
268
169
253
226
17
109
102
230
95
101
492
296
104
108
98
75
71
131
188
185
183
243
246
4,231

$

39
240
285
178
266
237
27
114
148
240
125
105
514
309
25
114
129
114
120
81
136
190
190
3,926

$

65

$

$

74

$

4,296

$

4,000

15,375
(1,503)
$ 582,822

Promissory Notes issued in connection with the sale by NYSERDA of tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds.
Variable (auction) rate notes.
The maturity date represents the final repayment date, principal repayments are due semi-annually.
Issued pursuant to a 2004 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2006, of up to $85 million of
unsecured medium-term notes.
Issued pursuant to a 2006 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2009, of up to $120 million of
unsecured medium-term notes.
Issued pursuant to a 2009 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2012, of up to $250 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.
Issued pursuant to a 2012 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2015, of up to $250 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.
Issued pursuant to a 2015 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2018, of up to $350 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.
Variable rate notes.

.
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On October 29, 2018, Central Hudson issued $40 million of Series M Senior Notes, with an
interest rate of 3.99% per annum and a maturity date of October 28, 2026; and $40 million of
Series N Senior Notes, with an interest rate of 4.21% per annum and a maturity date of
October 28, 2033. Central Hudson used the proceeds from the sale of the Senior Notes to
repay $30 million of maturing debt, with the remaining funds to be used for general corporate
purposes, including the funding of capital expansion and improvement projects.
On June 15, 2018, Central Hudson issued $25.0 million of Series L, Senior Notes, with an
interest rate of 4.27% per annum, due June 15, 2048. Central Hudson used the proceeds from
the sale of the Senior Notes for general corporate purposes including the funding of capital
projects.
At December 31, 2018, Central Hudson had $30 million of 2014 Series E 10-year notes with a
floating interest rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 1%. To mitigate the potential cash flow impact
from unexpected increases in short-term interest rates, Central Hudson purchased a 3-year
interest rate cap on March 21, 2017 that will expire on March 26, 2020. The rate cap has a
notional amount equal to the outstanding principal amount of the 2014 Series E notes and is
based on the quarterly reset of the LIBOR rate on the quarterly interest payment dates. Central
Hudson would receive a payout if the LIBOR rate exceeds 3% at the start of any quarterly
interest period during the term of the cap. There have been no payouts on this interest rate cap
during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The principal amount of Central Hudson’s outstanding 1999 Series B NYSERDA Bonds totaled
$33.7 million at December 31, 2018. These are tax-exempt multi-modal bonds that are
currently in a variable rate mode and mature in 2034. To mitigate the potential cash flow
impact from unexpected increases in short-term interest rates on Series B NYSERDA Bonds,
on March 24, 2016, Central Hudson purchased an interest rate cap. The rate cap has a
notional amount equal to the outstanding principal amount of the Series B bonds and expires
on April 1, 2019. The cap is based on the monthly weighted average of an index of tax-exempt
variable rate debt, multiplied by 175%. Central Hudson would receive a payout if the adjusted
index exceeds 5% for a given month. There were no payouts on this interest rate cap during
the periods presented.
See Note 15 – “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for fair value
disclosures related to these interest rate cap agreements.
In its 2018 Rate Order, the PSC has extended the continued deferral accounting treatment for
variations in the interest costs of the 1999 Series B NYSERDA Bonds and the Series E 10year notes. As such, variations between the actual interest rates on these bonds and the
interest rate included in the current delivery rate structure for these bonds are deferred for
future recovery from or refund to customers and therefore do not impact earnings.
Long-Term Debt Maturities
See Note 16 – “Other Fair Value Measurements” for a schedule of long-term debt maturing or
to be redeemed during the next five years and thereafter.
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Financing Petition
On April 30, 2018, Central Hudson filed a petition with the PSC (Case 18-M-0271) seeking
approval to: (a) enter into multi-year committed credit agreements to provide committed
funding to meet expected liquidity needs in amounts not to exceed $200 million in the
aggregate and with maturities not to exceed five years and (b) issue and sell long-term debt
from time to time through December 31, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $425 million in the
aggregate.
On September 13, 2018, the PSC issued its Order Authorizing Issuance of Securities for
Central Hudson in this proceeding. The Order grants the authorization requested for $200
million of committed credit; and commencing upon the expiration of the current financing order
on December 31, 2018 grants the authorization requested, with conditions, for $425 million of
long-term debt. See Note 8 – “Short-Term Borrowing Arrangements” for additional information
on the committed credit funding.
The continuation of $200 million of credit provides liquidity to support construction forecasts,
seasonality, volatile energy markets, adverse borrowing environments, and other unforeseen
events. The approval to issue and sell $425 million of long-term debt will be used by Central
Hudson for operational purposes and repayment of maturing debt.
Debt Covenants
CH Energy Group’s $13.9 million of privately placed notes require compliance with certain
covenants including maintaining a ratio of total consolidated debt to total consolidated
capitalization of no more than 0.65 to 1.00 and not permitting certain debt, other than the
privately placed notes, associated with the unregulated operations of CH Energy Group to
exceed 10% of total consolidated assets.
Central Hudson, under the terms of the various note purchase agreements, is subject to similar
financial covenants and restrictions to those of CH Energy Group, including restrictions with
respect to Central Hudson’s indebtedness and assets.
As of December 31, 2018, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson were in compliance with all
covenants.

NOTE 11 – Post-Employment Benefits
In its Orders, the PSC has authorized deferral accounting treatment for any variations between
actual Pension and OPEB expense and the amount included in the current delivery rate
structure. As a result, variations in expenses for post-employment benefit plans at Central
Hudson do not have any impact on earnings.
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Pension Benefits
Central Hudson has a non-contributory Retirement Plan covering substantially all of its
employees hired before January 1, 2008 and a non-qualified SERP for certain executives. The
Retirement Plan is a defined benefit plan, which provides pension benefits based on an
employee’s compensation and years of service. In 2007, Central Hudson amended the
Retirement Plan to eliminate these benefits for managerial, professional, and supervisory
employees hired on or after January 1, 2008. The Retirement Plan for unionized employees
was similarly amended for all employees hired on or after May 1, 2008. As of December 31,
2018, 53% of all active employees were not eligible to participate in the Retirement Plan. The
Retirement Plan’s assets are held in a trust fund. Central Hudson has provided periodic
updates to the benefit formulas stated in the Retirement Plan.
Decisions to fund Central Hudson’s Retirement Plan are based on several factors, including,
but not limited to, the funded status, corporate resources, projected investment returns, actual
investment returns, inflation, the value of plan assets relative to plan liabilities, regulatory
considerations, interest rate assumptions and the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (“PPA”).
Based on the funding requirements of the PPA, Central Hudson plans to make contributions
that maintain the target funded percentage at 80% or higher. Actual contributions could vary
significantly based upon a range of factors that Central Hudson considers in its funding
decisions. Contributions of $11.1 million and $13.0 million were made to the Retirement Plan
during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Central Hudson did not
make any contributions in 2016.
In accordance with the terms of the Trust agreement for the SERP following the acquisition of
CH Energy Group, Inc. by Fortis on June 27, 2013, Central Hudson is required to maintain a
funding level for the SERP at 110% of the present value of the accrued benefits payable under
the Plan on an annual basis. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, Central
Hudson made a $3.3 million and $0.7 million contribution to the SERP. Central Hudson did not
make any contributions in 2016.
Central Hudson’s accrued liability (i.e. the under-funded status) for Pension benefits was $33.8
million and $21.2 million at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The increase in
Central Hudson’s unfunded liability of approximately $12.6 million resulted from a $62.6 million
decrease in plan assets partially offset by a decrease in plan liabilities of approximately $50.0
million. The decrease in plan assets was primarily driven by the investment loss on plan
assets and the decrease in plan liabilities was primarily driven by an increase in the discount
rate. The cumulative amount of net periodic benefit cost in excess of employer contributions at
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was $11.6 million and $0.4 million, respectively.
This does not include any cumulative contributions to the SERP as it is a non-qualified plan.
The difference between these amounts and the accrued liability balance of $22.2 million at
December 31, 2018 and $20.8 million at December 31, 2017 will be recognized in Central
Hudson’s future expense and has been recorded as a regulatory asset for the portion
recoverable from Central Hudson customers in accordance with the 1993 PSC Policy and as
other comprehensive income (“OCI”) for the portion, net of tax, that relates to a former Central
Hudson employee who transferred to an affiliated company, but continues to accrue benefits in
Central Hudson’s Retirement Plan and SERP.
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The balance of Central Hudson's accrued pension costs (i.e. the under-funded status) is as
follows (In Thousands):
December 31,
December 31,
(1)
(1)
2018
2017
$
(33,815) $
(21,221)

Accrued pension costs

Includes approximately $232K at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively of accrued pension liability recorded at CH Energy Group as a
result of the resignation in 2014 of a CH Energy Group officer with a change in control agreement.

Accrued pension costs include the difference between the PBO for the Retirement Plan and the
market value of the pension assets and any liability for the non-qualified SERP. The underfunded status does not reflect approximately $26.9 million and $23.4 million of SERP trust assets
at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The following reflects the impact of the recording of funding status adjustments on the Balance
Sheets of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson (In Thousands):

Accrued pension costs prior to funding status adjustment
Additional liability required
Accrued pension costs

December 31, December 31,
(1)
(1)
2018
2017
$
(11,565) $
(420)
(22,250)
(20,801)
$
(33,815) $
(21,221)

Offset to additional liability - regulatory assets - pension plan

$

21,667 $

20,801

Offset to additional liability - accumulated OCI, net of tax of $153 and $0,
respectively

$

430 $

-

(1) Includes approximately $232K at December 31, 2018 and 2017 of accrued pension liability recorded at CH Energy Group as a result of the
resignation in 2014 of a CH Energy Group officer with a change in control agreement.

Gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period, but that are not
recognized as components of net periodic pension cost, would typically be recognized as a
component of OCI, net of tax. However, Central Hudson has PSC approval to record
regulatory assets rather than adjusting comprehensive income to offset the additional liability
for amounts recoverable from customers in future rates. The amounts reported above as
accumulated OCI, net of tax, relates to a former Central Hudson officer who transferred to an
affiliated company but who continues to accrue benefits in Central Hudson’s Retirement Plan
and SERP. These amounts will be charged to and reimbursed by the affiliated company in
future periods.
The valuation of the current and prior year PBO was determined using discount rates of 4.20%
and 3.59% for December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as determined from the Mercer
Pension Discount Yield Curve reflecting projected pension cash flows. A 1.00% increase in
the discount rate would affect the projection of the pension PBO by approximately
$75.5 million. Central Hudson accounts for pension activity in accordance with PSCprescribed provisions, which among other things, requires a ten-year amortization of actuarial
gains and losses.
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The 2018 and 2015 Rate Orders include rate allowances for pension and OPEB expense
which approximate the recent cost of providing these benefits. Authorization remains in effect
for the deferral of any differences between rate allowances and actual costs under the 1993
PSC Policy to counteract the volatility of these costs. The 2018 Rate Order again authorized
Central Hudson to offset a significant portion of deferred balances for pension and OPEB
expense for the electric department with available deferred credit balances due to customers.
Retirement Plan Estimates of Long-Term Rates of Return
The expected long-term rate of return on the Retirement Plan assets utilized in the calculation
of the net periodic benefit cost for 2018 is 5.19%, net of investment expense. In determining
the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, Central Hudson considered forwardlooking estimated returns evaluated in light of current economic conditions and based on
internally consistent economic models. The expected long-term rate of return is a weighted
average based on each plan's investment mix and the forward-looking estimated returns for
each investment class. Central Hudson monitors actual performance against target asset
allocations and adjusts actual allocations and targets in accordance with the Retirement Plan
strategy. A 100 basis point decrease in the expected long-term rate of return would have
increased the 2018 net periodic benefit cost by approximately $6.8 million.
Retirement Plan Policy and Strategy
Central Hudson’s Retirement Plan investment policy seeks to reduce the plan’s funded status
volatility while targeting a rate of growth equivalent to that of the liability within reasonable risk
tolerance levels. In addition to traditional risk and return measures, the policy reflects liabilitybased considerations, including the Retirement Plan’s funded status, contribution requirements
and financial statement items. Due to market fluctuations, Retirement Plan assets require
rebalancing from time to time to maintain the asset allocation within target ranges.
Asset allocation targets in effect as of December 31, 2018, as well as actual asset allocations
as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, expressed as a percentage of the market
value of Retirement Plan assets, are summarized in the table below:

Asset Class
Equity Securities
Debt Securities
(1)
Other
(1)

Minimum
45%
45%
0%

Target
December 31, December 31,
Average
Maximum
2018
2017
50%
55%
47.5%
50.9%
50%
55%
51.0%
47.3%
0%
10%
1.5%
1.8%

Consists of temporary cash investments, as well as receivables for investments sold and interest and payables for investments
purchased, which have not settled as of that date.
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Retirement Plan Investment Valuation
The Retirement Plan assets are valued under the current fair value framework. See Note 15 –
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for further discussion regarding
the definition and levels of fair value hierarchy established by accounting guidance.
The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the
risk associated with investing in those securities. Below is a listing of the major categories of
plan assets held as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, that are reported at net asset value or
fair value, as indicated below (Dollars in Thousands):

Investment Type
At Net Asset Value:
Investment Funds - Equities
Investment Funds - Fixed Income
At Fair Value:
Level 2:
Cash Equivalents
Other Investments

Value at
12/31/18
$

294,078
315,969

7,505
2,018
$

619,570

% of
Total
47.5%
51.0

Value at
12/31/17
$

1.2
0.3
100.0%

$

% of
Total

347,327
322,859

50.9%
47.3

10,073
1,840

1.5
0.3

682,099

100.0%

Other Post-Retirement Benefits
Central Hudson also provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for certain retired
employees through its post-retirement benefit plans. Substantially all of Central Hudson’s
unionized employees and managerial, professional and supervisory employees (“non-union”)
hired prior to January 1, 2008, may become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement
age while employed by Central Hudson. Central Hudson amended its OPEB programs for
existing non-union and certain retired employees effective January 1, 2008, which eliminated
post-retirement benefits for non-union employees hired on or after January 1, 2008. OPEB
plans were also amended to eliminate post-retirement benefits for union employees hired on or
after May 1, 2008. Benefits for retirees and active employees are provided through insurance
companies whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year.
The significant assumptions used to account for these benefits are the discount rate, the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and the health care cost trend rate. Central
Hudson currently selects the discount rate using the Mercer Pension Discount Yield Curve
reflecting projected cash flows. The estimates of long-term rates of return and the investment
policy and strategy for these plan assets are similar to those used for pension benefits
previously discussed in this Note. The estimates of health care cost trend rates are based on a
review of actual recent trends and projected future trends.
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Central Hudson fully recovers its net periodic post-retirement benefit costs in accordance with
the 1993 PSC Policy. Under these guidelines, the difference between the amounts of postretirement benefits recoverable in rates and the amounts of post-retirement benefits
determined by an actuarial consultant in accordance with current accounting guidance related
to OPEB is deferred as either a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability, as appropriate.
Central Hudson’s asset (i.e. the over-funded status) for OPEB was $0.9 million and $2.8
million at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The decrease in the over-funded status
of approximately $1.9 million resulted from a $13.1 million decrease in plan assets partially
offset by a decrease in plan liabilities of approximately $11.2 million. The decrease in plan
assets was primarily driven by the investment loss on plan assets and the decrease in plan
liabilities was primarily driven by an increase in the discount rate. The cumulative amount of
net periodic benefit cost in excess of employer contributions at December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 was $22.3 million and $30.9 million, respectively. The difference between
these amounts and the over-funded asset balance of $23.2 million at December 31, 2018 and
$33.7 million at December 31, 2017 will be recognized in Central Hudson’s future expense and
has been recorded as a regulatory asset in accordance with the 1993 PSC Policy.
Central Hudson’s contributions to the OPEB plans totaled $1.3 million and $1.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Contribution levels are determined
by various factors including the discount rate, expected return on plan assets, medical claims
assumptions used, mortality assumptions used, benefit changes, corporate resources and
regulatory considerations.
OPEB Estimates of Long-Term Rates of Return
The expected long-term rate of return on OPEB assets utilized in the calculation of the net
periodic benefit cost for 2018 was 5.64%, net of investment expense. In determining the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, Central Hudson considered forward-looking
estimated returns for each asset class evaluated in light of current economic conditions. The
expected long-term rate of return is a weighted average based on each plan's investment mix
and the forward-looking estimated returns for each investment class. A 100 basis point
decrease in the expected long-term rate of return would have increased the 2018 net periodic
benefit cost by $1.4 million. Central Hudson monitors actual performance against target asset
allocations and adjusts actual allocations and targets as deemed appropriate in accordance
with the OPEB plan’s strategy.
OPEB Policy and Strategy
Central Hudson currently funds its union OPEB obligations through a voluntary employee’s
beneficiary association (“VEBA”), and funds its management OPEB liabilities through a 401(h)
plan. The VEBA and 401(h) plan are both a form of trust fund. Central Hudson’s VEBA
investment policy seeks to achieve a rate of return for the VEBA over the long term that
contributes to meeting the VEBA’s current and future obligations, including interest and benefit
payment obligations. The policy also seeks to earn long-term returns from capital appreciation
and current income that at least keep pace with inflation over the long term. Central Hudson’s
401(h) plan is invested with the previously mentioned Retirement Plan’s investments.
However, there are no assurances that the OPEB plan’s return objectives will be achieved.
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The asset allocation strategy employed in the VEBA reflects Central Hudson’s return
objectives and what management believes is an acceptable level of short-term volatility in the
market value of the VEBA's assets in exchange for potentially higher long-term returns. The
mix of assets shall be broadly diversified by asset class and investment styles within asset
classes, based on the following asset allocation targets, expressed as a percentage of the
market value of the VEBA’s assets, summarized in the table below:
Asset Class
Equity Securities
Debt Securities
Other

Minimum
55%
25%
-%

Target
Average
65%
35%
-%

Maximum
75%
45%
-%

December 31,
2018
64.4%
34.8%
0.8%

December 31,
2017
66.5%
31.7%
1.8%

Due to market value fluctuations, the OPEB plan’s assets require periodic rebalancing from
time to time to maintain the asset allocation within target ranges.
Management uses outside consultants and outside investment managers to aid in the
determination of the OPEB plan’s asset allocation and to provide the management of actual
plan assets, respectively.
OPEB Investment Valuation
The OPEB plan’s assets are valued under the current fair value framework. See Note 15 –
“Accounting for Derivative and Hedging Activities” for further discussion regarding the definition
and levels of fair value hierarchy established by guidance.
The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the
risk associated with investing in those securities. Below is a listing of the major categories of
plan assets held as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, that are reported at net asset value or
fair value, as indicated below (Dollars in Thousands):
401(h) Plan Assets
(Dollars in Thousands)

Value at
12/31/18

Investment Type
At Net Asset Value:
Investment Funds - Equities
Investment Funds - Fixed Income
At Fair Value:
Level 2:
Cash Equivalents
Other Investments

$

$
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% of
Total

Value at
12/31/17

% of
Total

11,256
12,094

47.5% $
51.0

13,342
12,403

50.9%
47.3

287
77
23,714

1.2
0.3
100.0% $

387
71
26,203

1.5
0.3
100.0%

Union VEBA Plan Assets
(Dollars In Thousands)

Market Value
at 12/31/18

Investment Type
Level 1:
Money Market Mutual Fund
Fixed Income Mutual Funds
Equity Securities Mutual Funds

$

$

% of
Total

845
0.8 %
35,112
34.8
65,054
64.4
101,011 100.0 %

Market Value
at 12/31/17
$

1,972
35,380
74,294
111,646

$

% of
Total
1.8 %
31.7
66.5
100.0 %

Detail of the change in Central Hudson’s pension and other post-retirement plans’ benefit
obligations, fair value of plan assets and funded status as of and for the period ended December
31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows (In Thousands):
Other Post Retirement
Benefits
2018
2017

(1)

Pension Benefits
2018
2017
Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit Obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Participant contributions
Plan amendments
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefit Obligation at end of year
Change in Value of Plan Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year
Adjustment / other
Actual (loss)return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Participant contributions
Benefits paid
Administrative expenses paid
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year
Funded Status at end of year

$

$
$

$
$

703,320
13,059
25,042
(32,775)
(55,261)
653,385

$

682,099
(40,015)
12,194
(32,775)
(1,933)
619,570
(33,815)

$

$

$
$

643,351
11,817
26,750
(32,691)
54,093
703,320

$

603,031
(10)
99,514
14,050
(32,691)
(1,795)
682,099
(21,221)

$

$

$
$

135,065
1,865
4,728
1,080
(8,318)
(10,553)
123,867

$

137,849
(7,064)
1,302
1,080
(8,318)
(124)
124,725
858

$

$

$
$

133,998
1,841
5,449
1,020
(3,663)
(5,968)
2,388
135,065
121,974
10
19,390
1,533
1,020
(5,968)
(110)
137,849
2,784

(1) The plan assets as presented in this chart do not include approximately $26.9 million and $23.4 million of SERP trust assets at December
31, 2018 and 2017.
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The following table summarizes the employee future benefit assets and liabilities and their
classifications on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Comprehensive Income
at December 31 (In Thousands):
Other Post Retirement
Benefits
2018
2017

(1)

Pension Benefits
2018
2017
Amounts Recognized on Balance Sheet:
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Funded Status at end of year

$

Regulatory asset:
Net actuarial (gain)/loss
Prior service costs (credit)
Other comprehensive income:
Net actuarial loss, net of tax of $28 in 2018
Prior service costs, net of tax of $125 in 2018

$

(1,050)
(32,765)
(33,815)

$
$
$
$

$

$

(1,049)
(20,172)
(21,221)

18,658
3,009

$
$

81
349

$
$

$

858

$

858

$

$

2,784
2,784

16,292
4,509

$
$

(17,675)
(5,442)

$
$

(23,183)
(10,510)

-

$
$

-

$
$

-

(1) The funded status in this chart does not reflect approximately $26.9 million and $23.4 million of SERP trust assets at December 31, 2018
and 2017.

Central Hudson's net periodic benefit costs for its Pension and OPEB plans for the periods
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows (In Thousands):
Other Post Retirement
Benefits
2018
2017

Pension Benefits
2018
2017
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost (credit)
Amortization of recognized actuarial net (gain)/loss
Net Periodic (Benefit) Cost

$

$
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13,059
25,042
(34,033)
1,026
18,245
23,339

$

$

11,817
26,750
(34,014)
1,160
16,713
22,426

$

$

1,865
4,728
(7,571)
(5,069)
(924)
(6,971)

$

$

1,841
5,449
(7,345)
(4,613)
(1,033)
(5,701)

The following table provides the components recognized in net periodic benefit cost and as
regulatory assets which otherwise would have been recognized in comprehensive income, as
well as, the weighted average assumptions used in the periods (Dollars In Thousands):
Other Post Retirement
Benefits
2018
2017

(1)

Pension Benefits
2018
2017

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation
Recognized in Regulatory Assets/Liabilities:
Net (gain)/loss
Amortization of actuarial net (loss) gain
Plan amendments
Amortization of prior service (cost) credit
Total recognized in regulatory asset
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and
regulatory asset
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
benefit obligations:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase (average)
Measurement date
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
periodic benefit cost for years ended December 31:
Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase (average)
Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31:
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to
decline (the ultimate trend rate)
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate
Pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in
excess of plan assets:
Projected Benefit Obligation
Accumulated Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets

$

$

$

20,720
(18,245)
(1,026)
1,449

$

24,788

$
$
$

$

$

(9,602)
(16,713)
(1,160)
(27,475)

$

$

4,583
924
5,069
10,576

$

(9,735)
1,033
(3,663)
4,613
(7,752)

$

(5,049)

$

3,605

$

(13,453)

4.20%
4.00%
12/31/18

3.56%
4.00%
12/31/17

4.19%
4.00%
12/31/18

3.58%
4.00%
12/31/17

3.59%
5.19%
4.00%

4.14%
5.85%
4.00%

3.58%
5.64%
4.00%

4.16%
6.18%
4.00%

N/A

N/A

6.16%

6.48%

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

4.50%
2038

4.50%
2038

703,320
648,254
682,099

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

653,385
607,076
619,570

$
$
$

(1) The fair value of plan assets presented in this chart does not include approximately $26.9 million and $23.4 million of SERP trust assets at
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Estimated net loss of $4.4 million and prior service cost of $0.7 million for the defined benefit
pension plans will be amortized from regulatory assets and OCI into net periodic benefit cost
over the next fiscal year. Estimated net gain of $3.1 million and prior service credit of $2.7
million for the other defined benefit post-retirement plans will be amortized from regulatory
assets and OCI into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year. The amount of
transitional obligation to be amortized from regulatory assets and OCI is immaterial.
Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
health care plan. A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects (In Thousands):
Effect on total of service and interest cost components for 2018
Effect on year-end 2018 post-retirement benefit obligation
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One Percentage Point
Increase
Decrease
$
932 $
(739)
$
12,237 $
(10,039)

For 2018, the PBO for Central Hudson’s obligation for OPEB costs was determined using a
4.19% discount rate. This rate was determined using the Mercer Pension Discount Yield
Curve reflecting projected cash flows. A 1.00% increase in the discount rate would have
decreased the projection of the OPEB obligation by approximately $14.3 million.
Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are
expected to be paid (In Thousands):
Year
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 - 2028

Pension Benefits - Gross Other Benefits - Gross
$
33,469
$
6,792
34,069
7,003
35,340
7,360
36,908
7,690
37,737
8,041
200,765
43,176

(1)

Other Benefits - Net
$
6,231
6,423
6,766
7,080
7,416
39,685

(1) Estimated benefit payments reduced by estimated gross amount of Medicare Act of 2003 subsidy receipts expected.

401(k) Retirement Plan
Central Hudson sponsors a 401(k) plan for its employees. The 401(k) plan provides for
employee tax-deferred salary deductions for participating employees and employer matches.
The matching benefit varies by employee group. Central Hudson’s matching contributions for
the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $4.9 million, $4.6 million, and $4.3
million, respectively. Central Hudson also provided an additional contribution of 4% for both
2018 and 2017, and 3% for 2016 to the 401(k) plan of annualized base salary for eligible
employees who do not qualify for Central Hudson’s Retirement Income Plan.

NOTE 12 – Equity-Based Compensation
Share Unit Plan Units
In January 2018, officers of Central Hudson were granted 49,012 Units under the Central
Hudson 2018 Share Unit Plan (“2018 SUP”), representing the officers’ long-term incentives.
Two-thirds of the issued 2018 SUP Units granted are performance based and vest at the end
of the three-year performance period upon achievement of specified cumulative performance
goals. The remaining 2018 SUP Units that were granted are time-based and vest at the end of
the three-year period without regard to performance. Each SUP Unit granted has an
underlying value equivalent to the value of one common share of Fortis and if earned and
vested is paid in cash. The foreign exchange rate utilized for cash payout in the US dollar
equivalent for each plan corresponds to the exchange rate on the business day prior to the
date of that SUP Unit grant. Each SUP Unit accrues notional dividend equivalents equal to the
dividends declared by the Fortis Board of Directors on Fortis common shares.
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In January 2018, CH Energy Group granted 29,514 Units to an officer of CH Energy Group
under a 2018 Performance Share Unit Plan (“2018 PSUP”). CH Energy Group adopted a
similar Performance Share Unit Plan in 2017 (“2017 PSUP”) and in 2016 (“2016 PSUP”) and
issued Units to an officer of CH Energy Group under each plan (collectively “PSUP”). The
PSUP Units are performance based and vest upon achievement of specified performance
goals over the applicable three-year performance period. Each PSUP Unit has an underlying
value equivalent to the value of one common share of Fortis and if earned and vested is paid
in cash. The foreign exchange rate utilized for cash payout in the US dollar equivalent
corresponds to the exchange rate on the business day prior to the date of the PSUP Unit
grant. Each PSUP Unit accrues notional dividend equivalents equal to the dividends declared
by the Fortis Board of Directors on Fortis common shares.
Officers of Central Hudson were granted Units under the Central Hudson 2017 (“2017 SUP”)
Share Unit Plan, and Officers of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson were granted Units
under the Central Hudson 2016 (“2016 SUP”) and 2015 (“2015 SUP”) Share Unit Plans,
collectively the (“SUP plans”); representing the officers’ long-term incentives. Two-thirds of the
SUP Units granted under the SUP plans are performance based and vest at the end of the
respective three-year performance period upon achievement of specified cumulative
performance goals. The remaining SUP Units that were granted under the SUP plans are timebased and vest at the end of the respective three-year period without regard to performance.
Awards granted under the 2015 SUP vested and were paid out during the first quarter of 2018.
For all grants issued, each SUP Unit is equivalent to the value of one common share of Fortis
and if earned and vested is paid in cash. The foreign exchange rate utilized for cash payout in
the US dollar equivalent for each plan corresponds to the exchange rate on the business day
prior to the date of that SUP Unit grant. Each SUP Unit accrues notional dividend equivalents
equal to the dividends declared by the Fortis Board of Directors on Fortis common shares.
CH Energy Group:
2018 PSUP
2017 PSUP
(1)
2016 PSUP
Central Hudson:
2018
2017
2016
2015

SUP
SUP
(1)(2)
SUP
(2)(3)
SUP

Grant Date
Grant Date
Fair Value
January 1, 2018 $
36.59
January 1, 2017 $
30.85
April 1, 2016
$
31.00

Time Based
Granted
Outstanding
-

Performance Based
(4)
Granted Outstanding
29,514
30,716
30,085
32,457
18,806
21,066

Grant Date
Fair Value
36.59
30.85
27.26
33.47

Time Based
(4)
Granted Outstanding
16,337
16,944
18,359
19,739
23,352
24,781
15,795
-

Performance Based
(4)
Granted Outstanding
32,675
33,888
36,717
39,479
46,704
33,972
31,591
-

Grant Date
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2015

$
$
$
$

(1)

Upon establishing the CH Energy Group 2016 PSUP on April 1, 2016, Central Hudson rescinded 16,356 Performance Units issued under
Central Hudson’s 2016 SUP, resulting in a reduction in the total number of units outstanding under the Central Hudson 2016 SUP from 70,056
to 53,700 Units.
(2)
In the third quarter of 2016, per the 2015 and 2016 SUP agreement, 1,041 and 1,231 time based units were paid out related to an Officer
who retired, at $32.71 and $27.47 per unit for approximately $0.1 million.
(3)
In the first quarter of 2018, 51,821 units under the 2015 SUP vested and were paid out at $39.59 per SUP unit for a total of approximately
$2.1 million.
(4)
Includes notional dividends accrued as of December 31, 2018.
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Compensation Expense
The following table summarizes expense for share unit plan units for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 (In Thousands):

CH Energy Group
(1)
Central Hudson

(1)

$
$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
1,299 $
2,974 $
2,491
1,299 $
2,940 $
2,065

(1)

Included in compensation expense for 2018 is a reduction to expense resulting from a transfer of a former Central
Hudson officer who is retirement eligible to an affiliated company.

The liabilities associated with the SUP and PSUP plans are recorded at fair value at each
reporting date until settlement, recognizing compensation expense over the vesting period on
a straight line basis. The fair value of the respective liabilities are based on the Fortis common
share 5 day volume weighted average trading price at the end of each reporting period and the
expected payout based on management's best estimate in accordance with the defined
metrics of each grant.
Under the SUP and PSUP agreements, the amount of any outstanding awards payable to an
employee who retires during the term of the grant and who has 15 years of service and
provides at least six months prior notice of retirement under the terms of the 2016, 2017 and
2018 SUP plans, respectively, is determined as if the employee continued to be an employee
through the end of the performance period. In accordance with ASU 2014-12, in this situation,
compensation expense for that individual is recognized over the requisite service period,
instead of the performance period. In all periods presented, additional expense was
recognized in accordance with ASU 2014-12 for Central Hudson officers who are retirement
eligible under terms of the SUP agreement in which they have attained the required retirement
age and met the required 15 years of service. Fluctuations in compensation expense in the
comparative periods can result from changes in the Fortis Inc. common stock share price and
the projected performance payout percentages.
Employee Share Purchase Plan
Effective May 17, 2017, the Company adopted the Fortis Amended and Restated 2012
Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP”). Fortis authorized 600,000 of its common shares to
be offered under the ESPP. The ESPP allows eligible employees of Fortis and adopting
subsidiaries to contribute during any investment period an amount not less than 1% and not
more than 10% of their eligible compensation to purchase Fortis’ common shares. Under the
ESPP, employees are entitled to fund contributions through interest free loans from the
Company. At December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, employee loans due to the
Company related to the ESPP were approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
The ESPP provides that the Company will contribute as additional salary an amount equal to
10% of an employee’s contribution to a maximum contribution of 1% of eligible compensation.
The Company will also contribute an amount equal to 10% of all dividends payable by Fortis
on all common stock allocated to an employee’s ESPP account. Common shares are
purchased under the ESPP concurrent with the quarterly dividend payment dates of March 1,
June 1, September 1 and December 1. The cost of Central Hudson’s contribution for each of
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was approximately $0.03 million.
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NOTE 13 – Commitments and Contingencies
Electricity Purchase Commitments
Central Hudson meets its capacity and electricity obligations through contracts with capacity
and energy providers, purchases from the NYISO energy and capacity markets and its own
generating capacity.
In June 2014, Central Hudson entered into a contract to purchase available installed capacity
from the Danskammer Generating Facility from October 2014 through July 2018. This contract
expired on July 31, 2018 and was not renewed. In November 2013, Central Hudson entered
into a contract to purchase installed capacity from the Roseton Generating Facility from May
2014 through April 2017. This contract expired on April 30, 2017 and was not renewed.
In 2016, Central Hudson entered into an agreement with Entergy Nuclear Power Marketing,
LLC (“Entergy”) to purchase electricity, on a unit contingent basis at defined prices, from
December 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017. Energy supplied under this agreement cost
approximately $3.3 million, of which $2.7 million related to the first quarter of 2017. This
contract expired on March 31, 2017 and was not renewed.
In 2015, Central Hudson entered into agreements with Entergy to purchase electricity, on a
unit contingent basis at defined prices, from December 1, 2015 through March 31, 2016 and
from June 1, 2016 through August 31, 2016. Energy supplied under these agreements cost
approximately $9.6 million in 2016. Upon contract expiration on August 31, 2016 contracts
were not renewed.
Energy Credit Purchase Obligations
In August 2016, the PSC issued Order 15-E-0302 adopting a Clean Energy Standard that
includes Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) and Zero-Emissions Credit (“ZECs”)
requirements. Beginning in 2017, Load Serving Entities (“LSEs”), which include Central
Hudson, are required to obtain RECs and ZECs in amounts determined by the PSC. LSEs
may satisfy their REC obligation by either purchasing RECs acquired through central
procurement by NYSERDA, by self-supply through direct purchase of tradable RECs, through
value stack payments, or by making alternative compliance payments. LSEs will purchase
ZECs from NYSERDA at prices approved by the PSC based on qualifying in-state nuclear
plant output and Central Hudson’s full-service customer New York Control Area load-ratio
share. At December 31, 2018, based on Central Hudson’s estimated annual load to be served
through March 31, 2021, the obligation to procure ZECs is estimated to be approximately
$20.1 million and for RECs the purchase obligation through December 31, 2021 is estimated to
be approximately $5.1 million. The actual obligation will be determined and is contingent upon
actual load served. Central Hudson intends to fulfill its REC obligation through NYSERDA and
other value stack payments for renewable attributes that will be applied towards Central
Hudson’s REC requirement. The requirement to procure RECs and ZECs will continue based
upon Central Hudson’s future load served to its customers through 2029. These future costs
are recoverable from customers through rates.
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Operating Leases
CH Energy Group's leasing activities accounted for as operating leases primarily relate to
office and garage facilities, communication towers and office equipment to be used in its
normal operations. The provisions of these leases generally provide for renewal options and
some contain escalation clauses.
Operating lease rental payment amounts charged to expense by CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson were $1.3 million for 2018, $1.5 million for 2017 and $1.4 million for 2016.
Future minimum lease payments excluding executory costs, such as property taxes and
insurance, are included in the table of Commitments. All leases are non-cancelable and rent
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term.
Natural Gas Commitments
Central Hudson meets its natural gas capacity and supply obligations through firm natural gas
supply contracts with energy providers for the purchase of natural gas including peak demand
supply. Gas supply contracts are generally short term in nature. Central Hudson also enters
into contracts associated with natural gas interstate pipeline capacity, and supply contracts for
storage of natural gas.
Commitments
The following is a summary of commitments for CH Energy Group and its affiliates as of
December 31, 2018 (In Thousands):
Projected Payments Due By Period
Year
Year
Year
Year
Less than
Ending
Ending
Ending
Ending
1 year
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
$
1,118 $
477 $
237 $
221 $
201 $
1,153 $

Operating Leases
Purchased Electric
(1)
Contracts
19,987
Energy Credit Purchase
Agreements
9,221
Purchased Natural Gas
(1)
Contracts
29,775
Repayments of Long-Term
Debt
28,607
Interest Obligations on
Long-Term Debt
30,475
Total
$ 119,183 $
(1)

Total
3,407

11,469

5,007

148

148

742

37,501

10,889

5,100

-

-

-

25,210

15,158

13,953

12,868

10,968

10,011

92,733

41,718

45,987

25,364

2,100

544,046

687,822

29,000
108,711 $

26,759
25,321
24,790
354,051
490,396
97,043 $ 63,922 $ 38,207 $ 910,003 $ 1,337,069

Purchased electric and purchased natural gas costs for Central Hudson are fully recovered via their respective regulatory cost
adjustment mechanisms.
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The following is a summary of commitments for Central Hudson as of December 31, 2018 (In
Thousands):
Projected Payments Due By Period
Year
Year
Year
Year
Less than
Ending
Ending
Ending
Ending
1 year
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
$
1,118 $
477 $
237 $
221 $
201 $
1,153 $

Operating Leases
Purchased Electric
(1)
Contracts
19,987
11,469
Energy Credit Purchase
Agreements
9,221
10,889
Purchased Natural Gas
(1)
Contracts
29,775
15,158
Repayments of Long-Term
Debt
27,000
40,000
Interest Obligations on
Long-Term Debt
29,559
28,195
Total
$ 116,660 $ 106,188 $
(1)

Total
3,407

5,007

148

148

742

37,501

5,100

-

-

-

25,210

13,953

12,868

10,968

10,011

92,733

44,150

23,400

-

539,400

673,950

26,073
24,761
24,366
353,649
486,603
94,520 $ 61,398 $ 35,683 $ 904,955 $ 1,319,404

Purchased electric and purchased natural gas costs for Central Hudson are fully recovered via their respective regulatory cost
adjustment mechanisms.

Other Commitments
Capital Expenditures
Central Hudson is a regulated utility and, as such, is obligated to provide service to customers
within its service territory. Central Hudson’s capital expenditures are largely driven by the
need to ensure continued and enhanced performance, and the reliability and safety of the
electric and natural gas systems.
Pension Benefit and Other Post Retirement Benefit Funding Contributions
Central Hudson is required to meet its contractual benefit payment obligations. Decisions
about how to fund the Retirement Plan to meet these obligations are made annually and are
primarily affected by the discount rate used to determine benefit obligations, current asset
values, corporate resources and the projection of Retirement Plan assets. Based on the
funding requirements of the Pension Protection Act of 2006, Central Hudson plans to make
contributions that maintain the target funded percentage at 80% or higher. At December 31,
2018 the Retirement Plan was fully funded for 2018. Actual contributions for 2019 could vary
significantly based upon economic growth, projected investment returns, inflation and interest
rate assumptions. Actual funded status could vary significantly based on asset returns and
changes in the discount rate used to estimate the present value of future obligations. In
January 2019, Central Hudson is expected to make a contribution of $1.0 million to the 401(h)
Plan to fund the management OPEB liabilities, resulting in a funded status that met Central
Hudson’s objective. See Note 19 – “Subsequent Events” for details of the January payment.
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Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
As a result of the acquisition of CH Energy Group, Inc. by Fortis on June 27, 2013, in
accordance with the terms of the Trust agreement for the SERP, Central Hudson is required to
maintain a funding level at 110% of the present value of the accrued benefits payable under
the Plan on an annual basis. At December 31, 2018 the SERP was fully funded for 2018.
Annual contributions to the SERP could vary based on investment returns, discount rates, and
participant demographics.
Parental Guarantee
CHET was established to be an investor in Transco, which was created to develop, own and
operate electric transmission projects in New York State. In December 2014, Transco filed an
application with the FERC for the recovery through a formula rate, the cost of and a return on
five high voltage transmission projects totaling $1.7 billion. CHET’s maximum commitment for
these five projects is $182 million, which is the maximum budgeted amount for these projects
at 100% equity. As of December 31, 2018, CHET’s investment in Transco was approximately
$6.9 million.
CH Energy Group issued a parental guarantee to Transco to assure the payment of CHET’s
maximum commitment of $182 million. As of December 31, 2018, CH Energy Group is not
aware of any existing condition that would require any payments under this guarantee.
Contingencies
Environmental Matters
Central Hudson


Site Investigation and Remediation Program

Central Hudson has been notified by the New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation (“DEC”) that it believes Central Hudson or its predecessors at one time owned
and/or operated manufactured gas plants (“MGP”) to serve their customers’ heating and
lighting needs, at seven sites in Central Hudson’s franchise territory. The DEC has further
requested that Central Hudson investigate and, if necessary, remediate these sites under a
Consent Order, Voluntary Cleanup Agreement (“VCA”) (no longer available after March 31,
2018) or Brownfield Cleanup Agreement (“BCA”). The DEC has placed seven sites on the
New York State Environmental Site Remediation Database. In addition, Central Hudson is
also performing environmental SIR at two other non-MGP sites within its service territory. The
first site, Little Britain Road, originally operated under a VCA, still requires additional necessary
SIR-related work. Central Hudson is currently reviewing a draft BCA with outside legal counsel
to replace the former VCA. The second site, Eltings Corners, is proceeding with SIR related
work stipulated within the facility’s’ current Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
Hazardous Waste Storage Permit.
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Central Hudson accrues for remediation costs based on the amounts that can be reasonably
estimated at a point in time. As of December 31, 2018, Central Hudson has accrued $47.0
million with respect to all SIR activities, including operation, maintenance and monitoring costs
(“OM&M”), of which $23.3 million is anticipated to be spent in the next twelve months.
SIR can be divided into various stages of completion based on the milestones of activities
completed and reports reviewed. These stages, the types of costs accrued during various
stages and the sites currently in each stage include:
1. Investigation – Begins with preliminary investigations and is completed upon filing and
approval by DEC of a Remedial Investigation (“RI”) Report. Central Hudson accrues for
estimated investigation costs.
 Site #9 – Little Britain Road - RI in Progress
 Per DEC recommendation, Central Hudson completed a survey of the site
monitoring wells, developed remaining wells and collected groundwater samples for
laboratory analysis in May 2017. The results of the sampling event were submitted
to the DEC for review with a recommendation on the next course of action in August
2017. Based on the results, the DEC has required a supplemental investigation. As
such, Central Hudson submitted a work plan to the DEC and received approval in
February 2018.
 An Environmental Easement was executed with the DEC in December 2017 and
subsequently the proof of recording was submitted to the DEC in January 2018.
 Investigation activities were completed in November 2018 and an investigation
summary report is anticipated to be submitted to the DEC in the first quarter of 2019.
 A revised Brownfield Cleanup Program Application was submitted to the DEC in
August 2018. The DEC issued a letter of Completeness on August 24, 2018 which
commenced a public comment period extending to October 5, 2018. On November
8, 2018 the DEC forwarded a draft BCA for our review.
2. Remedial Alternatives Analysis (“RAA”) – Engineering analysis of alternatives for
remediation based on the RI is compiled into a RAA Report. Upon completion of the RAA
and the filing with the DEC, management accrues for an estimate of remediation costs
developed and quantified in the RAA based on DEC approved methods, as well as an
estimate of post-remediation OM&M. These amounts represent a significant portion of the
total costs to remediate and are subject to change based on further investigations, final
remedial design and associated engineering estimates, regulatory comments and requests,
remedial design changes/negotiations and changed or unforeseen conditions during the
remediation or additional requirements following the remediation. Prior to the completion of
the RAA, management cannot reasonably estimate what cost will be incurred for
remediation or post-remediation activities.
3. Remedial Design - Upon approval of the RAA and final decision of remediation approach
based on alternatives presented, a Remedial Design (“RD”) or Remedial Action Work Plan
(“RAWP”) is developed and filed with the DEC for approval.
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4. Remediation – Completion of the work plan as defined in the approved RD. Upon
completion, final reports are filed with the DEC for approval and may include a Construction
Completion Report (“CCR”), Final Engineering Report (“FER”), or other reports required by
the DEC based on the work performed.
 Site #5 – North Water Street – Remediation in Progress
 The DEC issued a Decision Document in March 2016 and approved the RAA Report
in April 2016.
 Central Hudson executed a “Design-Build” contract with an environmental
engineering firm in March 2017. Pre-Design Investigation (“PDI”) and RD activities
commenced in May 2017.
 On May 29, 2018 the DEC approved the commencement of upland remedial
activities, not including the pre-trenching along the barrier wall alignment.
 A RD/RAWP detailing the upland (including bulkhead installation) and Hudson River
remediation activities was approved by the DEC on August 21, 2018.
 On November 16, 2018 the United States Army Corps of Engineers, having received
concurrence from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, issued the
Nationwide Permit No. 38.
 The 401 Water Quality Certification was issued on October 12, 2018.
 Site mobilization and upland remedial activities commenced in June 2018 and
bulkhead/barrier wall installation commenced in November 2018. Remedial dredging
activities are anticipated to commence in September 2019.
 Central Hudson is working cooperatively with the DEC to resolve an alleged instance
of non-compliance with the work plan and applicable law involving a sheening event
that occurred at the site on December 5, 2018; such resolution could include the
imposition of a fine in an amount not material to the Company.
 Approximately $41.0 million has been accrued as of December 31, 2018, based on
the scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation and OM&M
activities, of which approximately $22.6 million is expected to be spent in the next
twelve months.
 Site # 8 - Eltings Corners – Remediation and Complete/Final Restoration in Progress
 PDI activities were completed during the second quarter of 2017 and the results
were submitted as an appendix to the RAWP to the DEC in September 2017.
 A contract to complete the remedial activities was executed in January 2018. Upon
receipt of regulatory approvals, remedial activities commenced in May 2018 and
were completed in the fourth quarter of 2018. Final restoration of the site has been
accomplished with the exception of some plantings within the wetland that will take
place in 2019. A FER is anticipated to be submitted to the DEC in the first quarter of
2019.
 Approximately $0.1 million has been accrued as of December 31, 2018, based on
the scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation and OM&M
activities, which is expected to be spent in the next twelve months.
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5. Post-Remediation Monitoring – Entails the OM&M as directed by the DEC based on the
approved final report of remediation. The activities are typically defined in a Site
Management Plan (“SMP”), which is approved by the DEC. The extent of activities during
this phase may increase or decrease based on the results of ongoing monitoring being
performed and future potential usage of the property.
 Site #2 – Newburgh Area A – Post-Remediation In Progress
 In 2012, Central Hudson retired and removed propane air facilities located on Area
A. The RAWP for this site was approved by the DEC in June 2015 and remedial
activities were completed between October 2015 and January 2016.
 An Environmental Easement for Area A was executed with the DEC and filed with
the Orange County Clerk in March 2017.
 The CCR for Area A was approved by the DEC in August 2017.
 A SMP was submitted to the DEC in December 2017 and approved in February
2018.
 The DEC approved the FER summary letter in February 2018 and issued a
Satisfactory Completion letter changing the site classification from active to closed
on February 28, 2018.
 Site #2 – Newburgh Area B and C – Post-Remediation In Progress
 A CCR associated with the remedial activities completed in Areas B & C was
approved in July 2017 and a SMP related to Area B was approved in February 2018.
The DEC issued a Satisfactory Completion letter, regarding the Consent Order,
changing the site classification from active to closed on February 28, 2018.
However, on-going site inspections (site cover and barrier wall), weekly groundwater
monitoring (coal tar recovery), and maintenance activities required by the SMP will
continue as necessary.
 Approximately $2.3 million has been accrued as of December 31, 2018, based on
the scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation and OM&M
activities, of which $0.1 million is expected to be spent in the next twelve months.
 Site #3 – Laurel Street – Post-Remediation In Progress
 In accordance with the January 2015 SMP, an annual site inspection documenting
the status of the Engineering Controls (“ECs”) and the Institutional Controls (“ICs”),
was performed in April 2018. No actionable findings were noted and the required
Periodic Review Report (“PRR”), summarizing the status of the ECs and ICs, was
submitted to the DEC for review in April 2018.
 In October 2017, an updated SMP was approved.
 All required remedial work was completed and a Release and Covenant Not to Sue
Letter was issued on March 27, 2018 by the DEC. However, on-going annual site
inspections (site cover) along with semi-annual groundwater monitoring both at the
former site and previously established off-site locations will continue.
 Approximately $0.4 million has been accrued as of December 31, 2018, based on
the scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation and OM&M
activities, of which $0.1 million is expected to be spent in the next twelve months.
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 Site #4 – Catskill – Post-Remediation In Progress
 In accordance with the December 2014 SMP, an annual site inspection documenting
the status of the ECs and ICs was performed in April 2018. No actionable findings
were noted and the required PRR summarizing the results was submitted to the
DEC for review in April 2018.
 In a September 2018 letter the DEC reduced the groundwater sampling frequency of
the monitoring well network from semi-annually to annually. However, on-going
annual site inspections (site cover) and the monitoring wells will continue to be
gauged on a semi-annual basis.
 Approximately $0.3 million has been accrued as of December 31, 2018, based on
the scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation and OM&M
activities, which is expected to be spent in the next twelve months.
 Site #6 – Kingston – Post-Remediation In Progress
 The RD Report was approved by the DEC in January 2016. A remedial construction
“Design-Build” contract was executed with an EEF in February 2016. A revised
Remedial Work Plan and required permit packages were approved in June 2016.
 Site preparation and remedial activities commenced in March and May 2016,
respectively. Remedial restoration activities were completed in June 2017.
 An Environmental Easement was executed with the DEC and filed with the Ulster
County Clerk in the third quarter of 2017.
 The final SMP was submitted and approved by the DEC in November 2017.
 The DEC approved the FER and issued a Certificate of Completion (“COC”) in
December 2017 and the COC was subsequently filed with the Ulster County Clerk.
 An inspection of the transition zone, located on the Landing property was conducted
in May 2018 in accordance with the approved SMP and a summary of findings was
submitted to the DEC on May 31, 2018. The results of the inspection were positive
and there should be no further actions nor inspections of the transition zone required
in the future. However, on-going site inspections (site cover and bathymetric
surveys), bi-annual groundwater monitoring (coal tar recovery), and maintenance
activities (utility cap) required by the SMP will continue as necessary.
 Approximately $2.4 million has been accrued as of December 31, 2018, based on
the scope of work and estimated costs for OM&M activities, of which $0.1 million is
expected to be spent over the next twelve months.
 No Action Required
 Site #1 – Beacon – No further costs are expected and no amounts are accrued related
to this site. If the building at this site were to be removed, further investigation and
testing would be required related to the soil under the building, which may require
additional remediation. Management cannot currently estimate the likelihood of the
building being removed or the costs that may be incurred related to this.
 Site #7 – Bayeaux Street – No further investigation or remedial action is currently
required. However, per the DEC, this site still remains on the list for potential future
investigation.
Future remediation activities, including OM&M and related costs may vary significantly from
the assumptions used in Central Hudson's current cost estimates and these costs could have a
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material adverse effect (the extent of which cannot be reasonably determined) on the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson if
Central Hudson were unable to recover all or a substantial portion of these costs via collection
in rates from customers and/or through insurance.
Central Hudson expects to recover its remediation costs from its customers. The current
components of this recovery include:
 As part of the 2018 Rate Order, Central Hudson maintained previously granted deferral
authority and future recovery for the differences between actual Environmental SIR
costs (both MGP and non-MGP) and the associated rate allowances, with carrying
charges to be accrued on the deferred balances at the authorized pre-tax rate of return.
 The 2018 Rate Order includes cash recovery of approximately $25.7 million during the
three-year rate plan period ending June 30, 2021, with $4.0 million recovered through
December 31, 2018. Additionally, under the 2015 Rate Order, Central Hudson had
cash recoveries of $3.3 million for the first half of 2018, for a total of $7.3 million of cash
recovery for 2018.
 The total spent in the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 related to site
investigation and remediation was approximately $8.8 million and $4.7 million,
respectively.
 The regulatory asset balance including carrying charges as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 was $53.6 million and $59.8 million, respectively, which represents the cumulative
difference between amounts spent or currently accrued as a liability and the amounts
recovered to date through rates or insurance recoveries, plus carrying charges accrued
on deferred balances.
Central Hudson has put its insurers on notice and intends to seek reimbursement from its
insurers for its costs. Certain of these insurers have denied coverage. There were no
insurance recoveries during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. We do not expect
insurance recoveries to offset a meaningful portion of total costs.
Other Environmental Matters
On April 17, 2017, Central Hudson received a Request for Information from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, regarding the Wappingers Creek Superfund Site
in Wappinger Falls, NY. In July 2017, Central Hudson responded to the Request for
Information by submitting information and documents to the EPA. Since that submittal, the
Company has received no further communication from the EPA regarding this matter. The
Company cannot predict the outcome of, or assess the extent of liability, if any, relating to this
matter.
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Litigation
Asbestos Litigation
Central Hudson is involved in various asbestos lawsuits.
As of December 31, 2018, of the 3,376 asbestos cases brought against Central Hudson, 1,176
remain pending. Of the cases no longer pending against Central Hudson, 2,042 have been
dismissed or discontinued without payment by Central Hudson and Central Hudson has settled
158 cases. Central Hudson is presently unable to assess the validity of the remaining
asbestos lawsuits; however, based on information known to Central Hudson at this time,
including Central Hudson’s experience in settling asbestos cases and in obtaining dismissals
of asbestos cases, Central Hudson believes that the costs which may be incurred in
connection with the remaining lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, results of operations or cash flows of either CH Energy Group or Central Hudson.
Other Litigation
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson are involved in various other legal and administrative
proceedings incidental to their businesses, which are in various stages. While these matters
collectively could involve substantial amounts, based on the facts currently known, it is the
opinion of management that their ultimate resolution will not have a material adverse effect on
either CH Energy Group’s or Central Hudson’s financial positions, results of operations or cash
flows.
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson expense legal costs as incurred.

NOTE 14 – Segments and Related Information
CH Energy Group's reportable operating segments are the regulated electric utility business
and regulated natural gas utility business of Central Hudson. Other activities of CH Energy
Group, which do not constitute a business segment, include CHEC’s remaining energy
investments, CHET’s investment in Transco (a regulated entity), CHGT which has no current
activity, and the holding company’s activities, which consist primarily of financing its
subsidiaries, and are reported under the heading “Other Businesses and Investments.”
General corporate expenses and Central Hudson’s property common to both electric and
natural gas segments have been allocated in accordance with practices established for
regulatory purposes. The common allocation per the terms of the 2015 and 2018 Rate Orders
is 80% for electric and 20% for natural gas.
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CH Energy Group Segment Disclosure
(In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2018
Segments
Other
Central Hudson
Businesses
Natural
and
Electric
Gas
Investments
Eliminations

Revenues from external customers
Intersegment revenues

$

Total operating revenues
Energy supply costs
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

558,533
39

$

166,098
328

$

-

$

(367)

Total
$

724,631
-

558,572
191,501

166,426
63,967

-

(367)
(367)

724,631
255,101

254,494
41,749

60,539
12,745

911
-

-

315,944
54,494

Operating income (loss)
Other income, net

70,828
3,764

29,175
797

(911)
1,156

-

99,092
5,717

Finance charges

23,259
51,333

7,907
22,065

1,016
(771)

-

32,182
72,627

9,612

5,605

(133)

-

15,084

Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to
CH Energy Group
Segment Assets at
December 31, 2018
Capital Expenditures

$

41,721

$

16,460

$

(638)

$

-

$

57,543

$
$

1,650,929
118,598

$
$

582,169
70,375

$
$

13,715
-

$
$

(953)
-

$
$

2,245,860
188,973

CH Energy Group Segment Disclosure
(In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2017
Segments
Other
Central Hudson
Businesses
Natural
and
Electric
Gas
Investments
Eliminations

Revenues from external customers

$

528,277

$

143,192

$

-

$

Total
-

$

671,469

Intersegment revenues
Total operating revenues

28
528,305

237
143,429

-

(265)
(265)

671,469

Energy supply costs
Operating expenses

155,135
245,522

45,041
60,789

407

(265)
-

199,911
306,718

38,992
88,656

11,524
26,075

(407)

-

50,516
114,324

2,635
23,113

(221)
7,386

1,313
1,114

-

3,727
31,613

(208)
1,076

-

86,438
32,686

(1)

Depreciation and amortization
Operating income (loss)
(1)
Other income(expense), net
Finance charges
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to
CH Energy Group
Segment Assets at
December 31, 2017
Capital Expenditures

68,178
32,712

18,468
(1,102)

(2)

(2)

$

35,466

$

19,570

$

(1,284)

$

-

$

53,752

$

1,527,908

$

550,074

$

13,192

$

(1,287)

$

2,089,887

$

113,094

$

56,548

$

-

$

-

$

169,643

(1) Effective January 2018, the Company adopted ASU 2017-07 which required the non-service cost component of pension cost to be reported
outside income from operation and under other income, net. Non-service cost component includes $2.1 million and $0.5 million for electric and
gas, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2017 has been reclassified to conform to 2018 presentation.
(2) Includes reclassification of $9.7 million in deferred taxes between electric and gas segments due to prior year allocation change within the
segments.
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CH Energy Group Segment Disclosure
(In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2016
Segments
Other
Central Hudson
Businesses
Natural
and
Electric
Gas
Investments
Eliminations

Revenues from external customers

$

510,762

$

128,886

$

-

$

Total
-

$

639,648

Intersegment revenues
Total operating revenues

19
510,781

184
129,070

-

(203)
(203)

639,648

Energy supply costs
Operating expenses

157,448
231,326

33,082
55,972

983

(203)
-

190,327
288,281

36,085
85,922

10,424
29,592

(983)

-

46,509
114,531

Finance charges

(135)
23,245

(719)
6,939

267
1,214

(2)
(2)

Income (loss) before income taxes

62,542

21,934

(1,930)

-

82,546

Income tax expense (benefit)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to
CH Energy Group
Segment Assets at
December 31, 2016

23,957

7,875

(191)

-

31,641

$

38,585

$

14,059

$

(1,739)

$

-

$

50,905

$

1,458,855

$

499,286

$

16,754

$

(692)

$

1,974,203

Capital Expenditures

$

117,717

$

58,178

$

-

$

-

$

175,895

(1)

Depreciation and amortization
Operating income (loss)
(1)
Other income(expense), net

(589)
31,396

(1) Effective January 2018, the Company adopted ASU 2017-07 which required the non-service cost component of pension cost to be reported
outside income from operation and under other income, net. Non-service cost component includes $3.7 million and $1.1 million for electric and
gas, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2016 has been reclassified to conform to 2018 presentation.

NOTE 15 – Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
Purpose of Derivatives
Central Hudson enters into derivative contracts in conjunction with the Company’s energy risk
management program to hedge certain risk exposure related to its business operations. The
derivative contracts are typically either exchange-traded or over-the-counter (“OTC”)
instruments. The primary risks the Company seeks to manage by using derivative instruments
are interest rate risk, commodity price risk and adverse or unexpected weather conditions.
Central Hudson uses derivative contracts to reduce the impact of volatility in the prices of
natural gas and electricity and to hedge exposure to volatility in interest rates for its variable
rate long-term debt. Derivative transactions are not used for speculative purposes. Central
Hudson derivative activities consist of the following:


Interest rate caps are used to minimize interest rate risks and to improve the
matching of assets and liabilities. An interest rate cap is an interest rate option
agreement in which payments are made by the seller of the option when the
reference rate exceeds the specified strike rate (or the set rate at which the option
contract can be exercised). The purpose of these agreements is to reduce exposure
to rising interest rates while still having the ability to take advantage of falling interest
rates by putting a “cap” on the interest rate Central Hudson pays on debt for which
such caps are purchased. See Note 10 - “Capitalization – Long-Term Debt” for
further details regarding Central Hudson’s interest rate cap agreements.
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Natural gas futures are used to mitigate commodity price volatility for natural gas
purchases. A natural gas futures contract is a standardized contract to buy or sell a
specified commodity (natural gas) of standardized quantity at a certain date in the
future, at a market determined price (the futures price). Central Hudson’s reason for
purchasing these contracts is to moderate price fluctuations for natural gas and the
impact of volatility in the commodity markets on its customers.



Electricity swaps are used to mitigate commodity price volatility for electricity
purchases for Central Hudson’s full service customers. A swap contract or a contract
for differences is the exchange of two payment streams between two counterparties
where the cash flows are dependent on the price of the underlying commodity. In an
effort to moderate commodity price volatility, Central Hudson enters into contracts to
pay a fixed price and receive a market price for a defined commodity and volume.
These contracts are aligned with Central Hudson’s actual commodity purchases at
market price, resulting in a net fixed price payment.



Weather derivative contracts are used to hedge the effect of significant variances in
weather conditions from normal patterns on purchased electricity and natural gas
costs, and on the related revenues. Premiums paid for weather related instruments
are amortized based on the pattern of normal purchases of electricity or natural gas
over the term of the contract and any payouts earned will be recorded as a reduction
of the cost.

Energy Contracts Subject to Regulatory Deferral
Central Hudson has been authorized to fully recover certain risk management costs through its
natural gas and electricity cost adjustment charge mechanisms. Risk management costs are
defined by the PSC as costs associated with transactions that are intended to reduce price
volatility or reduce overall costs to customers. These costs include transaction costs and gains
and losses associated with risk management instruments. The related gains and losses
associated with Central Hudson’s derivatives are included as part of Central Hudson's
commodity cost and/or price-reconciled in its natural gas and electricity cost adjustment charge
mechanisms and are not designated as hedges.
The percentage of Central Hudson’s electric and natural gas requirements covered with fixed
price forward purchases at December 31, 2018 are as follows:
(1)

Central Hudson
Electric Derivative Contracts:
2019
Natural Gas Derivative Contracts:
January 2019 – March 2019
(1)

% of Requirement Hedged
0.8 million MWh
28.7%
1.0 million Dth
28.7%

Projected coverage as of December 31, 2018.

In 2018, OTC derivative contracts covered approximately 36.4% of Central Hudson’s total
electricity supply requirements as compared to 48.2% in 2017.
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Cash Flow Hedges
Central Hudson has been authorized to fully recover the interest costs associated with its
$33.7 million Series B NYSERDA Bonds and its $30.0 million of variable rate debt, which
includes costs and gains or losses associated with its interest rate cap contracts.
Derivative Risks
The basic types of risks associated with derivatives are market risk (that the value of the
derivative will be adversely impacted by changes in the market, primarily the change in
commodity prices and interest rates) and credit risk (that the counterparty will not perform
according to the terms of the contract). The market risk of the derivatives generally offset the
market risk associated with the hedged commodity.
The majority of Central Hudson’s derivative instruments contain provisions that require Central
Hudson to maintain specified issuer credit ratings and financial strength ratings. Should
Central Hudson’s ratings fall below these specified levels, it would be in violation of the
provisions and the derivatives’ counterparties could terminate the contracts and request
immediate payment.
To help limit the credit exposure of derivatives, Central Hudson enters into master netting
agreements with counterparties whereby contracts in a gain position can be offset against
contracts in a loss position. Of the 26 total agreements held by Central Hudson, 11 contain
credit-risk related contingent features. As of December 31, 2018, three agreements with
credit-risk contingent features were in a liability position. The aggregate fair value of the
derivative contracts that contain contingent features and the amount that would be required to
settle these instruments on December 31, 2018 if the contingent features were triggered, are
described below.
Contingent Contracts
(Dollars In Thousands)

As of December 31, 2018
# of Contracts in a Liability
Position Containing the
Triggering Feature

Triggering Event
Central Hudson:
Credit Rating Downgrade
Adequate Assurance
Total Central Hudson

1

2
1
3

Gross Fair
Value of
Contract
$
$

(1,003)
(388)
(1,391)

Cost to Settle if Contingent
Feature is Triggered
(net of collateral)
$
$

(948)
(65)
(1,013)

Derivative Contracts
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson have elected gross presentation for their derivative
contracts under master netting agreements and collateral positions. On December 31, 2018
and December 31, 2017, Central Hudson did not have collateral posted against the fair value
amount of derivatives.
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The net presentation for CH Energy Group's and Central Hudson's derivative assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as follows (In Thousands):

Description
As of December 31, 2018
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Central Hudson – natural gas
Total CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson Assets
As of December 31, 2017
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Total CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson Assets

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized
Assets

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Statement
of Financial
Position

Net Amount
of Assets
Presented in
the Statement
of Financial
Position

$

711
171

$

- $
-

711
171

$

711
-

$

-

$

171

$

882

$

-

$

882

$

711

$

-

$

171

$

1,540

$

-

$

1,540

$

482

$

-

$

1,058

$

1,540

$

-

$

1,540

$

482

$

-

$

1,058

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Statement of Financial Position
Cash
Financial
Collateral
Net
Instruments
Received
Amount

(1) Interest rate cap agreements are not shown in the above chart. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 the fair value was $0.

Description
As of December 31, 2018
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Total CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson Liabilities
As of December 31, 2017
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Central Hudson - natural gas
Total CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson Liabilities

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized
Liabilities

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Statement
of Financial
Position

Net Amount
of Liabilities
Presented in
the Statement
of Financial
Position

$

2,135

$

- $

2,135

$

711

$

-

$

1,424

$

2,135

$

-

$

2,135

$

711

$

-

$

1,424

$

3,266
509

$

-

$

3,266
509

$

482
-

$

-

$

2,784
509

$

3,775

$

-

$

3,775

$

482

$

-

$

3,293

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Statement of Financial Position
Cash
Financial
Collateral
Net
Instruments
Received
Amount

(1) Interest rate cap agreements are not shown in the above chart. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 the fair value was $0.

Gross Fair Value of Derivative Instruments
Current accounting guidance related to fair value measurements establishes a fair value
hierarchy to prioritize the inputs used in valuation techniques based on observable and
unobservable data, but not the valuation techniques themselves. Observable inputs are inputs
that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. Classification of
inputs is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the overall valuation.
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The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into the three categories
described below:
Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 Inputs: Directly or indirectly observable (market-based) information. This includes
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.
Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability for which there is either no market
data, or for which asset and liability values are not correlated with market value.
Derivative contracts are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, CH Energy Group's and Central Hudson's derivative assets and liabilities by
category and hierarchy level are as follows (In Thousands):

Asset or Liability Category
(1)
As of December 31, 2018
Assets:
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Central Hudson - natural gas
Total CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Assets
Liabilities:
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric1
Total CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Liabilities
(1)
As of December 31, 2017
Assets:
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Total CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Assets
Liabilities:
Derivative Contracts:
Central Hudson - electric
Central Hudson - natural gas
Total CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Liabilities

Fair Value

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$

711
171

$

171

$

711 $
-

-

$

882

$

171

$

711 $

-

$

2,135

$

-

$

2,135 $

-

$

2,135

$

-

$

2,135 $

-

$

1,540

$

-

$

1,540 $

-

$

1,540

$

-

$

1,540 $

-

$

3,266
509

$

509

$

3,266 $
-

-

$

3,775

$

509

$

3,266 $

-

(1) Interest rate cap agreements are not shown in the above chart. These are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy using SIFMA
Municipal Swap Curves and 3 month US Dollar Libor rate forward curves. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 the fair value was $0.

Central Hudson obtains forward pricing for Level 3 derivatives from an independent third party
provider of derivative pricing. Significant unobservable inputs utilized in their pricing model are
bi-lateral contracts and projected activity of certain major participants.
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The table listed below provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending net balances for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified as Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy (In Thousands):

Balance at Beginning of Period
Unrealized losses
Realized losses
Purchases
Issuances
Sales and settlements
Transfers in and/ out of Level 3
Balance at End of Period
The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in earnings
attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to derivatives
still held at end of period

$

11
1
$
$

Year Ended
December 31,
2018
2017
- $
512
(2,238)
(14,425)
- 1
- 1
- 1
14,425
- 1
1,726
- 1 $
-

1

$

-

CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s derivative contracts are typically either exchangetraded or OTC instruments. Exchange-traded and OTC derivatives are valued based on listed
market prices. On December 31, 2018, Central Hudson’s derivative contracts were comprised
of swap contracts for electricity and natural gas. The electric swap contracts from January
2018 through December 2019 are valued using NYISO forward prices provided by a broker,
OTC Global Holdings, as posted on the Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) Global Market Intelligence
website. All natural gas contracts are classified as Level 1 and all electric contracts are
classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of Level 1.
All electric swap contracts which had been previously classified as Level 3 were reclassified
and transferred to Level 2 on December 31, 2017. Since the NYISO Zone G forward prices
obtained from OTC Global Holdings, as posted on the S&P Global Market Intelligence website
and used to calculate the fair value of the electric swap contracts are observable, management
has determined that Level 2 classification is appropriate.
The credit risk considered in the fair value assessment of contracts in a liability position is that
associated with Central Hudson. Based on Central Hudson’s current senior unsecured debt
ratings by Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, management has concluded that the credit risk associated
with Central Hudson’s non-performance related to these instruments is not significant, and
therefore, no adjustment was made to the fair value. For those contracts in an asset position,
management believes the credit risk of non-performance by counterparties is not significant
due to the fact that Central Hudson utilizes multiple counterparties, the majority of which have
ratings by Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, which denote expectations of a low default risk.
Based on the credit ratings by Moody’s, S&P and Fitch of the counterparty and other credit risk
review procedures performed, management has concluded that the credit risk associated with
the counterparty’s non-performance on call options in an asset position is not significant.
Therefore, no adjustment related to credit risk has been made to the fair value of contracts in
an asset position.
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The Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Statements of Income
Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative instruments are conveyed to or
recovered from customers through PSC authorized deferral accounting mechanisms, with no
material impact on cash flows, results of operations or liquidity. Realized gains and losses on
Central Hudson’s energy derivative instruments are reported as part of purchased natural gas,
purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation in CH Energy Group’s and Central
Hudson’s Statements of Income as the corresponding amounts are either recovered from or
returned to customers through fuel cost adjustment mechanisms in revenues. Additionally,
unrealized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative contracts have no impact on
earnings since the energy contracts are subject to regulatory deferral.
For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, neither CH Energy Group’s nor
Central Hudson had derivatives designated as hedging instruments. The following table
summarizes the effects of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s derivatives on the
Statements of Income (In Thousands):

Central Hudson:
Electricity swap contracts
Natural gas swap contracts
Total CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson

Amount of Gain(Loss) Recognized as
Increase/(Decrease) in the Statements
of Income
Year Ended
December 31,
2018
2017
2016

$

(2,670)

$ (14,425) $ (18,232)

287
$

(2,383)

93

(1,247)

Location of Gain (Loss)
Deferred purchased electric costs
Deferred purchased natural gas
(1)
costs

(1)

$ (14,332) $ (19,479)

(1) Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative instruments are conveyed to or recovered from customers through PSC authorized
deferral accounting mechanisms, with an offset in revenue and on the balance sheet, and no impact on results of operations.

Other Hedging Activities
Central Hudson – Electric
In October 2018, Central Hudson entered into a weather option for the period December 1,
2018 through March 31, 2019, to hedge the effect of significant variances in weather
conditions on electricity costs. For Central Hudson, this transaction will impact purchased
electric expense and revenue, but will not have a net income impact due to the full deferral
authority over commodity costs through its electric cost adjustment charge mechanisms. The
aggregate limit on the contract is $5 million. This contract will be accounted for in accordance
with guidance specific to accounting for weather derivatives. The $1.5 million premium paid will
be amortized to purchased electricity over the term of the contract and all payouts will be
recorded as a reduction to purchased electricity in the Statements of Income. The unamortized
premium at December 31, 2018 is $1.1 million and is included in the “special deposits and
prepayments” line item of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s Balance Sheets.
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In 2017 and 2016, Central Hudson entered into similar weather options for the periods of
December 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018 and December 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017,
respectively, with an aggregate limit of $5 million per contract. Premiums paid were amortized
to purchased electricity over the term of the agreements. The respective payouts earned of
$2.2 million and $0.6 million on the 2017 and 2016 contracts were recorded as a reduction to
purchased electricity in the Statements of Income.
Based on Central Hudson’s valuation model, the fair value of the weather option purchased for
the December 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019 period, as of December 31, 2018 was
approximately $1.1 million. The fair value of the December 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018
weather option was approximately $1.6 million, including the $0.9 million earned in December
2017. The valuations were based on significant unobservable inputs, including short term
temperature forecast and historical temperature fluctuations in winter and, as such, would be a
Level 3 valuation.
Central Hudson – Natural Gas
In October 2018, Central Hudson entered into a weather option for the period December 1,
2018 through March 31, 2019, to hedge the effect of significant variances in weather
conditions and price on natural gas costs. For Central Hudson, this transaction will impact
purchased natural gas expense and revenue, but will not have a net income impact due to the
full deferral authority over commodity costs through its natural gas cost adjustment charge
mechanisms. The aggregate limit on the contract is $5 million. The terms of this contract
included both a weather and natural gas price trigger. However, management believes
weather was the predominant trigger for any payout that would have been earned under the
contract. Therefore, this contract was accounted for in accordance with guidance specific to
accounting for weather derivatives. The $2.3 million premium paid will be amortized to
purchased natural gas over the term of the contract and all payouts will be recorded as a
reduction to purchased natural gas in the Statement of Income. The unamortized premium at
December 31, 2018 was $1.7 million and is reflected in the “special deposits and
prepayments” line item of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s Balance Sheets.
In 2017 and 2016, Central Hudson entered into similar weather options for the periods of
December 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018 and December 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017,
respectively. The aggregate limit per contract was $5 million. Premiums paid were amortized
to purchased natural gas over the term of the related agreement. The $3.8 million payout
earned for the 2017 contract was recorded as a reduction to purchased natural gas in the
Statement of Income. There were no payouts upon the settlement of the 2016 contract.
Based on Central Hudson’s valuation model, the fair value of the weather options purchased
for the December 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019 and December 1, 2017 through March 31,
2018 period was approximately $1.8 million as of December 31, 2018 and $1.3 million as of
December 31, 2017, respectively. The valuations were based on an analysis, which includes
significant unobservable inputs, specifically short-term weather forecasts, historical
temperature fluctuations and correlation between daily temperature fluctuations and natural
gas prices in winter and, as such, would be a Level 3 valuation.
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NOTE 16 – Other Fair Value Measurements
Other Assets Recorded at Fair Value
In addition to the derivatives reported at fair value discussed in Note 15 – “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson report
certain other assets at fair value in the Balance Sheets. The following table summarizes the
amount reported at fair value related to these assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (In
Thousands):
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Fair Value
As of December 31, 2018:
Other Investments
As of December 31, 2017:
Other Investments

Significant
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$

9,479

$

9,479

$

-

$

-

$

7,574

$

7,574

$

-

$

-

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, a portion of the trust assets for the funding of SERP and
of the Deferred Compensation Plan were invested in mutual funds and money market
accounts, which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. These investments are
valued at quoted market prices in active markets and, as such, are Level 1 investments as
defined in the fair value hierarchy. These amounts are included in “Other investments” within
the Deferred Charges and Other Assets section of the CH Energy Group’s and Central
Hudson’s Balance Sheets.
The remaining amount reported in “Other investments” represents trust assets for the funding
of the SERP and Deferred Compensation Plan held in trust owned life insurance policies,
which are recorded at cash surrender value. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017 the total
cash surrender value of trust-owned life insurance held by these trusts was approximately
$29.3 million and $28.6 million, respectively. The change in the cash surrender value is
reported in “Other – net” income in the CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s Income
Statements.
Other Fair Value Disclosure
Financial instruments are recorded at carrying value in the financial statements, however, the
fair value of these instruments are disclosed below in accordance with current accounting
guidance related to financial instruments.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:
Cash and Cash Equivalents: Carrying amount.
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Short-Term Borrowings: Carrying amount.
Due to the short-term nature (typically one month or less) of these borrowings, the carrying
value is equivalent to the current fair market value.
Long-term Debt: Quoted market prices for the same or similar issues (Level 2).
Valuations were obtained for each issue using the observed Treasury market in conjunction
with secondary market trading levels and recent new issuances of comparable companies.
The following tables summarize the long-term debt maturing or to be redeemed during the next
five years and thereafter, as well as the estimated fair value and current portion of both CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson’s long-term debt at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Long-term Debt Maturities and Fair Value - CH Energy Group
(Dollars in Thousands)

Fixed Rate

Variable Rate

Estimated
Expected Maturity
Effective
Date
Amount
Interest Rate
As of December 31, 2018:
2019
$
28,607
5.21% $
2020
41,718
3.20%
2021
45,987
4.30%
2022
25,364
3.69%
2023
2,100
6.89%
Thereafter
480,346
4.73%
Total
$
624,122
4.58% $
Fair Value

$

665,815

As of December 31, 2017:
2018
$
31,503
2019
28,607
2020
41,718
2021
45,987
2022
25,364
Thereafter
377,446
Total
$
550,625
Fair Value

$

614,950

2.67%
5.21%
3.20%
4.30%
3.69%
4.89%
4.55%

Amount
63,700
63,700

$

63,700

$

$

63,700
63,700

$

63,700
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Total Debt Outstanding

Estimated
Effective
Interest Rate
-%
-%
-%
-%
-%
3.51%
3.51%

-%
-%
-%
-%
-%
2.42%
2.42%

Amount

$

687,822

$

729,515

$

614,325

$

678,650

Estimated
Effective
Interest Rate

4.48%

4.33%

Long-term Debt Maturities and Fair Value - Central Hudson
(Dollars in Thousands)

Fixed Rate

Variable Rate

Estimated
Expected Maturity
Effective
Date
Amount
Interest Rate
As of December 31, 2018:
2019
$
27,000
5.11% $
2020
40,000
3.04%
2021
44,150
4.19%
2022
23,400
3.42%
2023
-%
Thereafter
475,700
4.70%
Total
$
610,250
4.53% $
Fair Value

$

651,215

As of December 31, 2017:
2018
$
30,000
2019
27,000
2020
40,000
2021
44,150
2022
23,400
Thereafter
370,700
Total
$
535,250
Fair Value

$

598,255

2.46%
5.11%
3.04%
4.19%
3.42%
4.86%
4.48%

Amount

Estimated
Effective
Interest Rate

63,700
63,700

$

63,700

$

$

63,700
63,700

$

63,700

Total Debt Outstanding

-%
-%
-%
-%
-%
3.51%
3.51%

-%
-%
-%
-%
-%
2.42%
2.42%

Amount

$

673,950

$

714,915

$

598,950

$

661,955

Estimated
Effective
Interest Rate

4.43%

4.26%

NOTE 17 – Related Party Transactions
Thompson Hine LLP serves as outside counsel to CH Energy Group and Central Hudson.
One partner in that firm serves as each corporation’s General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary. In addition, The Chazen Companies perform engineering services for Central
Hudson, and a principal in the firm serves as a director of Central Hudson.
The following are fees paid by CH Energy Group and Central Hudson to Thompson Hine LLP
and The Chazen Companies, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 (In Thousands):

CH Energy Group (Thompson Hine LLP)
Central Hudson (Thompson Hine LLP)
Central Hudson (The Chazen Companies)

$
$
$

Year Ended December 31,
2018
2017
2016
2,199 $
2,203 $
1,692
2,158 $
2,151 $
1,544
596 $
538 $
254

CH Energy Group and Central Hudson may provide general and administrative services
(“services”) to and receive services from each other, Fortis and other subsidiaries of
Fortis. The costs of these services are reimbursed by the beneficiary company through
accounts receivable and accounts payable, as necessary. CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson may also incur charges from Fortis or each other for the recovery of general corporate
expenses incurred by one another, Fortis or other affiliates. In addition, CH Energy Group and
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Central Hudson may also incur charges from Fortis for federal income taxes under their tax
sharing agreement. These transactions are in the normal course of business and are recorded
at the United States dollar amounts.
Related party transactions included in accounts receivable and accounts payable for the
periods ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 for CH Energy Group and Central Hudson are as
follows (In Thousands):

(1)

CH Energy Group
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable

1

(1)

Central Hudson
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable

December 31,
December 31,
2018
2017
(2)
Fortis
Fortis
$
862 $
2,895
$
- $
16

December 31,
2018

December 31,
2017

Other
CHEG
Fortis
Affiliates
$
92 $
5 $
7 $
$
810 $
- $
- $

Other
(2)
CHEG
Fortis
Affiliates
55 $
2,156 $
5
710 $
- $
-

(1) Fortis amounts include Fortis and all Fortis subsidiaries.

(2) During 2017, Central Hudson provided mutual aid and assistance for service restoration efforts to Turks and Caicos Islands Power

Company – Fortis TCI Ltd., a Fortis subsidiary and Central Hudson affiliate company. These amounts are not charged to operating
expense, but rather are billed fully to the affiliate company. The total amount of service and materials provided to Fortis TCI Ltd. in 2017
for restoration efforts was approximately $4.4 million. As of December 31, 2017, the balance included in the Accounts Receivable
amounts for CH Energy Group and Central Hudson was approximately $2.3 million, which was collected in the first quarter of 2018.

Related party transactions in operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016 for CH Energy Group and Central Hudson are as follows (In Thousands):

December 31, 2018
CHEG

Fortis

December 31, 2017

(1)

CHEG

Fortis

December 31, 2016

(1)

CHEG

Fortis

(1)

CH Energy Group

$

- $

2,799 $

- $

2,269 $

- $

2,766

Central Hudson

$

3,107 $

- $

2,698 $

- $

3,155 $

-

(1) Fortis amounts reported above include Fortis and all Fortis subsidiaries.

NOTE 18 – Future Accounting Pronouncements To Be Adopted
Soon to be adopted accounting guidance is summarized below, including explanations for any
new guidance issued by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) (except that which is
not currently applicable) and the expected impact on CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries.
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Leases –
ASU No. 2016-02, 2018-01, 2018-10, 2018-11 and 2018-20 - Leases (“ASC 842”) introduces a
new lessee model that includes the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on
the balance sheet by lessees for those leases that were previously classified as operating
leases. This standard also requires qualitative disclosures along with specific quantitative
disclosures. ASC 842 is effective for periods beginning January 1, 2019, and is to be applied
using a modified retrospective approach or an optional transition method with practical
expedient options. CH Energy Group selected the optional transition method which allows
entities to continue to apply the current lease guidance in the comparative periods presented in
the year of adoption and apply the transition provisions of the new guidance on the effective
date of the new guidance, January 1, 2019.
CH Energy Group elected a package of practical expedients that allowed it to not reassess
whether any expired or existing contracts are a lease or contain a lease, the lease classification
of any expired or existing leases, and the initial direct costs for any existing leases. CH Energy
Group also elected an additional practical expedient that permitted entities to not evaluate
existing land easements that were not previously accounted for as leases.
CH Energy Group's leasing activities accounted for as operating leases primarily relate to office
and garage facilities, communication towers and office equipment. Adoption of the new
guidance is expected to result in the recognition of additional lease assets and lease liabilities
of approximately $2 million. CH Energy Group does not expect the new ASU to affect its
results of operations or cash flows.
Upon adoption, CH Energy Group implemented changes to our processes and control activities
related to lease recognition, including developing policies based on the new lease standard,
gathering contracts and disclosure information, and ongoing contract review requirements.
Financial Instruments
ASU No. 2016-13 Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments requires entities to
use an expected credit loss methodology (“CECL”) model that is based on expected losses
rather than incurred losses. Under the CECL model, an entity recognizes as an allowance its
estimate of expected credit losses, which the FASB believes will result in more timely
recognition of such losses. This standard also decreases the number of credit impairment
models that entities use to account for debt instruments. This update is effective for calendar
years beginning January 2020 and is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach.
Prospective approach is required for certain financial instruments. Early adoption is permitted
for period beginning January 2018. CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries are currently
evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of this standard will have on its financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
Derivatives and Hedging
ASU No. 2017-12 and 2018-16 Derivatives and Hedging amends the hedge accounting
recognition and presentation requirements in ASC 815, improving the transparency and
understandability of information conveyed to financial statement users about an entity’s risk
management activities and reducing the complexity of and simplifying the application of hedge
accounting by preparers. This update is effective for calendar years beginning January 2019
and is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach, early adoption is permitted. CH
Energy Group and its subsidiaries have concluded that the adoption of this standard will not
have a material impact on the financial statements and related disclosures.
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Fair Value Measurement
ASU No. 2018-13 Fair Value Measurement amends the disclosure requirements for fair value
measurement. Entities are no longer required to estimate and disclose the timing of liquidity
events for investments measured at fair value. Instead, the requirement to disclose such events
applies only when they have been communicated to the reporting entities by the investees or
announced publicly. If the timing is unknown, the entities are required to disclose that fact. This
update is effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including
interim periods therein, early adoption is permitted for any eliminated or modified disclosures
upon issuance of this ASU. The amendment requires prospective application to any
modifications to disclosures made because of the change to the requirements for the narrative
description of measurement uncertainty. The effects of all other amendments must be applied
retrospectively to all periods presented. CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries are currently
evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of this standard will have on financial statements
disclosures.
Compensation—Retirement Benefits
ASU No. 2018-14, Compensation—Retirement Benefits—Defined Benefit Plans amends the
FASB Codification to modify the disclosure requirements for defined benefit pension and other
postretirement plans. The amendment requires disclosure of (1) PBO and fair value of plan
assets for pension plans with PBOs in excess of plan assets and (2) the accumulated benefit
obligation (“ABO”) and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with ABOs in excess of plan
assets. This update is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2020, and is to be
applied retrospectively to all periods presented, early adoption is permitted. CH Energy Group
and its subsidiaries are currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of this standard
will have on financial statements disclosures.

NOTE 19 – Subsequent Events
An evaluation of subsequent events through February 14, 2019, the date these Consolidated
Financial Statements were approved by the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of
Directors, was completed to determine whether circumstances warranted recognition and
disclosure of events or transactions in the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December
31, 2018.
On January 21, 2019, CH Energy Group’s Board of Directors approved a $5.5 million dividend
payment to its parent FortisUS.
On January 21, 2019, CH Energy Group’s Board of Directors approved the acceptance of a
capital contribution in the amount of $6.0 million from its parent FortisUS to be received in the
first quarter of 2019.
On January 31, 2019, Central Hudson made a contribution of $1.0 million to the 401(h) Plan to
fund the management OPEB liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of FINANCIAL
CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

This Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations should be read in conjunction with the 2018 Financial Statements and the notes
thereto.
Company: CH Energy Group is the holding company parent corporation of four principal,
wholly owned subsidiaries, Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (“Central Hudson” or
the “Company”), Central Hudson Enterprises Corporation, Central Hudson Electric
Transmission LLC (“CHET”) and Central Hudson Gas Transmission LLC (“CHGT”). Central
Hudson is a regulated electric and natural gas transmission and distribution utility. In 2014,
CH Energy Group formed CHET to engage in electric transmission projects. CHET currently
has a 6.1% ownership interest in New York Transco LLC (“Transco”), a partnership with
affiliates of the other investor owned utilities in New York State which was created to develop,
own and operate electric transmission projects in New York State. In the first quarter of 2016,
CHGT was formed to hold CH Energy Group’s ownership stake in possible gas transmission
pipeline opportunities in New York State. All of CH Energy Group’s common stock is indirectly
owned by Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), a leader in the North American regulated electric and gas utility
business, with fiscal 2018 revenue of CAD$8.4 billion and total assets of approximately
CAD$53 billion. Fortis and its subsidiaries’ 8,700 employees serve utility customers in five
Canadian provinces, nine U.S. states and three Caribbean countries.
Central Hudson purchases, sells at wholesale and retail, and distributes electricity and natural
gas at retail, in portions of New York State to electric and natural gas customers and is subject
to regulation by the New York Public Service Commission (“PSC” or “Commission”).

Mission and Strategy
Mission
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s mission is to deliver electricity and natural gas to an
expanding customer base in a safe, reliable, courteous and affordable manner; to produce
growing financial returns for shareholders; to foster a culture that encourages employees to
reach their full potential and to be a good corporate citizen.
CH Energy Group’s strategy is to:
• Invest primarily in electric and gas transmission and distribution; and
• Maintain a financial profile that supports a credit rating for Central Hudson in the “A”
category.
Strategy Execution
Management continues to focus on investment in Central Hudson’s electric and natural gas
infrastructure as the core of its strategy. Central Hudson invested approximately $189 million
in 2018, and its five year forecast includes an average of approximately $217 million of capital
expenditures per year. The long-term capital program provides for continued strengthening of
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existing electric and gas infrastructure, expansion of gas distribution systems, new common
facilities, and investments in information and distribution system technologies that will improve
reliability and customer satisfaction. Central Hudson has effectively managed its operational
challenges, including significant weather events, in the past few years.
As part of CH Energy Group’s overall strategy to invest in electric transmission and
distribution, CH Energy Group formed CHET to be an investor in Transco, a partnership with
affiliates of the other investor owned utilities in New York (Con Edison, National Grid, and
Avangrid). Transco was created to develop, own and operate electric transmission projects in
New York State. In December 2014, Transco filed its first application with the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) for formula rate authority for Transco’s cost and return on
investment for five high voltage transmission projects(“Transco’s Initial FERC Filing”). In
March 2016, FERC approved rates for three projects included in Transco’s Initial FERC Filing
(the “TOTS Projects”). The TOTS Projects cost approximately $209 million and were placed in
service in the second quarter of 2016. CHET made capital contributions to Transco of $6.8
million in 2016 to fund the TOTS Projects. The other two projects included in Transco’s Initial
FERC Filing (the “AC Projects”) are not subject to the terms approved by FERC in March
2016. The two AC projects were part of the AC Transmission Proceeding with the PSC. In
April 2016, National Grid and Transco jointly filed proposals related to the AC Transmission
Proceeding with the New York Independent System Operator (“NYISO”). In December 2018,
the NYISO board of directors concluded that the most efficient or cost effective transmission
project for one segment of the transmission system, related to the AC Transmission
Proceeding, is a project that was jointly proposed by National Grid and Transco ($500 million
estimated cost). A final determination is expected in the first half of 2019. In November 2018,
Transco amended its limited liability company agreement (“Transco Amendment”) to allow
Transco to pursue additional projects that might come out of future NYISO Public Policy
Transmission Planning Processes (“PPTP Process”). Under the Transco Amendment, CHET
would have a 10% ownership stake in transmission solutions related to future projects that
result from future PPTP Processes. CHET would also be allocated 10% of future development
costs for any new transmission projects as part of future PPTP Processes.
Central Hudson
Business Description and Strategy
Central Hudson is subject to regulation by the PSC. Central Hudson’s earnings are derived
primarily from the revenue it generates from delivering energy to approximately 300,000
electric and 80,000 natural gas customers, with earnings growth coming primarily from
increases in net utility plant. Central Hudson’s delivery rates are designed to recover the cost
of providing safe and reliable service while affording the opportunity to earn a fair and
reasonable return on its capital.
Central Hudson’s strategy is to provide exceptional value to its stakeholders by:
• Modernizing its business through electric and natural gas system investments and process
improvements;
• Continuously improving its performance while maintaining cost effective and efficient
operations;
• Advocating on behalf of customers and other stakeholders; and
• Investing in programs and employee development to position the organization for
continued success in the future.
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Opportunities and Risks
Central Hudson invests significant capital on an annual basis. Central Hudson’s investments
enhance safety and reliability through cost-beneficial solutions, which are intended to improve
customer satisfaction and reduce risk. Opportunities to enhance transmission and distribution
systems and information systems technologies are evaluated and prioritized based on their
expected benefits, projected costs and estimated risks. Central Hudson’s proposed capital
expenditures were approved by the PSC in the 2018 Rate Order.
The economy in Central Hudson’s service territory affects the growth of utility rate base and
earnings through a direct relationship to customer additions and peak demand growth as well
as affecting Central Hudson’s ability to collect receivables and affordability for customers.
Management believes the economy in Central Hudson’s service territory has reasonable longterm growth prospects, but unexpected prolonged downturns could inhibit its ability to meet
long-term business objectives. Central Hudson has an economic development program
intended to increase job growth and income in its service territory.
Management believes Central Hudson’s commitments to providing safe and reliable service,
customer satisfaction, operational excellence and promoting positive customer and regulatory
relations are important for supportive regulatory relationships and obtaining full cost recovery
and competitive returns on invested capital.
The key risks management sees in achieving its overall strategy are operating risks related to
effectively executing its capital program, managing costs and customer bill pressure, as well as
the regulatory environment and compliance requirements as further discussed below. Central
Hudson has policies, procedures and controls in place to address these risks.
Regulatory/Compliance Risks:
 FERC: under the Federal Power Act, FERC has the authority to impose penalties on
Central Hudson for violations of the Federal Power Act, the Natural Gas Act or related
rules, including reliability and cyber security rules. Environmental agencies could seek
penalties for failure to comply with laws, regulations or permits. Central Hudson may be
subject to new laws, regulations, or other requirements or the revision or reinterpretation of
such requirements, which could adversely affect the Company.
 North American Electric Reliability Corporation (“NERC”): Central Hudson, as owner and
operator of the Bulk Electric System, is subject to potential penalties for violations of NERC
Reliability Standards.
 PSC: Rates are generally designed for, but do not guarantee, the recovery of Central
Hudson’s cost of service, including a return on equity. Central Hudson’s ability to meet its
financial objectives is largely dependent on approval of the Company’s rate proposals and
the continuation of supportive ratemaking practices by the PSC. Risks related to these
practices include: (1) reduced allowed returns on equity, (2) PSC-allowed revenues that
result in less than full recovery of the legitimate costs of providing service, resulting in
earned returns below authorized returns, (3) declining PSC support for strong capital
structures and credit ratings, (4) New York State (“NYS”) energy policy, (5) changes in
deferral accounting that increase the volatility of earnings and/or defer cash recovery of
costs, and (6) elimination of Revenue Decoupling Mechanism (“RDMs”) or Rate Adjustment
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Mechanism (“RAMs”). The PSC can initiate proceedings to prohibit Central Hudson from
recovering from their customers the cost of service (including energy costs) that the
regulators determine to have been imprudently incurred. In addition the PSC could seek to
impose substantial penalties on the Company for violations of state utility laws, regulations
or orders.
 Reforming the Energy Vision (“REV”): Governor Cuomo and the PSC announced the
commencement of its REV initiative that aims to improve the efficiency of the electric
system; reduce emissions; encourage greater development of clean generation, fuel
diversity and energy efficiency measures; and provide customers with knowledge and tools
for more effective management of their total energy use through the adoption of new
technologies on both the utility and customer side of the meter. Central Hudson expects to
continue its efforts of working with the other New York electric utilities and various
stakeholders in the energy industry to develop policy positions in order to facilitate the
implementation of REV. The outcome of REV and the many related proceedings cannot be
predicted at this time, but they could result in an increased scope of regulated activities,
potential for decreased earnings, and other risks.
 Department of Environmental Conservation (“DEC”): Central Hudson, as owner and
operator of certain hydroelectric facilities and environmental site investigation and
remediation activities is subject to DEC regulations and could incur penalties for violations.
 The Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (“PHMSA”): Central Hudson,
as owner and operator of certain natural gas transmission facilities, is subject to PHSMA
regulation and could incur penalties for violations.
 NYISO: In accordance with the Market Service Tariff, Central Hudson is obligated to
provide current load forecasting and generator bid requirements and could incur penalties
for violations.
 United States Army Corps of Engineers: Construction, repair, replacement of gas or electric
lines or facilities that may cross or are located within a federally protected wetland or water
body.
Operations Risks:
 Central Hudson provides electricity and natural gas service to customers in its territory.
Failure of, or damage to, facilities, or an error in operation or maintenance could result in
bodily injury or death, property damage, the release of hazardous substances or extended
service interruptions. A natural disaster, such as a major storm, could impact Central
Hudson’s ability to access supplies and utilize critical facilities. Central Hudson’s response
to such events may be perceived to be below customer expectations. Central Hudson
could incur substantial costs that may not be covered by Central Hudson’s insurance
policies or recovered through other regulatory mechanisms for storm preparation, to repair
or replace facilities, compensate others for injury or death or other regulatory penalties
imposed by state utility regulators or other regulatory agencies. The occurrence of such
events could also adversely affect the cost and availability of insurance.
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 Central Hudson, as an operator of critical energy infrastructure, may face a heightened risk
of cyber-attack. In the event of a cyber-attack that Central Hudson was unable to defend or
mitigate, operations could be disrupted, financial and other information systems could
become impaired, property could be damaged and customer and employee information
could be stolen. Central Hudson could incur substantial cost for response, including repair
to systems, litigation and reputational damage, which may not be recoverable from
customers.
 Another risk is the ability to effectively manage costs, which is a key component of Central
Hudson’s strategy. The continued use of Lean Six Sigma techniques – a data-driven
approach to develop processes that are faster, higher quality and less costly – to
streamline existing business processes and foster innovation will play a critical role in
managing the costs of doing business in a sustainable manner.
Environmental Risks:
 Central Hudson is exposed to risks from the environmental consequences of its operations
and the operations of its predecessors. Hazardous substances, such as asbestos, PCBs
and coal tar have been used or produced in the course of Central Hudson’ operations and
are present on properties or in facilities and equipment currently or previously owned. To
the extent not covered by insurance or recovered through rates, remediation costs, fines,
judgments and settlements could reduce earnings and cash flows.
CH Energy Group - Regulated Operations - Central Hudson
Financial Highlights
Period Ended December 31
Electricity Sales (GWh)
Natural Gas Sales (PJ)
(In millions)
Revenues
Energy Supply Costs - Matched to Revenues
Operating Expenses - Matched to Revenues
Operating Expenses - Other
Depreciation and Amortization
Other Income, net
Finance Charges
Income Taxes
Net income
(1)

(2)

2018
5,118
23.8

2017
4,891
22.3

$ 724.6
255.1
74.0
241.0
54.5
4.6
31.2
15.2
$ 58.2

$ 671.5
199.9
83.7
222.7
50.5
2.4
30.5
31.6
$ 55.0

Change
227
1.5
(1)
(1)(2)

(2)

$

53.1
55.2
(9.7)
18.3
4.0
2.2
0.7
(16.4)
$
3.2

Effective January 2018, the Company made an accounting policy election to present revenues, net of utility taxes, prospectively, with
no impact to net income. Revenues and operating expenses matched to revenues for the year ended December 31, 2017 have not
been adjusted to conform to 2018 presentation. If utility taxes for 2017 were presented in line with 2018, revenues and operating
expenses matched to revenues for the year ended December 31, 2017 would have been $663.8 million and $58.1 million,
respectively.
Effective January 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2017-07 which required the non-service cost component of pension cost to
be reported outside income from operation and under other income, net. Non-service cost component of $2.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 has been reclassified to conform to 2018 presentation.
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Earnings: Despite increased expenses related to danger tree trimming and weather in 2018,
Central Hudson achieved earnings growth of $3.2 million over the prior year primarily as a
result of successful negotiations with the PSC in Rate Orders and higher incentives
earned. PSC-approved increases in delivery rates, effective July 1, 2017 and July 1, 2018,
provided a return on the additional capital invested in the business and the recovery of higher
operating and financing expenses. In 2018, Central Hudson achieved higher incentives
associated with non-wires alternatives (“NWAs”), as well as Earnings Adjustment Mechanisms
(“EAMs”) and other performance targets included in the 2018 Rate Order. Central Hudson’s
earnings year over year also benefitted from financing costs, including consideration for
carrying charges, that were lower than the amount provided for in the delivery rate increase.
Increases in operating expenses in excess of the amount provided for, or not provided for, in
rates included tree trimming, weather related service restoration costs that did not qualify for
major storm deferral and changes in the uncollectible reserve compared to the prior
year. Additional items partially reducing the earnings growth were regulatory deferrals
recorded for the future benefit of customers related to actual net plant and depreciation results
below the targets in the 2015 and 2018 Rate Orders and for not achieving electric service
interruption targets measured by the System Average Interruption Frequency Index (“SAIFI”) in
2018. Lower income tax expense resulting from the change in federal tax rate under the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act did not have an impact on earnings as the benefit was passed back to
customers through revenues as required in Case 17-M-0815.
Energy supply costs reflect overall higher electric and natural gas commodity prices coupled
with higher purchased volumes for 2018 as compared to 2017. This did not have a direct
impact on earnings due to the full deferral of commodity costs and the RDM. However, Central
Hudson is authorized to bill customers’ volumetric factors for the recovery of bad debt and
working capital costs related to commodity purchases, and fluctuations in volume and price will
impact the revenues collected through these factors. These year over year variations were not
material.
Electricity Sales
Electric sales for 2018 were 4.7% higher than 2017, primarily due to higher sales per customer
resulting from warmer than normal weather during the summer months, as well as, colder than
normal weather during the winter season.
Natural Gas Sales
Natural gas sales for 2018 were 6.7% higher than 2017 due to higher interruptible sales to
electric generators resulting from warmer than normal weather in the summer months and
higher sales per customer resulting from colder than normal weather during the winter season
in 2018 when compared to same period in 2017.
Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization increased over the prior year
due to the increased investment in Central Hudson’s electric and gas infrastructure in
accordance with its capital expenditure program.
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Other Income, net: Other income, net increased when compared to 2017 primarily due to a
decrease in the non-service cost component of pension expense which has been reclassified
and is included as a reduction to other income, net. Effective January 1, 2018, Central Hudson
no longer capitalizes a portion of the non-service cost component. Carrying charges on
deferral balances were consistent on a net basis year-over-year with significant increases in
certain deferral balances being offset by large decreases in others. Increases included
carrying charges on higher regulatory asset balances for seven storm events that qualified for
deferral during 2018 and certain deferred impacts of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Decreases
included carrying charges on lower regulatory asset balances for energy efficiency incentives
and environmental site investigation and remediation costs. Additionally, effective July 1, 2018
per the 2018 Rate Order, the pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) reserves
are now included in rate base and the return on these balances are recognized in revenues
through current delivery rates rather than fully recorded through Other income.
Income Taxes: The decrease in the lower combined effective tax rate from 36.5% in 2017 to
20.7% in 2018 was driven by the reduction in the federal income tax rate from 35% to 21%, as
a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and tax normalization rules which requires excess plantrelated deferred taxes to reverse at the same rate as the original deferral. This did not have a
material impact on earnings due to the deferral of the benefits for future return to customers as
required in Case 17-M-0815 and the incorporation of the impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
into Central Hudson’s approved delivery rates effective July 1, 2018.

- 91 -

Central Hudson Revenues - Electric
Period Ended December 31
(In millions)

2018

(1)

Revenues with Matching Expense Offsets:
Recovery of commodity purchases
Sales to others for resale
(2)
Impact of Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
Other revenues with matching offsets
Subtotal
Revenues Impacting Earnings:
Customer sales
RDM and other regulatory mechanisms
Incentives earned
SAIFI deferral
Revenue requirement of bonus depreciation
Net plant & depreciation targets
Other revenues
Subtotal
Total Electric Revenues

2017

Change

$ 182.2 $ 152.0 $
9.3
3.1
(7.4)
67.0
75.3
251.1
230.4

30.2
6.2
(7.4)
(8.3)
20.7

316.6
289.3
27.3
(15.2)
1.9
(17.1)
1.5
0.7
0.8
(1.9)
(1.9)
(1.1)
(2.1)
1.0
(3.5)
(0.7)
(2.8)
11.0
8.8
2.2
307.4
297.9
9.5
$ 558.5 $ 528.3 $ 30.2

(1)

Revenues with matching offsets do not affect earnings since they offset related costs, the most significant being energy cost adjustment
revenues, which provide for the recovery of purchased electricity costs. Other related costs include authorized business expenses
recovered through rates and the cost of special programs authorized by the PSC and funded with certain available credits. Changes in
revenues from electric sales to other entities for resale also do not affect earnings since any related profits or losses are returned or
charged, respectively, to customers.

(2)

Revenues have been reduced as a result of the deferral of the lower income tax expense under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for future return
to customers. The offset to this revenue reduction is presented in the Income Tax Expense line in the Statement of Income.

Central Hudson Revenues - Natural Gas
Period Ended December 31
(In millions)

2018

(1)

Revenues with Matching Expense Offsets:
Recovery of commodity purchases
Sales to others for resale
(2)
Impact of Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
Other revenues with matching offsets
Subtotal
Revenues Impacting Earnings:
Customer sales
RDM and other regulatory mechanisms
Incentives earned
Revenue requirement of bonus depreciation
Net plant & depreciation targets
Other revenues
Subtotal
Total Natural Gas Revenues

$

Year to Date
2017
Change

53.8 $
10.0
(2.9)
8.2
69.1

35.1 $
9.8
11.0
55.9

18.7
0.2
(2.9)
(2.8)
13.2

92.7
82.3
1.3
3.3
0.8
0.3
(0.5)
(1.1)
(1.4)
(1.2)
4.1
3.7
97.0
87.3
$ 166.1 $ 143.2 $

10.4
(2.0)
0.5
0.6
(0.2)
0.4
9.7
22.9

(1)

Revenues with matching offsets do not affect earnings since they offset related costs, the most significant being energy cost adjustment
revenues, which provide for the recovery of purchased natural gas costs. Other related costs include authorized business expenses
recovered through rates and the cost of special programs authorized by the PSC and funded with certain available credits. For natural gas
sales to other entities for resale, 85% of such profits are returned to customers.

(2)

Revenues have been reduced as a result of the deferral of the lower income tax expense under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for future return
to customers. The offset to this revenue reduction is presented in the Income Tax Expense line in the Statement of Income.
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Central Hudson’s revenues consist of two major categories: those that offset specific expenses
in the current period (matching revenues) and those that impact earnings. Matching revenues
represent amounts billed in the current period to recover actual costs for particular expenses
(most notably, purchased electricity and purchased natural gas, pensions and OPEBs and
NYS energy efficiency programs). Any difference between these revenues and the actual
expenses incurred is deferred for future recovery from or refund to customers and, therefore,
does not impact earnings, with the exception of related carrying charges, which are recorded
within other income or interest charges in the CH Energy Group and Central Hudson
Statement of Income. Additionally, in the first six months of 2018, matched revenues also
included revenues deferred for future pass back to customers related to the benefits of the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act.
Electric Revenues:
The year over year increase in electric revenues can primarily be attributed to an increase in
the recovery of purchased commodity costs driven by both an increase in price and higher
sales due to colder weather during the winter months and warmer weather during the summer
months, as well as the increase in customer delivery rates effective July 1, 2017 and 2018. In
addition, the achievement of incentives associated with NWA, EAMs and certain performance
targets provided for in the 2018 Rate Order and the elimination of the required regulatory
deferral for bonus depreciation in 2018 when compared to 2017, further contributed to the
increase in electric revenues. These increases were partially offset by the accounting policy
change to present revenues net of utility taxes, the deferral in 2018 to preserve the benefits of
the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for customers, the discontinuation of the NYS Temporary
Assessment, as well as regulatory deferrals resulting from not achieving electric service
interruption targets and net plant and depreciation targets.
Natural Gas Revenues:
The year over year increase in natural gas revenues can primarily be attributed to an increase
in the recovery of purchased commodity costs driven by both, an increase in price and higher
sales due to colder weather during the winter months and higher sales to electric generator
due to warmer than normal weather during the summer months, as well as the increase in
customer delivery rates effective July 1, 2017 and 2018, as approved in the respective 2015
and 2018 Rate Orders. Further contributing to the increase is the achievement of gas
incentive targets related to gas leak management, emergency response time, and damage
management as provided in the 2018 Rate Order, as well as the elimination of the required
regulatory deferral for bonus depreciation in 2018. These increases were partially offset by the
accounting policy change to present revenues net of utility taxes, the deferral in 2018 to
preserve the benefits of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for customers and the discontinuation of
the NYS Temporary Assessment.
Variations in purchased natural gas and electricity costs and other expenses currently matched
to revenues do not have a direct impact on earnings due to Central Hudson’s regulatory
mechanism for the full deferral of these expenses.
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Central Hudson Operating Expenses
Period Ended December 31
(In millions)
Expenses Currently Matched to Revenues:
Purchased electricity
Purchased natural gas
(3)
Pension & OPEB
NYS energy programs
Major storm reserve
NYS Temporary Assessment
Utility Taxes
Other matched expenses
Subtotal
Other Operating Expense Variations:
Tree trimming
(2)
Property and school taxes
Weather related service restoration
Distribution maintenance
Uncollectible accounts and reserve
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses
Subtotal
Total Operating Expenses

2018

(1)

$

$

2017

Change

191.5 $
63.8
6.7
42.7
1.1
2.1
21.2
329.1

155.1 $
44.9
10.1
40.5
1.7
7.1
7.6
16.7
283.7

36.4
18.9
(3.4)
2.2
(0.6)
(5.0)
(7.6)
4.5
45.4

22.3
52.1
9.4
12.8
4.8
54.5
139.6
295.5
624.6 $

17.2
50.1
5.2
10.5
3.2
50.5
136.4
273.1
556.8 $

5.1
2.0
4.2
2.3
1.6
4.0
3.2
22.4
67.8

(1) Includes expenses that, in accordance with the 2015 and 2018 Rate Orders, are adjusted in the current period to equal the revenues
billed for the applicable expenses and the differences are deferred.
(2) In accordance with the 2015 Rate Order and continued in the 2018 Rate Order, Central Hudson is authorized to defer for the benefit of or
recovery from customers 90% of any difference between actual property tax expense and the amounts provided in rates for each Rate
Year. Central Hudson's portion is limited to 5%, with a maximum of approximately $0.5 million, pre-tax per Rate Year.
(3) Effective January 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2017-07 which required the non-service cost component of pension cost to be
reported outside income from operation and under other income, net. The non-service cost component for the year ended December 31,
2018 was $1.4 million approximately and are shown in Other-net in the Statement of Income. For the year ended December 31, 2017,
approximately $2.6 million was reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Operating Expenses:
The year over year increase in operating expenses is primarily attributed to higher purchased
commodity cost for both electric and natural gas, driven by higher prices and sales volumes.
Further contributing to the increase in operating expenses are increases in tree trimming costs
resulting from both increased efforts to address danger trees caused by an infestation of the
Emerald Ash Borer in our service territory, as well as increased costs per mile resulting from
environmental restrictions on when tree timing can be performed. Increases in maintenance of
the distribution infrastructure, property and school taxes and depreciation and amortization are
the result of increased capital investments. The recovery of these increased costs was mostly
provided for in the rate increase effective July 1, 2018. Additionally, 2018 reflects higher
weather related service restoration costs and uncollectible expense associated with changes in
the reserve year over year, which were not covered by the rate increase. Partially offsetting
the increase in operating expenses is the discontinuation of the NYS Temporary Assessment
and the change in Central Hudson’s accounting policy effective January 1, 2018, to present
revenue net of utility taxes.
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Variations in purchased natural gas and electricity costs and other expenses currently matched
to revenues do not have a direct impact on earnings due to Central Hudson’s regulatory
mechanism for the full deferral of these expenses.
CH Energy Group - Non-regulated and Holding Company Operations Financial
Highlights
Period Ended December 31
Year To Date
2018
2017
(0.7)
(1.3)

(In millions)
Loss from continuing operations

Change
0.6

The loss in 2017 reflect the impact of the adjustment to long-term federal non-regulated
deferred tax assets to reflect the reduction in the federal corporate income tax under the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act.
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Financial Position
CH Energy Group – Regulated – Central Hudson
Significant Changes in the Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2018
(In millions)
Balance Sheet
Account
Accounts receivable
Other Receivable
Regulatory assets long term

Increase
(Decrease)
7.2
12.3
(31.4)

Long term debt, net of
current maturities

75.0

Regulatory liabilities current

93.8

Accrued income and
other taxes
Other liabilities current

8.8
12.1

Explanation
Increase is primarily due to increases in electric and gas commodity costs.
Increase is primarily due to mutual aid provided for hurricane restoration
efforts in Puerto Rico, the balance of which is $10.4 million at December
31, 2018.
Decrease is primarily due to the offset of certain regulatory assets and
liabilities as of June 30, 2018 in accordance with the 2018 Rate Order.
Additional decreases include lower deferred taxes recoverable through
future rates related to net plant, the decrease in the unprotected impacts of
the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act as a result of the deferral of the impact of lower
income tax expense on delivery rates in the first half of 2018 and a
decrease in the future amount to be recovered for environmental site
remediation costs. Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in
the amount to be recovered related to storm costs resulting from five
qualifying storm events in 2018.
The net increase is due to the issuance of $105.0 million in long-term debt
during 2018, partially offset by the repayment of $30.0 million of maturing
debt in November 2018.
Increase is primarily due to expected remittances to New York State
Energy Research and Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) for energy
efficiency programs in accordance with the Clean Energy Fund Order and
an increase in RDMs as a result of actual electric revenues being greater
than targets.
Increase is primarily due to the elimination of bonus depreciation in the
current year resulting in higher taxable income.
Increase is due to amounts collected as advances from community
distributed generation developers for the interconnection of future solar
projects.

Regulatory liabilities long term

(109.6)

Decrease is primarily due to the expected remittances for energy efficiency
programs administered by NYSERDA over the next twelve months coupled
with the offset of bonus depreciation, carrying charges related to OPEB
and the previous rate moderator and higher income taxes recoverable
through future rates related to deferred taxes on increases to the fair
market value of derivatives. Partially offsetting the decrease was the
impact of a newly created rate moderator, the result of the offsetting of all
or a portion of regulatory assets and liabilities in accordance with the 2018
Rate Order.
Decrease is the result of market performance that decreased the value of
the plan assets partially offset by an increase in the discount rate that
decreased plan liabilities in the OPEB plans, as well as the offset of costs
in accordance with the 2018 Rate Order.

Regulatory liabilitiesrelated to OPEB costs

(12.8)

Accrued pension costs

12.6

Increase in pension costs reflects a decrease in plan assets primarily
driven by the actual loss on plan assets partially offset by a decrease in
plan liabilities primarily driven by an increase in the discount rate.

Accumulated deferred
income tax

11.1

The increase is primarily due to the accounting requirement to recognize
deferred taxes for the difference between tax basis of assets and liabilities
and the book basis. These amounts are fully deferred for future return to
or recovery from customers.
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Liquidity And Capital Resources
The following table outlines the summary of cash flow:
CH Energy Group - Regulated, Non-regulated and Holding Company Summary of Cash
Flow
Period Ended December 31,
(In millions)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - beginning of period
Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - end of period
Dividends paid on Common Stock - CH Energy Group
Dividends paid to parent - Central Hudson

$

$
$
$

Year to Date
2018
2017
17.1 $
20.4
128.0
154.0
(189.1)
(167.5)
87.8
10.2
43.8 $
17.1
22.0 $
22.0
- $
(13.3)

Operating Activities: The decrease in cash generated from operating activities in 2018 as
compared to 2017 was primarily due to higher payments made to NYSERDA related to
amounts collected under the Clean Energy Fund, higher storm restoration costs, including
costs associated with five major storm events that occurred in 2018, preparation costs incurred
for two other events where major storms were anticipated, costs not yet reimbursed for mutual
aid provided for hurricane restoration efforts in Puerto Rico and advances collected primarily
from community distributed generation developers for future engineering studies or
interconnection work to be performed. These variations were offset by an increase in cash
from operations provided by the increase in delivery rates effective July 1, 2018 and July 1,
2017.
Investing Activities: Cash used in investing activities was $189.1 million for 2018, as
compared to $167.5 for the prior year. Capital spending increased 11.4% over the prior year in
accordance with Central Hudson’s approved capital plans for delivery infrastructure, IT
systems and supporting facilities. Capital expenditures for the year ending December 31,
2019 are estimated to be approximately $219 million.
Financing Activities: Cash generated from financing activities increased $77.6 million for 2018
compared with 2017. During 2018, CH Energy Group received increased capital contributions
of $30 million from its parent FortisUS Inc. for general corporate purposes and increased
investment in Central Hudson. Additionally, during 2018 Central Hudson issued $105 million in
Senior Notes, whose proceeds were used to repay $30 million of maturing debt and the
balance was to be used for general corporate purposes, including the funding of Central
Hudson’s capital plan. Dividend payments were consistent in both periods at $22 million.
Anticipated Sources and Uses of Cash
CH Energy Group’s cash flow is primarily generated by the operations of its utility subsidiary,
Central Hudson. Generally, the subsidiary does not accumulate significant amounts of cash
but rather provides excess cash to CH Energy Group in the form of dividends or receives
capital contributions from CH Energy Group to meet equity financing needs.
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Central Hudson expects to fund capital expenditures with cash from operations, a combination
of short-term and long-term borrowings and capital infusions. Central Hudson may alter its
plan for capital expenditures as its business needs require.
Central Hudson intends to fund growth in its long-lived assets in a manner that maintains an
equity ratio of approximately 50%, excluding short-term debt balances. Central Hudson plans
to utilize short-term debt to fund seasonal and temporary variations in working capital
requirements. If wholesale energy prices increase, Central Hudson would expect a
corresponding increase in its current level of working capital. Effective July 1, 2018, the 2018
Rate Order reflects the impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and the resulting change in
federal income tax rate from 35% to 21%.
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s secondary sources of funds are its cash reserves and
its credit facilities. CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s ability to use its credit facilities is
contingent upon maintaining compliance with certain financial covenants. CH Energy Group
and Central Hudson do not anticipate that those covenants will restrict its access to funds in
2019 or the foreseeable future.
CH Energy Group believes cash generated from operations and funds obtained from its
financing program will be sufficient in 2019 and the foreseeable future to meet working capital
needs, pay dividends on its Common Stock, and fund investments to fulfill CHET’s investment
in Transco and Central Hudson’s public service obligations and growth objectives.
Committed Credit Facilities
By Order issued and effective September 18, 2015, the PSC authorized an increase in Central
Hudson’s committed available credit facilities to $200 million. On October 15, 2015, Central
Hudson entered into a five-year revolving credit agreement with six commercial banks.
Effective September 13, 2018, the PSC issued a 2018 Financing Order authorizing Central
Hudson to enter into new credit agreements with maturities of no more than five years and in
an aggregate amount not to exceed $200 million.
On July 10, 2015, CH Energy Group entered into a Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement with four commercial banks. The credit commitment of the banks under the facility
is $50 million with a maturity date of July 10, 2020. Consolidated CH Energy Group’s
committed credit as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was $250 million.
There were no outstanding amounts under either credit facility as of December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.
Uncommitted Credit
At December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, Central Hudson had uncommitted short-term
credit arrangements with three commercial banks totaling $40 million. There were no
outstanding borrowings under the uncommitted credit facilities at December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.
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Central Hudson’s Bond Ratings
December 31, 2018
Rating

(1)

December 31, 2017

Outlook

Rating

(1)

Outlook

S&P

A-

Stable

A-

Stable

Moody’s
Fitch

A2
A-

Negative
Stable

A2
A-

Stable
Stable

(1) These senior unsecured debt ratings reflect only the views of the rating agency issuing the rating, are not recommendations to buy, sell, or
hold securities of Central Hudson and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agency issuing the rating. Each rating
should be evaluated independently of any other rating.

On July 30, 2018, Moody’s affirmed the rating of Central Hudson’s senior unsecured debt and
changed their rating outlook from stable to negative. Moody’s indicated that the outlook reflects
their expectation that a higher capital expenditure program combined with lower operating
cash flow generation resulting from the passage of federal tax reform could have a negative
impact on the Company’s financial ratios.
Central Hudson meets its need for long-term debt financing through privately placed debt. As
a regulated electric and natural gas utility company, Central Hudson is required to obtain
authorization from the PSC to issue securities with maturities greater than 12 months.
In accordance with the approved 2018 Financing Order in September 2018, Central Hudson is
authorized to issue and sell long-term debt in an aggregate amount not to exceed $425 million
through December 2021, including $360 million for traditional utility purposes and up to $65
million to refinance its variable interest debt.
Central Hudson’s strong investment-grade credit ratings help facilitate access to long-term
debt; however, management can make no assurance that future financing will be available or
economically viable.
On October 29, 2018, Central Hudson issued $40 million of Series M Senior Notes, with an
interest rate of 3.99% per annum and a maturity date of October 28, 2026; and $40 million of
Series N Senior Notes, with an interest rate of 4.21% per annum and a maturity date of
October 28, 2033. Central Hudson used proceeds from the sale of the Senior Notes to repay
$30 million of maturing debt, with the remaining funds to be used for general corporate
purposes, including the funding of capital expansion and improvement projects.
On June 15, 2018, Central Hudson issued $25.0 million of Series L, Senior Notes, with an
interest rate of 4.27% per annum, due June 15, 2048. Central Hudson used the proceeds from
the sale of the Senior Notes for general corporate purposes including the funding of capital
projects.
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CH Energy Group and Central Hudson’s capital structure is as follows: (Dollars in millions)
CH Energy Group
(1)

Long-term Debt
Common Equity
Total

December 31, 2018
%
687.8
49.7
695.1
50.3
1,382.9
100.0

$
$

December 31, 2017
%
614.3
49.6
623.0
50.4
1,237.3
100.0

$
$

(1) Includes current maturities of long term debt.

Central Hudson

(1)

Long-term Debt
Common Equity
Total

$
$

December 31, 2018
%
674.0
49.2
696.3
50.8
1,370.3
100.0

$
$

December 31, 2017
%
599.0
48.9
627.0
51.1
1,226.0
100.0

(1) Includes current maturities of long term debt.

In accordance with the 2015 Rate Order, Central Hudson's customer rates reflected a capital
structure, excluding short-term debt, with 48% common equity. Under the 2018 Rate Order,
rates will be premised on a common equity ratio of 49% beginning July 1, 2019 and 50%
beginning July 1, 2020. Central Hudson is currently managing its financing to maintain its
common equity at approximately 50%.
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson believe they will be able to meet their short-term and
long-term cash requirements, given the flexibility awarded under the 2018 Rate Order,
including a return on equity of 8.8%.
Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of CH Energy Group or Central Hudson’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses, and the related disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities.
Estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we
believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
estimates about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. The accuracy of these estimates
and the likelihood of future changes depend on a range of possible outcomes and a number of
underlying variables, many of which are beyond our control. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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The following judgments and estimates are critical in the preparation of these financial
statements.










Depreciation and amortization is based on estimates of the useful lives and
estimated net salvage value of properties.
Estimates for uncollectible accounts are based on customer accounts receivable
aging data as well as consideration of various quantitative and qualitative factors,
including special collection issues.
The tax reserve recorded by Central Hudson relates to a change in 2010 to its tax
return methodology for claiming deductions for incidental repair and maintenance
expenditures on its utility assets. Although management believes that its
methodology for claiming the deduction is consistent with the Internal Revenue Code
and case law, management cannot predict whether the Internal Revenue Service will
accept the entirety of the deduction claimed.
The estimates for other operating reserves are based on assessments of future
obligations related to injuries and damages and workers’ compensation claims.
Unbilled revenues are determined based on the estimated sales for service rendered
to customers whose meters are not read on the last day of the month.
The significant assumptions and estimates used to account for the pension plan and
other post-retirement benefit expenses and liabilities are the discount rate, the
expected long-term rate of return on the Retirement Plan and post-retirement plan
assets, the rate of compensation increase, the healthcare cost trend rate, mortality
assumptions, and the method of amortizing gains and losses.
Estimates are also reflected for certain commitments and contingencies where there
is sufficient basis to project a future obligation, including environmental remediation
costs and negative revenue adjustments associated with gas code rule compliance
audits.

Regulatory Proceedings
2018 Rate Order
On June 14, 2018, the PSC issued an Order Approving Rate Plan in cases 17-E-0459 and 17G-0460 (the “2018 Rate Order”). The 2018 Rate Order adopts the terms set forth in the April
18, 2018 Joint Proposal with minor modifications. The 2018 Rate Order is effective July 1,
2018, with Rate Year 1, Rate Year 2 and Rate Year 3 defined as the twelve months ending
June 30, 2019, June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021, respectively.
The 2018 Rate Order provides electric delivery revenue increases of $19.725 million, $18.581
million and $25.083 million in Rate Year 1, Rate Year 2 and Rate Year 3, respectively and gas
delivery revenue increases of $6.654 million, $6.702 million and $8.183 million Rate Year 1,
Rate Year 2 and Rate Year 3, respectively. The Rate Order also provides electric bill credits of
$6.0 million in Rate Year 1, $9.0 million in Rate Year 2, and $11.0 million in Rate Year 3; and
gas bill credits up to $3.5 million in Rate Year 1 and $4.0 million in Rate Years 2 and Rate
Year 3.
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The Company’s electric and gas revenue requirements reflect a common equity ratio of
48% for Rate Year 1, 49% for Rate Year 2 and 50% for Rate Year 3 and a return on equity of
8.8%. Earnings above 9.3% and up to 9.8% will be shared 50% / 50% between the
shareholder and ratepayers. Earnings above 9.8% and up to 10.3% will be shared 20% / 80%
between the shareholder and ratepayers. Earnings above 10.3% will be shared 10% / 90%
between the shareholder and ratepayers.
Revenue increases net of bill credits result in average residential monthly bill impacts of 1.3%,
3.0% and 4.4% for electric customers and 2.1%, 4.4% and 5.5% for natural gas customers in
Rate Years 1, 2, and 3, respectively, of the rate plan. The rates reflect a reduction to the
customer charge for residential and electric small commercial classes. Electric RDM has been
expanded to include additional service classes. During the three year term, approximately
97% of electric base delivery revenues and 92% of natural gas base delivery revenues are
covered by RDMs. A RAM was approved to return or collect certain deferred balances and
carrying charges on a more timely basis (subject to calendar year caps).
The revenue requirements reflect authorization for capital expenditures of more than $650
million over the term covered by the 2018 Rate Order, including a significant increase in
information technology investments, funding to begin implementing a multi-year plan to
construct a Training Center and Primary Control Center, continued investment for Leak Prone
Pipe Replacement, and funding for Distribution Automation and Network Strategy. The
revenue requirement also reflects an increase in funding for Transmission and Distribution
Right of Way (“ROW”) Maintenance, increased low income discounts, funding to eliminate
credit/debit card and walk-in center payment fees paid by customers and an increase in energy
efficiency program funding which was moved into base delivery rates.
The 2018 Rate Order introduces five electric and one natural gas “EAMs” with targets set for
minimum, midpoint and maximum performance. Potential maximum earnings adjustments total
$2.2 million in 2018, $4.7 million in 2019, $5.1 million in 2020 and $5.4 million in 2021. As of
December 31, 2018 the Company has earned $0.6 million related to electric EAM targets.
The 2018 Rate Order changed various performance mechanisms for electric, natural gas and
customer service. For electric reliability, the SAIFI target is raised to 1.38 in 2018 and
gradually reduced back to 1.30 by the end of the rate plan. Gas safety metric targets were
restated for calendar year 2018 and other changes were made including revised targets for all
gas metrics, a reduction to potential negative revenue adjustments and additional positive
revenue adjustments for surpassing certain gas safety metrics. The 2018 Rate Order includes
more stringent Customer Satisfaction and PSC Complaint targets, new Call Answer Rate and
Residential Termination/Uncollectible metrics with the net result of a reduction in the total
potential negative revenue adjustments.
On July 7, 2018, Central Hudson filed a petition for clarification and rehearing regarding the
2018 Rate Order. The petition sought clarification or correction to certain Energy Efficiency
(“EE”) EAM targets in which the Company believes the Commission erred when recalculating
these targets from a net to a gross basis. The Company believes this error overstates the EE
EAM targets by approximately 4%. In addition, the petition sought to correct a statement in the
2018 Rate Order which inadvertently indicated a cap of $500,000 was imposed for distribution
ROW maintenance rather than transmission ROW maintenance. On October 3, 2018, the
Commission issued an Errata Notice correcting the reference to the ROW Transmission Cap.
On November 19, 2018 the Commission issued Order Concerning Petition for Clarification and
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Rehearing and denied Central Hudson’s request to modify the Rate Order’s EE EAM targets
on the basis that the rate order properly reflected the decisions made in a March 2018 Utility
Energy Efficiency Programs order in Case 15-M-0252 to convert portfolio-level EE targets from
net to gross.
Impact of Changes in Federal Tax Law
On December 29, 2017 the Commission issued an Order initiating a proceeding, Case 17-M0815, to commence the process of addressing the potential effects of the enactment of the
December 22, 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act on the tax expenses and liabilities of New York
State utilities, and the regulatory treatment of any windfalls in order to preserve the benefits for
ratepayers. Among items of most significance that were addressed in the proceeding were the
impacts of the reduction in the corporate federal income tax rate from 35% to 21% (not
reflected in the Company’s rates for the period January 1 through June 30, 2018) and the
elimination of bonus depreciation for regulated utilities. On August 9, 2018, the Commission
issued an Order Determining Rate Treatment of Tax Changes to address the impact of the
December 22, 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and regulatory treatment to preserve the benefits
for rate payers. Central Hudson deferred the impact of the change in the federal tax rate from
35% to 21% on delivery rates and deferred tax balances in accordance with the Order. In
addition, the Order confirmed that Central Hudson’s 2018 Rate Order fully addressed the
accounting and ratemaking effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act changes in determining
electric and gas revenue requirements.
Central Hudson 2018 Financing Order
On September 13, 2018, the Commission approved the Company's request under Section 69
of the Public Service Law to enter into multi-year committed credit agreements in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $200 million and maturities not to exceed five years, to issue and sell
long-term debt in an aggregate amount not to exceed $425 million through December 2021,
and to enter into derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risk for its variable rate debt
obligations. Central Hudson submitted its unconditional acceptance of the Order to the
Commission on September 20, 2018.
The below matters are ongoing regulatory proceedings. We cannot predict the ultimate
outcome or whether these proceedings would potentially impact Central Hudson in the
future. Should it become reasonably possible or probable in the future that a loss will be
sustained from any of the below proceedings, disclosure that it is reasonably possible or an
accrual of the probable amount of loss will be made consistent with our accounting policies.
Clean Energy Standard (“CES”) Proceedings
In June 2015, Governor Cuomo announced NYS’s 2015 State Energy Plan as a
comprehensive roadmap to build a clean, resilient and affordable energy system for NYS. On
March 15, 2018, the Commission ordered modifications to the existing Maintenance Tier
program, which applies only to eligible, preexisting renewable facilities. The modifications
include expanding the funding capability for already-built renewable energy projects under the
program in cases of need, increasing the size threshold for eligible existing hydroelectric
facilities from 5 megawatts (“MW”) up to 10 MW, and lowering regulatory burdens making it
easier to participate in the program if the facility is under economic duress. This will facilitate
the State meeting its renewable targets by 2030. Additionally in 2018, NYSERDA awarded
$1.4 billion for 26 new large-scale renewable energy projects from the 2017 Renewable
Energy Standard Solicitation. The awarded projects are located throughout NYS and include
22 solar farms, three wind farms, and one hydroelectric project. These projects are expected to
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be operational by 2022 and, once operational, will add more than 1,380 MW of renewable
capacity. NYSERDA expects these projects to create more than 3,000 short and long term
jobs in construction, operations and maintenance. On December 13, 2018 the PSC issued an
Order Approving Phase 3 Implementation Plan. The order directs NYSERDA to offer expiring
Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) at a reduced rate to Load Servicing Entities (“LSEs”)
equal to the current year price. Central Hudson, along with most other utilities, were not able
to purchase the necessary number of RECs to meet its 2018 obligation. This directive will
allow the Company to move closer to meeting that obligation at the 2018 REC price and avoid
some Alternative Compliance Payment costs.
Value of Distributed Energy Resources Proceeding (“DER”) – Value of “D”
In December 2015, the Commission instituted a new proceeding, Case 15-E-0751, “In the
Matter of the Value of Distributed Energy Resources (“VDER”)” to propose valuation methods
for DER. These compensation reforms are being considered as a reform to net metering. In
response to the December 22, 2017 Revised VDER Value Stack and Rate Design Working
Group Process and 2018 Schedule filed by the Department of Public Service Staff, the
Company joined with the other major New York State electric utilities (“JU”) in filing two
proposals on May 29, 2018 to address a rate design successor to net energy metering for
mass market customers. Both proposals seek to recover delivery costs through a monthly
fixed customer charge and through application of a combination of demand charges, which
would replace the current volumetric delivery design. While both proposals reflect temporal
and seasonal cost differences, they contrast from one another in the level of costs recovered
through the respective demand charges and in the determination of customer-specific demand
billing determinants. Ultimately, the JU believe that a demand-based rate structure will more
accurately reflect utility cost causation, deliver efficient price signals and lead to distributed
energy resource investment decisions that appropriately reflect grid impacts and support
Reforming Energy Vision goals.
The PSC issued an Order on Value Stack Eligibility Expansion and Other Matters on
September 12, 2018 with approved changes to take effect December 1, 2018. The Order
largely adopted the proposals in the Staff’s May 22 Whitepaper that included removing
customer-type base technology and size limits by expanding eligibility such that any net
metering eligible technologies can be built by any type of customer up to the overall 5 MW
limit, with the exception of Combined Heat and Power which requires further analysis. The
Order expanded VDER eligibility to renewable resources that were not already eligible,
including CES Tier 1 Eligible Resources, as well as projects that would be eligible for Tier 1 but
for vintage dates. Newly eligible projects will receive value stack compensation for 25 years
from their in-service date, after which they will transition to the then-applicable tariff for
compensation. Stand-alone storage, including storage paired with consumption load, will be
eligible for the VDER tariff for any hourly injections to the grid and standalone storage.
Participants in the Value Stack tariff must be charged for consumption at the utility’s hourly
pricing rate and include standby and buyback rate provisions that apply to non-VDER
prosumers. The tariff will also apply to newly eligible projects. The Order also approved
interzonal crediting within a utility’s service territory and rejected the proposed reduction of the
minimum 1000 annual kWh consumption requirement for Community Distributed Generation
(“CDG”) participants.
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The PSC Staff filed three whitepapers in the VDER proceeding in mid-December. On
December 12, 2018, the Staff issued Whitepaper on Standby and Buyback Service Rate
Design and Residential Voluntary Demand Rates in response to the Commission’s directive
that a review of standby service rates be conducted. Staff recommends modifications to the
standby and buyback service rates in effect at the electric utilities related to contract and asused demand charges, supply charges, opt-in eligibility as well as requiring certain cost of
service filings in utilities’ next rate cases. The whitepaper also directed utilities to file multiparty campus offset tariffs. The Staff’s Whitepaper Regarding Future Value Stack
Compensation, Including for Avoided Distribution Costs was also filed December 12, 2018.
This whitepaper addresses aspects of the Distribution Relief Value and Locational System
Relief Value compensation mechanism for DERs, particularly large on-site and remote
crediting projects. On December 14, 2018, the Staff filed Whitepaper Regarding Capacity
Value Compensation related to the capacity value component of the Value Stack. The Staff
whitepaper discusses the experience with capacity value compensation over the first 12
months of Value Stack applicability and proposes recommendations to improve two of the
existing compensation alternatives. Comments in response to specific questions identified in
the whitepapers as well as proposals set forth by Staff in each whitepaper are due February
25, 2019.
Hybrid Storage Energy Systems
Following Commission adopted modifications to Standard Interconnection Requirements
(“SiR”) in early 2018 that facilitated the interconnection of energy storage systems paired with
eligible generating equipment (“Hybrid Facilities”), utilities filed a model tariff for consideration
that addressed the Value Stack compensation of Hybrid Facilities which included four metering
and compensation options. On December 13, 2018 the Commission issued an Order
Implementing a Hybrid Energy Storage System Tariff. Owners of Hybrid Facilities must
choose one of four metering options prior to operation and owners are responsible for paying
for necessary metering and/or controls consistent with the SiR. The four metering options are:
1) designed for a project where the owner intends to charge the hybrid facility exclusively from
a renewable generator and not from the utility system, 2) designed for projects where the
owner intends to use the storage resource only to serve on-site load and not to inject energy
into the utility system, 3) designed for projects where the storage resources may be charged
from both a renewable generator and the utility site and both the renewable generator and the
storage system may be used to inject into the utility system for compensation and 4) applies to
Hybrid Facilities that are separately sited. Owners may make a one-time, irrevocable decision
to switch from Option 1 or 2 to Option 3. The hybrid energy storage system tariffs are effective
January 1, 2019.
Community Choice Aggregation
On January 18, 2018 and March 16, 2018, the PSC approved Community Choice Aggregation
(“CCA”) programs filed by Good Energy and Joule Assets, Inc. respectively, subject to certain
modifications to their implementation plans and filing of a final Data Protection Plan. CCA
programs provide municipalities with the opportunity to aggregate electric and/or gas supply on
behalf of their residents and small businesses on an opt-out basis. The CCA framework
requires that one or more municipalities, or their designee in the role of a CCA administrator,
file an Implementation Plan and Data Protection Plan for Commission approval. To date, seven
communities within the Central Hudson service territory have each exercised their Municipal
Home Rule Law authority to initiate a CCA program. Additional communities may pass local
laws in the future to join or establish a CCA. Central Hudson is working with Good Energy and
Joule Assets as they work to develop programs for Central Hudson’s customers.
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Utility Energy Registry Proceeding
On April 19, 2018, the PSC issued an Order Adopting Utility Energy Registry under Case 17M-0315. The Order requires Central Hudson and the other New York utilities to provide
customer data for the Utility Energy Registry (“UER”) subject to the privacy standards set forth
in the UER. Datasets are to be submitted every six months January-June and July-December
within 30 days of the close of each semi-annual period. Central Hudson provided data for the
initial UER upload consisting of two 2016 and 2017 semi-annual periods and the January-June
2018 period on July 30, 2018. The Company’s July-December 2018 data will be filed by
January 30, 2019. The data portal was made available by NYSERDA for general use in
September. The purpose of the UER is to make community-based energy consumption data
more readily available for local planning, market research and CCA development with a goal of
promoting actions to adopt more efficient and cleaner energy use patterns and strategies.
In the Matter of Utility Preparation & Response to Power Outages During the March 2018
Winter Storms
On March 14, 2018, following the March 2018 Nor’easter storms on March 2nd (Riley) and
March 7th (Quinn), the PSC notified the chief executives of the state’s major electric utility
companies that an investigation into preparedness of and response to the two early March
storms was underway, including all aspects of the Company’s filed and approved emergency
plans. The investigation will include an evaluation under the Commission’s Emergency
Response Scorecard that was filed by Central Hudson with the Commission on April 11, 2018.
As of December 31, 2018, Central Hudson has responded to over 95 Staff Data Requests
related to numerous aspects of the Company’s storm preparedness and response.
Gas Plastic Fusion Proceeding
On May 18, 2018, the PSC issued an Order Adopting Further Improvements in Plastic Fusion
Practices on Natural Gas Systems under Case 14-G-0212. The Order requires the filing of
Quality Assurance/Quality Control Program and ongoing annual reports of all visually failed
and visually passed fuses revealed and expected. Data for 2015 through 2018 is required in
the first annual report due January 2019. On July 3, 2018, Central Hudson filed its Quality
Assurance/Quality Control Program, which details the qualification, training, evaluation, and
experience it requires of all plastic fusion inspectors as well as inspectors of all company work
related to the installation of gas facilities. The program filed also details the assessment and
remediation plan for both the plastic fuser and plastic fusion inspector after their work is found
to have failed visual inspection and include the procedure to be followed, including a datasupported plan to randomly test discrete locations on construction work that has been deemed
completed.
Offshore Wind Proceeding
On July 12, 2018, the Commission issued an Order Establishing Offshore Wind Standard and
Framework for Phase 1 Procurement under Case 18-E-0071. In its review of offshore wind, the
Commission found that an Offshore Wind (“OSW”) standard was necessary to comply with
NYSERDA’s New York State Offshore Wind Master Plan, a comprehensive roadmap that
encourages the development of at least 2,400 MW of offshore wind capacity to be operational
by 2030. Project eligibility requires that offshore wind electric generation facilities must be
located in the ocean waters of the United States, must have become operational on or after
January 1, 2015, must deliver their electric energy directly into the New York Control Area
(“NYCA”) or directly into an adjacent control area with transmission into the NYCA and must
have obtained a lease from the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management. NYSERDA’s project
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evaluation criteria reflect the following weighting: viability 10%, price 70%, and economic
benefits 20%. The generator is responsible for transmission in Phase 1. NYSERDA will serve
as the procurement agent for OSW. The standard calls for Phase 1 Offshore Renewable
Energy Credits (“ORECs”) associated with approximately 800 MW of offshore wind to be
procured over a two-year period, with the first solicitation issued in the fourth quarter of 2018.
LSEs are obligated to obtain, on behalf of their retail customers, the ORECs procured in Phase
1 in an amount proportional to their load in relation to the energy load served by all LSEs in the
NYCA. For Phase 1, LSEs will not have the option to procure ORECs through bilateral
agreements with eligible offshore wind generators for combine energy, capacity and/or
ORECs. The NYSERDA procurement process will require two separate bids from each
participating bidder with one bid for a Fixed OREC price and the second bid for an adjustable
OREC based on a bid strike price. The bid process will be weighted using a formula included
in the solicitation and the 70% price component will be scored on the combined weighted value
of both bids. Procurement terms will be at NYSERDA’s discretion, but not less than 20 years
and no more than 25 years. NYSERDA’s administrative fees associated with the program will
be recoverable from LSEs as an adder to the OREC prices.
In accordance with the Order, the Staff and NYSERDA held a technical conference on
September 25, 2018 to discuss the optimal configurations for cost-effective transmission of
large scale offshore wind development and various options for ownership and planning
processes. Central Hudson made a compliance tariff filing to effectuate the adoption of an
Offshore Wind Standard and the corresponding obligation to procure Offshore Wind
Renewable Energy Credits, as well as, the recovery of the costs of ORECs through existing
supply mechanisms and bill lines effective September 28, 2018.
Cyber Security Protocols Proceeding
On June 14, 2018, the PSC instituted Proceeding on Motion of the Commission Regarding
Cybersecurity Protocols and Protections in the Energy Market Place, under Case 18-M-0376.
The Order was established to ensure that appropriate protections are being implemented and
followed throughout the industry. This follows recent cyber events that impacted the energy
services market. Technical conferences were held on July 26 and 27, 2018. As part of the
initiative Energy Service Companies were required to complete a Self-Attestation of
Information Security Controls (“SA”), and sign a Data Security Agreement (“DSA”) by the end
of August. On September 24, 2018 the Staff released a report of the status of the initiative to
address security issues to be sure that adequate security protections are in place to protect
utility systems and confidential and sensitive customer information and whether insurance is
an efficient and effective vehicle for mitigating any potential financial risks. The report found
that the SA and DSAs were appropriate, supported utility action to initiate a discontinuance
process for those energy service entities that do not execute a SA and DSA. Finally the report
recommended that utilities, distributed energy resource suppliers and other interested
stakeholders commence business discussions immediately.
Energy Storage System Proceeding
In January 2018, Governor Cuomo announced a target to install 1,500 MW of Energy Storage
System in New York State by 2025. In doing so, he directed State energy agencies and
authorities to work together during 2018 to generate a pipeline of storage projects through a
number of mechanisms including utility procurements; major regulatory changes in utility rate
design and wholesale energy markets; incorporating storage into criteria for large‐scale
renewable procurements; and reducing regulatory barriers. On June 21, 2018, PSC Staff and
NYSERDA released their proposal to achieve Governor Cuomo’s mandate of getting to 1,500
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MW of energy storage in NYS by 2025 in their Energy Storage Roadmap. The roadmap
groups storage application into three market segments – customer sited, distribution system
and bulk system – based on where storage is located on the electric grids and the needs it
serves. On September 24, 2018, the JU filed Reply Comments on the New York State Energy
Storage Roadmap. The JU believe the Commission should recognize the advantages of
distribution and bulk system storage over most customer-sited deployments by adopting a
fundamental principle that customers’ funds used to incent storage development should be
targeted to developing storage applications that produce quantifiable distribution and /or bulk
system benefits, thereby maximizing progress towards the State’s storage goals.
On December 13, 2018 the Commission issued its Order Establishing Energy Storage Goal
and Deployment Policy. The Commission order ensures compliance with PSL 74 by
establishing a statewide energy goal for 2030, along with a deployment policy to support that
goal. The Commission adopted many of the recommendations from the Roadmap that the
Commission believes address barriers impeding energy storage technologies from competing
with other resources in a technology-neutral manner. In the Order, the Commission adopts
statewide energy storage deployment goals of 1,500 MW by 2025 and 3,000 MW by 2030.
Beginning in 2020 and each third year thereafter, the Commission will conduct a review of the
progress towards achieving the energy storage deployment goals and effectiveness of the
energy storage deployment policies and actions in meeting those goals. The Commission will
also develop an annual report.
The Order agreed with the Joint Utilities that resolution of storage rate design issues and
potential reforms will be addressed in the VDER Rate Design Working Group process. Each
utility is required to propose an EAM in its next rate case filing that addresses system
efficiency. Individual utility targets may be either annual or cumulative with milestones, taking
into account relevant benchmarks including peak reduction potential studies and targets
established in other jurisdictions. Utilities were directed to maintain consistent reporting of each
energy storage project, whether standalone or paired, that shall adhere to the national energy
metrics set forth in the Order. By February 11, 2019, each utility is required to file an
implementation plan detailing a competitive direct procurement process and the cost recovery
accounting procedures to deploy 10 MW of qualified energy storage systems. Each electric
Investor Owned Utility is required to issue a Request for Proposal in 2019 to competitively
procure dispatch rights for bulk-level energy storage systems sited within their service territory.
Utilities are required to compile an inventory of suitable, unused and undedicated utility land
that may be used for NWAs by July 1, 2019 and establish a mechanism for the standardized
valuation of unused utility land that would be included in utility BCA handbooks.
Energy Efficiency Proceeding
On December 13, 2018 the Commission issued an Order Adopting Accelerated Energy
Efficiency Targets that established an interactive approach with immediate accelerated utility
targets and budgets adopted for the years 2019-2020 and a process for developing utilityspecific targets and budgets for the years 2021-2025, to be authorized by the Commission in
2019. The order also develops processes to establish third party data access protocols, fuel
switching, low-moderate income (“LMI”) targets and future EAM development. Central
Hudson’s 2019-2020 targets are not increasing since the 2018 Rate Order already reflects
increased targets. Utilities are directed to prepare a joint filing, in consultation with NYSERDA,
detailing utility specific targets not less than the levels adopted in the Order and not more than
the expenditures adopted in the Order from 2021-2025 no later than March 31, 2019. The
Order also directs utilities to conduct two technical conferences on the terms of the prospective
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report with stakeholders prior to the March filing and to report in June 2019 on progress and
state of readiness to implement the Order’s benchmarking requirements. In 2020, the utilities
and NYSERDA are directed to begin implementation of a statewide ratepayer LMI plan.
Finally, utilities are instructed to continue to file a System Energy Efficiency Plan, including
quarterly progress reports.
Low Income Community Distributed Generation Initiatives/ VDER
On July 12, 2018, the Commission issued an Order Adopting Low-Income CDG Initiatives
under Cases 15-E-0751 and 15-E-0082. The Order adopted a new Bill Discount Pledge
(“BDP”) program, under which low-income customers will be able to use a share of their
monthly low income bill discount toward the purchase of CDG subscriptions. On December 10,
2018, the JU filed a BDP program implementation plan that includes procedures for making
payments to CDG developers of funds pledged by low income customers to cover subscription
fees as well as reporting plans on BDP program participation. The Order requires participating
CDG developers to demonstrate that they have mechanisms in place to ensure that customers
will receive CDG credits and/or refunds annually no less than the BDP amount pledged and to
promptly refund any difference. In addition, CDG developers must demonstrate the ability to
verify compliance with these assurances. The Order directs NYSERDA to extend its income
verifications service to CDG developers seeking to verify eligibility of Low-Income subscribers.
The Order also directs NYSERDA to create a loss reserve program for CDG projects serving
low-income subscribers and report on its development by January 2019. Funding for the BDP
program will be via the bill discounts included in Central Hudson’s rate allowance for the Low
Income Program.
Gas Safety
On September 17, 2018, the Commission issued a Notice of Adoption of rulemaking changes
to Chapter III, Gas Utilities, Subchapter C, Safety, Part 255, Transmission and Distribution of
Gas, to ensure conformance with Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 192,
Transportation of Natural and Other Gas by Pipeline. Changes are related to new
requirements to offer more customers Excess Flow Valves and to notify Staff of a company’s
intent to convert from a non-jurisdictional fuel to gas or petroleum 60 days prior to conversion.
The new rules also require welders to complete a weld in order to obtain welding certification.
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration
In the rulemaking Case PHMSA-2011-0023, the PHMSA, which is an agency of the United
States Department of Transportation, will be revisiting the requirements in the Pipeline Safety
Regulations and addressing integrity management principles for Gas Transmission pipelines.
In particular, PHMSA will be reviewing the definition of High Consequence Areas (“HCA”),
including the concept of a potential impact radius, the repair criteria for both HCA and nonHCA areas, requiring the use of automatic and remote controlled shut off valves, valve
spacing, and whether applying the integrity management program requirements to additional
areas would mitigate the need for class location requirements. PHMSA has not established a
timeline for implementation and compliance by affected utilities. Central Hudson expects that
the rule will impact up to 160 miles of its transmission pipeline. Because Central Hudson’s
transmission lines are intrastate, NYS PSC proceedings will be required before Central
Hudson can implement the rule.
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Accuracy and Effectiveness of Certain Utility Reliability and Customer Service Reported
Data Operations Audit
On March 10, 2017, the PSC approved Central Hudson’s Audit Implementation Plan filed on
May 20, 2016. The Company is required to file status reports with the Commission on
recommendation implementation progress every four months until all recommendations are
fully implemented. Central Hudson’s most recent implementation plan update was filed on
November 20, 2018 in which the Company reported that all audit recommendations were
completed and was seeking Staff’s final review and closure of the audit. On November 26,
2018 the Commission’s Office of Accounting, Finance and Audits issued a letter confirming the
completion of implementation oversight of Central Hudson’s Audit Recommendations.
Central Hudson Management and Operations Audit
In a July 16, 2018 Order the Commission approved Central Hudson’s Revised Audit
Implementation Plans filed on December 14, 2017 and June 26, 2018. The Company’s
implementation plans address the Overland Final Audit Report released October 24, 2017 that
included 55 recommendations. The Order directs the Company to file updates on its progress
with the recommendations no less frequently than every four months. Central Hudson’s first
update was filed on November 16, 2018; the Company reported that it considers 32 of the 47
audit recommendations complete and continues to work on implementation of the remaining
15 recommendations.
Uniform Statewide Customer Satisfaction Survey
On October 18, 2018 in Case 15-M-0566 the Commission issued an Order Authorizing
Implementation of a Pilot Statewide Customer Satisfaction Survey. The Order adopted a pilot
survey for statewide use and directed Staff to report on the results of the pilot survey after one
year, including a recommendation for whether to establish the survey on a permanent basis.
The pilot survey will be implemented starting on January 1, 2019. Central Hudson will also
continue its existing customer satisfaction survey.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Statements included in this Annual Financial Report, which are not historical in nature, are
intended to be “forward-looking statements.” Forward-looking statements may be identified by
words such as “anticipates,” “intends,” “estimates,” “believes,” “projects,” “expects,” “plans,”
“assumes,” “seeks,” and other similar words and expressions. CH Energy Group is subject to
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in
the forward-looking statements. The risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited
to: deviations from normal seasonal temperatures and storm activity, changes in energy and
commodity prices, availability of energy supplies, changes in interest rates, poor operating
performance, legislative, tax and regulatory developments, the outcome of litigations, and the
resolution of current and future environmental issues. Additional information concerning risks
and uncertainties may be found in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” section of CH Energy Group’s Quarterly and Annual
Financial Reports. These reports are available in the Financial Information section of the
website of CH Energy Group, at www.CHEnergyGroup.com. CH Energy Group undertakes no
obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT SUPPLEMENT
Holding Company Regulation
CH Energy Group is a “holding company” under Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005
(“PUHCA 2005”) because of its ownership interests in Central Hudson, CHEC, CHET, and
CHGT. CH Energy Group, however, is exempt from regulation as a holding company under
PUHCA 2005, because it derives substantially all of its public utility company revenues from
business conducted within a single state, the State of New York. At the present time, CH
Energy Group cannot predict whether and when its circumstances may change such that it no
longer qualifies for exemption from PUHCA 2005.

Central Hudson
Central Hudson (the “Company”) is a New York State natural gas and electric corporation
formed in 1926. Central Hudson purchases, sells at wholesale and retail, and distributes
electricity and natural gas at retail in portions of New York State. Central Hudson also
generates a small portion of its electricity requirements.
Central Hudson serves a territory comprising approximately 2,600 square miles in the Hudson
Valley. Electric service is available throughout the territory, and natural gas service is provided
in and about the cities of Poughkeepsie, Beacon, Newburgh, and Kingston, New York, and in
certain outlying and intervening territories. The number of Central Hudson employees at
December 31, 2018 was 1,002.
Central Hudson’s territory reflects a diversified economy, including manufacturing industries,
governmental agencies, public and private institutions, wholesale and retail trade operations,
research firms, farms and resorts.
Regulation
Central Hudson is subject to regulation as follows:
 PSC – services rendered (including the rates charged), major transmission facility siting,
accounting treatment of certain items, and issuance of securities. See Note 4 –
“Regulatory Matters” of the Company’s 2018 Annual Financial Report.


FERC (under the Federal Power Act) – accounting and the acquisition and disposition
of certain property.



North American Electric Reliability Corporation – ownership, operation and use of a bulk
power system.



DEC – ownership, operation and use of hydroelectric facilities and environmental site
investigation and remediation activities.



Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration – ownership, operation and use
of a gas pipeline system.
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NYISO – Daily activities, such as purchases and sales of energy and energy-related
products, are subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the NYISO in
accordance with the Market Services Tariff.



United States Army Corps of Engineers – Construction, repair, replacement of gas or
electric lines or facilities that may cross or are located within a federally protected
wetland or water body.

Rates
PSC – Costs of service, both for electric and gas delivery service and supply costs, are
recovered from customers through PSC approved tariffs, subject to a standard of prudency.
For further information, see Note 1 – “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” under the
caption “Rates, Revenues, and Cost Adjustment Mechanisms” and Note 4 – “Regulatory
Matters” under the caption “2015 Rate Order/2018 Rate Order” of the Company’s 2018 Annual
Report.
 Customer classes – Residential and non-residential.
 Retail electricity services – Various service classifications covering delivery service and
full service (which includes electricity supply).
 Retail natural gas services – Various service classifications covering transport, retail
access service, and full service (which includes natural gas supply).
 RDMs – Central Hudson’s rates include RDMs which are intended to minimize the
earnings impact resulting from reduced energy consumption as energy efficiency
programs are implemented by breaking the link between energy sales and utility
revenues and profits. Central Hudson’s RDMs allow the Company to recognize electric
delivery revenues and natural gas sales per customer at the levels approved in rates for
most of Central Hudson’s electric and natural gas customer classes.
 Commodity costs – Costs of electric and natural gas commodity purchases are
recovered from customers, without earning a profit on these costs. Rates are reset
monthly based on Central Hudson’s actual costs to purchase the electricity and natural
gas needed to serve its full service customers.
FERC – Transmission rates and rates for electricity sold for resale which involve interstate
commerce.
During 2018, the average price of electricity for full service customers, which includes
commodity and surcharges was 17.02 cents per kWh as compared to an average of 15.57
cents per kWh in 2017. The average delivery only price in 2018 was 7.31 cents per kWh
compared with 6.72 cents per kWh in 2017. The increase in delivery price was primarily due to
an increase in base delivery revenue pursuant to the 2018 Rate Order and an increase in the
collection of base delivery revenue shortfall against the regulatory target.
During 2018, the average price of natural gas for full-service customers, which includes
commodity and surcharges, was $14.90 per Mcf as compared to an average of $13.70 per Mcf
in 2017. The average delivery only price for natural gas for retail and full service in 2018 was
$7.05 per Mcf compared with $7.24 per Mcf in 2017. The decrease in delivery price was
primarily due to a decrease in weather normalization adjustment collections resulting from
cooler weather conditions and a decrease in revenue per unit resulting from the interaction of
increased sales, fixed customer charges and an inverted rate structure partially offset by an
increase in base delivery revenue pursuant to the 2018 Rate Order.
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Cost Adjustment Clauses and RDMs: For information regarding Central Hudson’s purchased
electric and natural gas cost adjustment mechanisms and RDMs, see Note 1 – “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies” under the caption “Rates, Revenues, and Cost Adjustment
Mechanisms.”

Electric
Central Hudson owns hydroelectric and gas turbine generating facilities as described below.
Type of Electric Generating Plant
Hydroelectric (3 stations)
Gas turbine (2 stations)
Total

Year Placed in Service/Refurbished
1920-2016
1969-1996

MW

(1)

Net Capability
22.4
42.5
64.9

(1) Reflects the name plate rating of Central Hudson’s electric generating plants and therefore does not include firm purchases or sales.

Central Hudson owns substations having an aggregate transformer capacity of 5.5 million
kilovolt amperes. Central Hudson’s electric transmission system consists of 600 pole miles of
line. The electric distribution system consists of approximately 7,200 pole miles of overhead
lines and 1,600 trench miles of underground lines, as well as customer service lines and
meters.

Electric Load and Capacity
Central Hudson’s maximum one-hour demand for electricity within its own territory for the year
ended December 31, 2018, occurred on July 2, 2018, and amounted to 1,114 MW. Central
Hudson’s all-time highest peak electric demand reached 1,295 MW on August 2, 2006.
Central Hudson’s current maximum one-hour demand for electricity within its own territory for
the 2018-2019 winter capability occurred to date on January 21, 2019, and amounted to 900
MW.
Central Hudson owns minimal generating capacity and relies on purchased capacity and
energy from third-party providers to meet the demands of its full service customers. For more
information, see Note 13 – “Commitments and Contingencies.”

Natural Gas
Central Hudson’s natural gas system consists of 165 miles of transmission pipelines and 1,297
miles of distribution pipelines, as well as customer service lines and meters. For the year
ended December 31, 2018, the total amount of natural gas purchased by Central Hudson from
all sources was 10,642,169 Mcf.
The peak daily demand for natural gas of Central Hudson’s customers for the year ended
December 31, 2018, occurred on January 6, 2018 and was 141,141 Mcf. This was also the
all-time highest winter period daily peak for Central Hudson. Current peak demand for the
2018-2019 heating season occurred to date on January 31, 2019 and was 136,276 Mcf.
Central Hudson’s firm peak day natural gas capability in 2018-2019 heating season was
154,939 Mcf.
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Purchased Power and Generation Costs
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the sources and related costs of purchased
electricity and electric generation for Central Hudson were as follows (In Thousands):
Sources of Energy
Purchased Electricity
Hydroelectric and Other
Deferred Electricity Cost
Total

Aggregate Percentage of
Energy Requirements
96.8%
3.2%
100.0%

Costs in 2018
$
183,875
176
7,411
$
191,462

Other Central Hudson Matters
Labor Relations: Central Hudson has two agreements with Local 320 of the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers for its 587 unionized employees. These agreements cover
construction and maintenance employees, customer service representatives, service workers,
clerical and system operation employees (excluding persons in managerial, professional, or
supervisory positions). One agreement is in effect through March 31, 2021 while the other
agreement is in effect through April 30, 2022.
Property Additions: During the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, Central Hudson
made gross property additions of $524.3 million and property retirements and adjustments of
$72.5 million, resulting in a net increase (including construction work in progress) in gross
utility plant of $451.8 million, or 23.8%.

Environmental Quality Regulation
Central Hudson is subject to regulation by federal, state, and local authorities with respect to
the environmental effects of their operations. Environmental matters may expose Central
Hudson to potential liability, which, in certain instances, may be imposed without regard to fault
or may be premised on historical activities that were lawful at the time they occurred.
Central Hudson monitors its activities in order to determine their impact on the environment
and to comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations.
The principal environmental areas relevant to Central Hudson (air, water and industrial and
hazardous wastes) are described below. Unless otherwise noted, all required permits and
certifications have been obtained by the applicable company. Management believes that
Central Hudson was in material compliance with these permits and certifications during 2018.
For further discussions related to environmental matters see Note 13 – “Commitments and
Contingencies”.

Air Quality
The Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 address attainment and maintenance of national air
quality standards and impact Central Hudson electric generating facilities in South Cairo and
Coxsackie, NY.
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Water Quality
The Clean Water Act established the basic framework for federal and state regulation of water
pollution control and requires facilities that discharge waste or storm water into the waters of
the United States to obtain permits. Central Hudson has permits regulating pollutant
discharges for relevant locations.

Industrial & Hazardous Substances and Wastes
Central Hudson is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the use,
handling, storage, treatment, transportation, and disposal of industrial, hazardous, and toxic
wastes. See Note 13 − “Commitments and Contingencies” under the caption “Environmental
Matters” for additional discussion regarding, among other things, Central Hudson’s former
MGP facilities, Eltings Corners and Little Britain Road.

Environmental Expenditures
2018 actual and 2019 estimated expenditures attributable in whole or in substantial part to
environmental considerations are detailed in the table below (In Millions):
Central Hudson

$

2018

9.5

$

2019

24.0

The increase in 2019 estimated expenditures relates primarily to ongoing remediation activities
at the North Water Street site. For further discussion of these activities, see Note 13 –
“Commitments and Contingencies” under caption “Site Investigation and Remediation
Program”.
Central Hudson is also subject to regulation with respect to other environmental matters, such
as noise levels, protection of vegetation and wildlife, and limitations on land use, and is in
compliance with regulations in these areas.
Regarding environmental matters, except as described in Note 13 - “Commitments and
Contingencies” under the caption “Environmental Matters,” neither CH Energy Group nor
Central Hudson are involved as defendants in any material litigation, administrative
proceeding, or investigation and, to the best of their knowledge, no such matters are
threatened against any of them.
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